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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property Investment Trust
plc is to maximise shareholders’ total returns by investing
in the shares and securities of property companies and
property related businesses internationally and also in

investment property located in the UK.

Introduction

TR Property Investment Trust plc (the 'Company’) was
formed ir 1905 and has beer a dedicated property
mwvestor since 189827 The Company 1s an Investment
Trust and its shares are premiem listed on the Londor
Stock Exchange.

Benchmark

The benchmark is tve FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in sterling

Investment policy

The Company seeks to achieve its object ve by
investing .n shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses on an
internaticnal basis, although, with a par-Edropean
benchmark, the majorty of tne investments will be
located in that gecgraphical area The Company also
invests in investment property located in the UK only.

Further deta'ls of the investment Policies, the Asset

Al ocation Guidelines and policies regarding the use of
gear ng are set out in the Strategic Report on page 34
and the entire portfelic is shown on page 27

Investment manager

Columbia Threadneedle Irvestment Bus ness Limited
acts as the Compary’s alterrative nvestment

fund manager (AIFM") with portfolio maragement
delegated to Thames River Capitai LLP {(the Partfo'io
Manager’ ar the ‘Manager'). MarcLs Phayre-Mudge
has managed the portfolio since 1 April 2011 and been
part of the Fund Management tearm since 1997
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Independent board

Tne Directors are all indeperdent of the Manager

and meet regularly to consider investment strategy,

to menitor adherence to the stated objective and
mvestment policies and 1o review nvestment
performance. Details of how the Board operates and
fulfils its responsibllities are set out in the Report of the
Directors on page 47

Performance

The Financial Highl'ghts for the current year are set out
on page 2 and Historical Performance can be found on
page 3 Key Performance Indicators are set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 35 ard 36.

Retail investors advised by IFAs

The Company currently conducts its affairs so that

Its shares can be recommended by Independent
Financial Advisers ('IFAs] in the UK to reta:l investors
In accordance with the Financiat Conduct Authority
{'FCA) rules . relation to non-mainstream investment
products and intends to continue to do so. The shares
are excluded from the FCA's restrictions, which appiy
to non-mainstream imvestment products, because they
are shares in an author'sed investment trust company

Further information

General sharetoder information and details of how
1o nvest in the Company, inciading ivestment
through a1 {5A or savings scheme, can be found on
pages 118 orwards. This nformation can also bhe
fourd on tne Company's website www trprepet ty corm
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Financial highlights and performance

Year ended
31 March

2023

Balance Sheet

Net asset value per share 305.13p
Shareholders’ funds (£'000) 968,346
Shares inissue at the end of the year (m) 317.4
Net debt'” 12.3%

Share Price
Share price 279.00p
Market capitalisation £885m

Year ended
31 March
2023

Revenue

Revenue earnings per share 17.22p
Dividends?

Intenm dividend per share 5.65p
Final dividend per share 9.85p
Total dividend per share 15.50p

Perfrbrmance;Assetsénd Benchmark

MNet Asset Value total return -35.5%
Benchmark total return’ -34.0%
Share price total returm* -36.2%
Ongoin'é Charge"s_s-6 - N -
Including perfermance fee 0.73%
Excluding performance fee 0.73%
Excluding performance fee and direct property costs 0.67%

1 Netdebt stnetola’ va ueof Dannctes, wans (.nz uding nethia

rezr ended 31 a0 2022 ans
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£ Coms detedtabe an serist ce Perfoomance Lieasute a3 def ned onpag= 102

Year ended

31 March
2022 Change
492 43p -380%
1,562.739 -38.0%
317.4 +0 0%

10 2%

456.50p -38.9%
£1,449m -38.9%
Year ended
31 March
2022 Change
13.69p +25.8%
530p +6 6%
920p +7. 1%
14.50p +6.9%
+27 4%
+12 2%
+19 9%
219%
0 60%
0.58%

55 4 BropsTton o' net assel vaue
2
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Historical performance

for the vea! erded 21 Maier 2023

Performance for the year:

Total Return (%)
NAY -
Benchmark*
Share Price”

Sharehoiders’ funds (£'m}
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Net revenue {pence per
share)

Earnings
Dividends -

NAY per share (pence)

Share price (pence}

Indices of growth

[CRCEETRE] ERR LA ET I i

Share price’ -
Net Asget Value”’
Dividend Net™
RPI

Benchmark

Figures have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

2013

21.5
17.8
258

684

6.74
7.00

21525

18630

100
100
100
100
100

2014 2015
224 283
149 233
377 295
809 1,010
8.09 8.89

7.70

7.45

25494 31812
247.50 310.50

133 167
118 148
106 0
102 103

107

128

2016

82
5.4
1.6

1.065

8.36
8.35

335.96
297.50

16G
156
119
105
131

2017

80
6.5
9.1

1118

11.38
1050

35242
314.50

169
164
150
108
136

2018

5.5
10.2
255

1,256

13.22
12.20

39564
382.50

205
184
174
112
146

2019

9.1
5.6

6.2

1,328

14.58
13.50

418.54
384.00

21
194
193
115
149

2020

115
-14.0
16 8

1136

14.62

14.00

35811
317.50

170
166
200
118
124

2021

207
155
283

1.326

12.25
1420

A17.97
392.50

211
194
203
113
147

ey 2023

21.4
12.2
19.9

1,563

13.69
14.50

492.43
456.50

245
229
207
130
155

A The NAY Tota Retumn for eacn veanis ca cu ated by -einvesting t7e d v dends .0 tne essets of the Company ‘rom the relevant ex-d vidend date Dwvidends
are deemed (0 be reimvested gt the ex-dividend date as this s the protocat used by the Company's bencarark and otherindices This ‘s considered to ke an
Alternat’ ve Performance Measure as defined an page 106

B Bencamark Index. compesite ndex comprising the ¥ 7SE EPRA/NAREIT Develeped Europe TR ndex up to March 2013 and tverea®ter the FTSE FPRA NARFEIT
Developed Europe Capped Index Source ~ham™es River Sapita .

[Ty The Snare Price ota' Return s calcu ated by reinvest.ng the d vidends in the snares o’ the Commpany from the relevant ex-dividend date

{0} Dividends per share inthe vear to wh ch ther dec-aration relates and nat the year they were pad

{E1 Sharepricesonly * hese danot reflect divdends paid

{F1 Capita onyvawes. “hese donot refiect dvidends pa d

{G! Price only value of the indices set out v Bl above
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Chairman’s statement

Be Markets have nad to

absorb huge increases

in the cost of capital and

real estate equities have
suffered consequential price
adjustments. However, this is
an unusual cycle where both
interest rates and rents are
rising. In many of cur markets
property fundamentals are
sound and we see few signs
of over-supply.

David Watson

This has been a very difficult year for the property
rmarket, for property shares and for the Company. Net
asset value 1otal returm was -35.5%, slightly worse than
our benchmark at -34 0%. The share price iotat return
was -36.2% as the discount between the NAV and the
share price widened siightly, reflecting weaker investor
sentiment as a whole. Although the change in the second
nalf was modest {first half NAV total return of -33.6%
March 1o September 2022) we have experienced some
very dramatic price actieon in the intervening six monihs.

Macro-economic forces continued to dominate. The
drivers and trajectory of inflation remained everyone's
focus. Central bankers appeared as unsure of the
consequences of their actions as market participants
Volatility remained elevated Whilst our total return
figures are ciearly very poor, the autumnal rally in
property stocks, somewhat punctured (in the UK) by
political events in November did resume in earnest in
January. This three month rally, based squarely on a
change in the expected trajectory of intérest rates, gave
us, at last, a taste of a more aptimistic attitude towards
our asset class. The last few weeks of the financial year
saw market sentiment damaged by the failure of two
regional banks tn the US and the final take out of Credit
Suisse This raised knee-jerk concerns of bank contagion
which here feels sensationalist given the enhanced levels
of requlatory oversight and controls on Eurcpean banks
post the global financial criss.

Your investment management team have a long track
record of alpha generation through dynamic stock
selection. It is fair to say that the investment dynamics of
the last 12 months have not been their preferred context.
The dramatic price falls and bear market rallies have
been largely undiscriminating between the good and the
bad Forced sellers were interested in volume not price
Small caps, as usual, struggled n these conditions This
macro-driven environment is hopefully, finally, abating as
investors appear increasingly interested in differentiating
between individual companies’ prospects following the
significant correction.

Our investment universe has now seen a number of
companies who have suspended or reduced dividends.
These were, in the main, the iikely suspects and 1t would
be a surprise to us if many others now emerge given the
economic cycle One of the core attractions of real estate
investing is the potential of indexed income and this is
showing tnrough and remains our focus

TR Property Irvestmert Tt st
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Earnings per share increased by 26% from 13.69p per
shareto 17.22p. This is an all-time high. Although
company earnings did in general recover to pre-
Covid-19 levels, our headline earnings were further
flattered by changes in the timing of some dividend
payments. More detail of this i1s set out in the
Manager's report.

The Bnard is pleased to announce a final dividend

of 6.85p taking the full year dividend to 15.50p,
representing a 6.9% increase. In determining the
dividend the Board has been very sensitive to investor
appetite for income but has also been conscious

of the underlying income growth and the potential
impact of interest and exchange rates on future
earnings

Following a record ievel of earnings in 2022/23, the
Board expect to report a reduction in net income for
the year to 2023/24 . This is not only as a resuit of the
non-recurrence of certain items which enhanced the
current year earnings, but also because of the number
of companies that have announced cividend cuts or
suspensions All companies have had to adjust to the
change in the price of debt. For some the impact has
been immediate, whiie for others it will be somewhat
delayed as they continue to benefit from historic
fixed rates. However, on the income side of the
eguation, index-linked rents will benefit. Companies
need to balance the pluses and minuses and some
have reacted quickly and cautiously to protect their
balance sheets. The medium to lenger-term outlook
for interest rates is difficult to predict sg it could be

a while before companies feel confident about the
longer-term outlook.

Gearing at 12 3% 15 an almost identical figure to that
at the half year. Inevitably these numbers are just
snapshots intime; the level of geaning has varied in
respense to the market volatility and as investment
opportunities have occurred.

Sterling weakened over the year by just cver 4%. This
marginally enhanced cur income account as non-
sterling dividends were worth more in sterling terms.

As our balance sheet is denominated in sterling a
weaker pound served to help the reported value of
non-sterling assets. The balance sheet exposure
remains matenially in line with the benchmark as we
hedge exposure to match the benchmark.

The discount of the share price tc the NAV widened
slightly over the year from -7.3% t0 -8 6% However,
the spread over the year has been much wider,
swinging between close to-1% and over -10%.

This volatility is indicative of the rapid changes in
sentiment towards the sector. The average over the
year under review was -5 8%, close 10 the 10-year
average of -4.9% and an improvement on the -6.6%
average since the invasion of Ukraine.

fn ight of the transient nature of the discount
volatifity, no share buy-backs or issues were made
during the year.

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

B Senchmark Total Return Bk TR Property Share Price Total Return
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Chairman’s statement
cantinued

i reported at the half year that we had commenced
the search for a new Director who would breaden
and strengthen the Board and add diversity of age,
experience and ethnicity. in January this year we
were delighted to announce the appoiniment of
Busola Sodeinde to the Beard as an independent
Non-Executive Director and we have greatly
appreciated her early insight and perspective on a
wide range of issues

We also announced my intention to step down from
the Board with effect from the conclusion of the
forthcoming AGM. As announced, Kate Bolsover
will succeed me as Chairman and Tim Gillbanks will
succeed Kate as Senor Independent Director.

ESG reports within annual accounts are becoming
longer and contain more and more detail. This

is whotly appropriate for an operating company
and we welcome the additional disclosure. Ag an
investment trust company and primarily an investor
in companies, we have to think about what ESG
should mean for us.

Our ESG approach covers three areas Firstly, the
governance and policies which apply directly to the
investment trust as a Company under the direct
control of the Board. Secondly, ESG considerations
as part of the investment process for our equity
portfolic adopted by cur Manager. Aithough our
Manager cannot have any direct control over ESG
nolicies in underlying investee companies, it can, and
does, use s influence carefully through corporate
voting and engagement with the companies in
which we invest. Thirdly, our Manager does have
control over cur direct property portfolic and here we
continue to drive for greater energy efficiency and
environmental care in all that we do

Our Responsible Investment Report on pages 16 1o
25 sets out our approach in each of these areas with
some case study examples. This s of course an area
of active evolution

CIT . RE
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Macro corsiderations continue to dominate. Markets
have had to absorb a huge adjustment in the cost of
capital and real estate equities have certainly borne their
share of price adjustments. However, this s an unusual
cycle where both rates and rents are rising. In many of
our areas of focus, real estate market fundamentals are
sound and we see few signs of over-supply. Our central
assumption is that the interest rate cycle will peak this
year but that inflation will remain above central banks'’
targets. Listed property cornpanies are generally more
conservatively geared than their private counterparts
and this should stand them in good stead. The sector
has been hit hard and many of our companies are
trading at large discounts tc asset values that have

also been recalibrated. As in previous cycles, if the
sector is undervalued then private capital will be quick

to step in. Just after the year end, Industrials REIT, one
of the Company's 10 largest holdings, announced a
recommended hid for cash at a 40% premium to the
undisturhed share price More recently in earty May,
Civitas, the social housing landlord announced a cash bid
from an Asian conglomerate at a simiiar premium. Thege
businesses are chalk and cheese but both have proved
attractive to very different groups of investors. These
events remind us that, for many, real estate is seenas a
crucial part of the investment jigsaw particufarty in these
inflationary times

David Watson

TF RProperty Iryestmant Trust
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Manager’s report

For a sector where returns are
anchored by income, these
levels of volatility and multiple
directional shifts are almost
unparalleled. The whole
period has been dominated
by the ebhs and flows around
interest rate expectations

and real estate fundamentals
have taken the proverbial
back seat. However, looking
forward, we anticipate a
renewed focus on those

sectors offering rental growth.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

The Company's net asset value (NAV') total return for

the 12 months to 31 March 2023 was -35.5%, whilst the
benchmark, FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe TR (in
GBP), fell -34.0%. These figures are clearly disappointing
but not materially different from those reported at the

half year, where the NAV had fallen -33.6% in the first six
months of the financial year. Equally important to note

is that these figures are snapshots in very volatile times.
To illustrate the point, the first four months of the second
half of the financial year (i.e October to January) saw our
universe rally +14.5% cnly to then give up ali of those gains
in the subsequent nine weeks. The end result was a finish
to the year which was marginally worse than where we
were at the half year stage.

In the half year review, | wrote that shareholders will

no doubt be concerned that given the scale of the
correction, the direction of trave! was obvious and more
protective action should have been taken 1 always looks
clear in hindsight but as we walk through the year in the
next few paragraphs, the dramatic swings in sentiment
will help explain some of the difficulties we faced in
trying to rotate the portfolio into the headwinds, avoid the
rip currents but then also catch the spring tides of
sentiment recovery

The first quarter of the financial year saw the sector

fall 24% as investors really focused on the impact of
rising interest rates. However, ycu could still have made
meney over a four-week period (in May and early June)
and this highlights the sense of sentiment rather than
facts driving markets in mid-2022. Everyone became
central bank-focused whilst real estate fundamentals
were ignored. July saw a strong reversal {(+9 5%) as bond
markets responded to the therne that rising interest rates
were having the required deflationary effect. However,
the summer break was followed by hawkish statements
from the US Federal Reserve at Jackson Hole and our
benchmark fell -30% between mid-August and mid-
October as investors began to believe the ‘nigher for
longer mantra. This severe bout of pessimism was

then followed by a +25% rally in pan-Eurcpean property
stocks between mid-October and the end of January

The tail end of the financial year saw this recovery then
ebb away with the sector falling 13% in the last two
months of the financial year.
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Managetr's report
continued

Benchmark Performance

M FTSE EPRAANAREIT Deveispec Europe Capped Totar Return Net GBP {Daily)

5%
-10%
-15%
-20%
25%

30%
-35%
-40%
-45% -
Mar-22

Apr-22 May-22 Jui-z2 Aug-22

For a 'value' sector where returns are driven - year

N, year aut — by income, these levels of volatility and
multiple directional shifts are almost unparalleled. What

is happering? Essentially, the whole period has been
dominated by the ebbs and flows around interast rate
expectations and bond market behavicur. Real estate
fundamentals have taken the proverbial back seat. A
longstanding real estate equity market observer with over
30 years experience recently wrote to clients 1 can't recall
a period of time when capttal values have fallen so sharply
and yet occupier demand in most sectors has remained
pretty robust’ 1 have reproduced the statement verbatim
as it neatly encapsulates the environment we find
ourselves in. In other words, yields are nising but so are
rents, this is atypical. It is now clear that, through 2022, 1
placed too much emphasis on this guality of earnings (and
indeed earnings growth} in many of our companies. The
market paid ittle heed, choosing to focus on the impact of
fising yields/capitalisation rates on asset values

The speed at which central banks responded, as
inflation gathered pace, tocok many participants by
surprise The rising cost of debt affected all property
stocks, but it had the greatest impact on two particuiar
cchorts of companies Those companies which had
successfully utilised unsecured bond market financing
now discovered that this source of (re)financing was
effectively shut. German residential businesses,
particuiarly the larger anes, Vonovia, LEG and the
more diversified Aroundtown {part owner of Grand
City Properties), are all seeing their cost of debt rise
dramatically as the expiry of existing bonds require
refinancing. The other heavily impacted group were
those with higher loan to vaiue compounded by high
levels of floating rate debt. The '1mpact on earnings

for this group has been dramatic and the majority of
Swedish companies fall into this category. Both these

=

Feb-23

Sep-22 Det-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Mar-23

cohorts share a couple of similar outcomes; firstly, those
companies which have reduced or suspended dividends
are dispropertionately represented and secondly, these
two groups have experienced the greatest volatility within
our universe. To illustrate the point, Swedish property
companies coltectively fell 40 5% in the year to 31 March
2023 however, within that period there were three sharp
bear market rallies of +17% {(May), +39% (July to mid-
August) and +53% (mid-October 1o the end of January).
These groups were highly susceptibie to changes in
sentiment towards the outlook for rates and margin on
new (or refinanced) debt instruments.

Previously, | have written about the merits of the market
fundamentals of German residential. The vast supply/
demand imbalance and the persistent widening of the
gap betweenrequlated rents and open market values
remains in place. What has been most frustrating is that
our fargest refative position in that area is Phoenix Spree
Deutschiand, which has no refinancing requiremenis
until 2026 and is a market minnow (portfolio value less
than £750m) where all sales, however few, will make a
difference performed in line with its larger cousns

Collectively the market capialisation of the German
residential businesses reduced by 57% Meanwhite, the
undertying asset values have corrected less than 10% in the
year and top line eamings have grown with vacancy levels
stable and the ‘mietspegiel’ (the rent table) continuing to
mcrease rents, albe at a sub-inflationary rate The asset
Class offers consstently iow vacancy. steady rental growth
and the opporturity to move to market rents through
refurbishment or sales to owner-occupiers As a resul,
yields steadily tightened as the cost of finance fell. By the
beginning of 2022, capitalisation rates were below 3%, fully
reflecting the stability and low risk profile of the income. At
such low capitalisation rates, a modest reversal upwards of
1000bps has a very dramatic effect on valuation

TR Property irsestmert Trast



Much the same effect was (el in the valuation of the
other low yielding sector - industral/lcgistics. This sector
had enjoyed & surge in investor demand as strong reatal
growth fuelled the attractiveness of the asset class and
we saw capitalisation rates tighten dramatically over the
last three years. Again, the impact of the abrupt rise in
the cost of debt led 10 a quick reversal in yields. However,
unlike regulated residential rents in Germany, which
deliver sub-inflationary growth, we are confident that
strong rental growth will persist in industrial/logistics
property given market fundamentals.

Offices continue to be the sector most under scrutiny
and rightly so. The repercussions and evolution of

the working frem home ('WFH’) regime are still being
waorked through by tenants and landiords. Much has
already been written on the topic and firm conclusions
are hard to pin down given the speed of change.
However, we are confident that since the half year we
have seen more data to support our current thesis.
Offices remain crucial infrastructure for knowledge-
based businesses - physical interaction is a vital part
of business life However, the amount of space required
has reduced whilst crucially the demand for better
guality space has risen. This demand for better quality
working environment is augmented by the requirement
for better energy efficiency and green credentiais. The
resuit is a historically wide market bifurcation between
best in class, well located, energy efficient buildings
and the rest Offices account for approximately 15% of
our benchmark and well over 50% of that exposureisto
London and Paris, hence our focus on those markets in
this commentary.

Gecina, our largest European office exposure (see top
12 hoidings) in their Q1 2023 results highlighted that
their prime inner Paris assets recorded an eye-catching
30% reversion, whilst their outer ring assets saw negative
reversion. Overall rental growth was positive at 7% but
that statistic highiights the gulf between the growth
achieved in central assets and the rest. Covivio, which
owns offices in Paris, Milan and several German cities
reported the same phenomenon, with central Mitan
recording solid demand and rental growth. Central
Londen office vacancy is elevated at 8%, however the
divide between West End (3 7%) and the City {11.9%,)

is almost as stark as it has ever been. The situation In
Docklands is even more dire with a number of major
financial institutions who have announced either a
reduction in their space requirements (including HSBC,
Citf and JPMorgan) or wholesale relocation {e.g. Cliffard
Chance). In the case of the latter, the firm is also cutting
Its space requirements by 40% One should be careful
not 1o read single statistic across to the wider market
as that particular firm has had excess space in Canary

Annual Renort & Accounts 20232

Wharf for several years. This increasing vacancy in
financial services-focused districls such as Canary
Wharf, La Defense and further afield Lower Manhattan is
a reflection of both WFH but aiso the lack of headcount
growth. This is a particular problem in London where
post Brexit, global financial services businesses continue
to increase their footprint in Paris, Frankfurt and Dublin
at the expense of London

This bifurcation of 'best and the rest’ can be clearly
seen in recent valuation in the specialist London office
landiords Great Portland reported in their H1 2023
results a divergence in performance based on their
buildings’ EPC (energy efficiency) ratings. Those at the
highest levels (A&B) saw value declines of 2.5% whilst
C&D rated were -4.2%. Derwent London produced data
based on values per foot. The most valuable {>£7 500 per
1) saw capital drift of -3.5% and rental growth of +2%,
whilst the least (<£1,000 per ft) saw value falls of -17 8%
and rental growth of just 0 3%,

Even though the best in ¢lass continues to enioy steady
rental growth, this is partly due 1o its scarcity. The bulk
cf all office markets are made up of much more average
product and take up levels in the post pandemic world
have been weak. Paris Centre West (the core) saw
available supply fall year on year (-19%) whilst it rose in
all other markets. The further out, the greater the supply,
with La Defense just +4% whilst the Inner Rim {(+35%).

All of this has fed through into negative sentiment
towards all offices except the best quality in the best
locations. MSCI/IPD's office sector capital decline in
H2 2022 was -15.7%, underperferming retail which fell
14 5%. Central London initial yield has moved 80bps
from 4.8% (December 2021) to 5.6% (January 2023).
As discussed many times, the UK's independent vaiuer
community have always attempted to mark-to-market
rather than the Continental approach which 1s mere
'mark-to-mode!’. The latter approach results in a
smoother correction of values but can equally lead to
the criticism that valuations are weefully histeric when
markets are correcting fast. As a result, we feel that
highlighting the modest moves in Continental European
valuations in H2 2022 would be misleading. They will
catch up over the course of 2023 and beyond.

-t o

it feels as though this much maligned asset class has
finally passed through the worst of the impact of the
shift to online retailing, the way we search for products
{and pricing) as well as the increasing demand for
entertainment/leisure ahead of more 'stuff’ The huge
reduction in values has been felt more acutely in the
UK Alengside the differences between the UK and
Continental European shopping malls, it is also cruciat
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Manager’s report
continued

to highlight the sub-sectors within retail as they have,
iargely, performed very differently over the last few years

The worst perfarming group remains the larger malls
which are, guite simply, too big with an excess of floor
space, often a shuttered department store (or two) and
a setvice charge with a chunky non-recoverable element
{due to voids). None of this is new information | hear you
say. Agreed However, the update is that we have now
seen capitulation by landlords (end lenders), rents have
re-rated (often halving) and vacant space beginning

to pe repurposed for gther uses. Malls must become
community hubs with a range of (lower value) uses
such as fitness, medical uses, nurseries, day care etc
Landsec successfully acquired the 50% of the St David's
Centre in Cardiff which they did not own_ The seller

was the administrator of Intu and Landsec acquired

the outstanding foans on the asset. The price equated
to a yield of over 9% on a rent roll which has dropped
materially over the last decade. We are confident that

at the night rents (and yields) those centres which can
reinvent themselves such as this dominant city centre
asset will deliver acceplable returns.

The strongest sub-sector remains retait warehousing

and outlet malls For different reasons both offer retailers

sales channels which complement online. In the case

of the former, it 15 the convenience and pricing of edge
of and out of town retail parks. Free home delivery will
become unsustainable from both a profit and an £SG
pergpective Click and collect and free returns to store
witl drive demand for these super convenient focations
The Company is a large holder of Ediston Property which
has announced a strategic reviaw given the subscale
size of the business We are nopeful that this will provide
furtner evidence of supportive valuations in the sector.
Qutlets help retailers offload lines without damaging

full price/premium offerings. The success of the likes

of Bicester Village (where Hammerson have a non-
controlfing stake) and Gunwharf Quay in Portsmouth
{owned by Landsec) are proof of the concept and we
remain confident about their prospects.

The combining of retail, leisure and food continues,
particuiarty in tourist destinations. BNP have highlignted
the pick-up in post Cowd footfall in the most upmarket
locations such as Regent St, Champs Elysees, Portal

de Angel (Barcelona), via def Corse (Rome) and
Kaufingerstrasse (Munich) with footfall ncreasing on
average by 1/3 and, in sorme cases, maore than 65% (Paris
and Munich)

Retail mvestment has been resilient, particularly in
Continental Europe where investors see affordahle rents
and higher yields than other sectors. Whilst investment
levels are unsurprisngly below the 2012 to 2022 decade
average, they did increase year on year ta €40 Thn (+2 6%)

-
-

according to BNP In the UK, retail warehousing continued 1o
dominate volumes (+60%) over 2027 and 2022, This figure
was lower across Europe and highlights the continued lack
of targe shopping centre transactions in the Uk,

UK logistics take-up in Q1 2023 was 8.6m sq ft, a slowing
when compared 1o a quarterly average of 12 Cmisgftin
2022 and 13 8m sq ft in 2027 but still ahead of the guarterly
average of 8.3m sq ftin the pre-Covid decade. Vacancy
remains at 3% and rents continue to nse. Against this
comfortable backdrop we saw yields rise by 175bps for
prime distribution units between June 2022 and March
2023. Such was the impact of the cost of money, whilst
market fundamentais are deermed less relevant Even an
asset with strong rental growth prospects cannot have a
capitatisation rate 200bps below the risk-free rate. However,
that pricing adjustrment has largely been completed in our
view. We are beginning 10 see stability in asset prices.

In Continental Europe the picture was very similar. Savilis
report 32m sq metres taken up in 2022 across the 13
largest markets, just 6% below the record year of 2021 and
ahead of the 5-year average in virtually all markets. Higher
construction and finance costs led 1o reduced speculative
construction maintaining the intense supply-demand
imbalance in so many markets. Qver €50bn was invested in
2022, again below the record of 2027 but well ahead of the
5-vear average Yield expansion {c T00bps) was much less
than in the UK but agam we expect upward pressure to ease
as fundamentals drive capital back into the sector.

We have long been cheerleaders for multi-iet industrials
{MLI1), generally terraces of smaller units, management
intensive, but often located in dense urban tocations
Very little new stock has been built over the last few
decades with alternative (multi-starey) uses being

far more valuahle. Renis remain low in many parts of
the country making new development unviable. The
tenant rosters have evolved hugely in the last 20 years,
undergoing ‘gentrification’ from beng the domain

of ight industriai ‘metal bashers’ to a much broader
swathe of uses, many born out of internet connectivity
and the ability to access customers directly. Our largest
exposure was through Industrials RE!T, where we owned
11% of the company. Just after the year end (3 Apnil)
Blackstone announced an agreed cash bid at a2 40%
premium to the undisturbed share price. The private
equity behemoth already has substantial exposure to
this sub-sector byt it is a timely reminder that f quality
assels are left undervaiued then private capital will
acquire thern. Our other MLI exposure is through Sinus
{65% Germany, 35% UK) and diversified names such as
Picton and London Metric (which acquired Mucklow in
2027 where we owned 5%). The healthy supply-demand
imbalance makes it a sub-sector we are keen to maintain
eXPOsUre 1o
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The shortage of private sector rental accommodation
remains acute, yet the listed companies focused on

this sector were amongst the poorest performers in

the financial year. This group of companies (mostly in
Germany and Sweden) highlighted how management
tearmms were lured into increased leverage given the
stabinty of the underlying income streams and occupancy
levels. However, very low yielding assets struggle to
provide positive cashflows when interest rates rise.

At the asset level, rentai growth has remained well below
current inflation rates given the backward-locking nature
of regulated rents We fully expect to see these rents
rise at historically fast rates as they factor in some of
the dramatic inflation datapoints. The serious shortage
of housing underpins long-term values. The fly in the
ointment is the cost of improving the energy efficiency of
this housing stock through both insulation and the type
of heating. In open market regimes such as the UK and
Finland, the cost of these improvements will be passed
through to rent prices. In regulated markets where only
a proportion of the capital expenditure can currently be
rentalised, this remains an impediment to rental growth

Within open market regmes such as the UK we have
seen strong rental growth threugh the combination of a
shortage of rental stock {amateur landlords teaving the
market due to higher regulation and lower tax efficiency),
high levels of employment/wage inflation and market
timing (where buyers decide to continue to temporarily
rent awaiting price corrections).

Purpose buiit student accormmuodation continues to fare well,
with rising numbers of students across the UK and Eurcpe.
The traditional accommodation alternative of private rented
houses (HMOs - Houses in Multiple Occupation) are reducing
as reguiation pushes up licensing costs and (correctly) impedes
overcrowding and sub-standard accommedation. Unite, our
fargest student accommadation stock was one of the few
companies to see positive capital value appreciation in 2022
with 4% annualised growth It has recently increased its rental
growth outlook for academic year 2023/24 from 5% 10 6-7%.
Self-storage continues to confound the sceptics. Rate
growth and occupancy have begun to normalise post the
‘Covid boom’ but remain encouragingly positive. Safestore,
our largest holding in the sector, enjoyed like-for-like rentai
growth of 10.7% in the year to October 2022,

Hotels particularly leisure and tourist focused have also
enjoyed strong growth as consumers continue to make up for
lost opportunities to travel in 2020 and 2021. Recent STR data
highlights London hotels across the quality spectrum showing
RevPAR growth of +22% year on year. UK hotels ex London
was also strong at +11% year on year and 25% versus 2019,

Aprual Report & Accounts 2022

Healthcare was the poorest performer of the alternatives
group. Profitability of private care providers is being
constantly squeezed through wage and cost inflation
Continental European healthcare operators have been
rocked by the scandal at Orpea The level of state support,
both direct and indirect, are the crucial figures required by
investors. Even then, the rate of rental growth can be guite
pedestrian as seen at Primary Health Properties and Assura.

Both debt and equity markets were very subdued durnng
the year. The total capftal raised in 2022 was €14bn
compared to £37bnin 2027 and £21bn in 2020. Over
£9bn of the total raised in 2022 was debt in the first
cguarter. To lllustrate the change in pricing over the

last year, we need only review the maost prolific 1ssuer,
Vonovia, Europe’s largest property company. in March
2022, it issued 4, 6 and 8 year maturities totaliing €2.5bn
priced at 1.375%, 1.875% and 2.375% respectively. By
November, new 2027 and 2030 maturities were costing
4.75% and 5.0%

Short-dated leverage risked the vicious cycle of
Increased interest costs resulting in lower earnings, so
risking credit downgrades leading to even higher cost of
debt. Leverage needed to be reduced to defend earnings;
if asset sales weren't possible then equity (even when
trading at deep discounts to asset values) needed to be
raised through rights issues.

At the half year, | detailed the capital raising by TAG
Immohbilien, who had over stretched themselves with the
acquisition of a Polish housebuilder. They raised £€200m
at a 27% discount to the theoretical ex-rights price to
help pay off the bridging loan from the acquisition. In
Novernber, VGP g Belgium logistics deveioper raised
£302m. This was more front-footed with the raise
diluting NTA by 10% in a one for four share issuance.
The business is overly dependent on selling assets into
Allianz private funds and this capitat makes them less
dependent on one customer. The CEC and CFO own 4%
of the equity and ‘stood their corner’ which reassured
nvestors. In Sweden, Catena, another logistics developer
raised SEK 1 4bn (£135m} as 1ts share price hovered
close to NTA and, whitst small, it was unusual as it was
an accelerated bookbuild and not a rights issue Balder
raised SEK 1.8bn which it used to repay a hybrid bond
and strengthen its overall balance sheet.

The only merger and acquistion activity in the 12
manihs ie 31 March (the privatisation of Industrials
REIT was announced on 3 April} were two mergers,
both widely expected but the timing less sure. The
joining of Shaftesbury and Capco finally happened after
a tortuously long period of negotiation, capped off by

a CMA review on whether the combined entity could

be a price setter. The most disappointing aspect for
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Manager’s report
continued

sharehoiders (we do not own either company) was
that the deal resuits in the repayment of much of
Shaftesbury’s cheap debt due to a change of control
provision. When coupled with further increases in
debt costs next year and some extraordinarily high
advisor fees {(given it was an agreed transaction)
there will be precious little earnings benefit from

the anticipated synergies The other mearger was
petween LXI and Secure Income REIT on a NAVY for
NAV basis. It was a much more straightforward
affair. We were a large shareholder in SIR and
benefited immediately as the 12% discount closed
to NAV The managers of SIR were also large
shareholders in the company and their excellent
timing in previous property cycies was once again on
disptay They even sold the management company
which had a contract 1o run SIR for the next three
years.

Portfoho turnover {purchases and sales divided by
two) totalled £477m in the year, considerably less
than the £549m in the previous year. With average
net assets over the year of £1.18bn, turnover

was 40% of net assets, which was higher than

the previous year's figure of 36% and reflects the
volatility in the year.

in the half year report, 1 recorded that each raily then
trended down to a new low and therefore virfually

all buys looked poor and all sells locked clever,

The second half of the year saw the largest and
longest recovery from October to the end of January,
followed by the most dramatic correction back to the
October lows, this new low point virtually cotnciding
with the year end. Throughout the year, the renewed
bouts of negative sentiment towards the sector
were based on either a change in the outlook for
interest rates (and the concern that central banks'
benaviour would become more hawkish) or renewed
speculation of a failure in the credit transmission
mechanism. Essentially, investor sentiment was
driven by the expectation of the change in the price
and availability of debt

In hindsight, maintaining our long-standing
discipline of buying {or adding) to companies where
we felt confident in the resilience of earmings driven
by market fundamentals just wasn't enough.

Az would be expected, we have carefully analysed

all of our companies’ batance sheet capacity (in
terms of the quantum of leverage, cost and duration
of debt). In many cases, the market had quickly
adjusted the earnings expectations but what became
apparent as the year progressed was that we were
being overly rational about these revised earnings

- A

(s

forecasts. The markel was not interested in supply and
demand at the property/occupational market level or
whether there were still profits to be achieved from the
gevelopment pipeling.

The ability of the market pendulum to (over} swing
hetween exuberance (greed) and metancholy (fear} was
very much in evidence and we battled 1o

react accordingiy

A good exampie of this was our collective underwelght

to Swedish property companies. Whitst this call was our
largest contributor to positive relative performance over
the year, the volatility in the group resulted in muttiple
phases af repositioning. Whilst ihe broad statement that
Swedish property companies are amongst the most
leveraged in our investment universe is true, sorme are
cbviousty more exposed than others. It was therefore
crucial to understand which company would suffer the
fastest earnings degradation from rising interest rates but
als0 10 assess when the market had over reacted Those
most at risk were those exposed to bond markets rather
than bank lending or had complex hybrid instruments
dreamt up by bankers when money was cheap. The scale
of share price volatility is best expiained in a handful

of figures. EPRA Sweden fell -42% in the first quarter

only to recover +33% in the next six weeks followed by
another 40% drop to mid-October and then the iong
recovery (+36%) to the end of January, foliowed by a
renewed bout of nerves sending the sector down almost
ta the October lows. These figures are the collective
impact of 18 companies For the mest leveraged {(SBB,
Castellum, Corem and Balder) the volatility was far greater.
Underiying property market fundamentals de not drive this
level of price action, this was caused by changes in the
market outlook for the cost/availability of debt impacting
on a tiny market segment {free float capitalisation of just
£20bn)

Qur exposure to German residential was the poorest
asset allocation decisron of the year. | rermamed
convinced, for toc iong. that the market fundamentals of
virtually full occupancy and (sub-market) regulated rents
wouid underpin investor sentiment The fact that even at
prices a year age all of these names were trading below
the reinstatement cost of the underlying assets mattered
not a jot The market focused exclusively on the impact
of the cost of debt Dunng the year we reduced exposure
N the larger names (Vonovia, LEG) but maintained

the holding in Phoenix Spree, the srall Berlin focused
vehicie. It is an externally managed fund which has an
annually renewed contract with (Six, tne manager. its
assets are ali prime Berlin, where open-market rents
continue to grow The share price total return in the year
was -50%. | remain convinced that once prices stabilise
the smaller companies will benefit disproportionately
from the impact of portfolio sales With a market cap of

TR Progerty irvestment Trust



just £190m and the share price at half the asset value,
it is an excellent example of a portfolio of assets which
are no longer benefiting from being held in a listed
company.

With the price of money rising so rapidly in the year,

it was the lowest yielding assets which saw the most
aggressive repricing and so it was with German (and
Swedish) residential. The compression in yields in
the previcus five years was a rational response to
the combination of strong market conditions, {high
occupancy and rental growth) combined with very
low cost of borrowing This strong yield compression
{and capital value growth) was even greater in the
industrial/logistics sector. The structural tailwinds
have been discussed, ad nauseum, in previcus reports.
For many markets these persist but capitalisation
rates had simply been driven too low with insatiable
investor appetite for assets with income growth.

The reversal {yield expansion) described earlier was
dramatic and the sector was hit very hard. Again,

our smaller companies suffered disproportionately
as they fell alongside larger names on the way down
but often failed to catch the bounce in any recovery.
We are confident that these conservatively managed
businesses with the right amount of leverage and
quality portfolios will perform well. However, if the
stock market continues to undervalue them, then no
one should be surprised when more privatisations
occur. inthe industral group in the UK, [ would include
Industrials REIT, Picton Property and CT Property
Trust. Whilst in Europe the list would inciude Argan,
Sirlus and Catena.

With the lowest yielding (highest growth) names
suffering from capitalisation rates rising above the
new cost of debt, it was the highest yielding sectors
which suffered the least from this devaluation. Retail
property has clearly been out of favour for many years
as the weakening in tenant demand for physical retall
space continued. In Continental Europe, we focused
on Eurccommercial and Klepierre given their high

earnings yield but crucially their secure balance sheets.

We avoided Unibail-Rodamco and Wereldhave. Here
you have two companies at either ends of the asset
quality spectrum but both suffered from weak balance
sheets and the need to de-leverage. Unibail announced
2 years ago its infenfion to sell its US portfolio whilst
Wereldhave has continued to sell assets whenever

it can. European retail as a suhset cutperformed the
full benchmark and our stock selection alse added to
perfarmance with Unibail -27 5% and Klepierre -2.5%
over the year.

UK retail is now a srmall part of the listed universe.
For most investors the only way to gain exposure
is through the diversified portfolios of Landsec

annuat Report & Accoums 2023

and British Land The bulk of our exposure is through
Ediston Property which owns only retail warchouses.
However, 1Its market cap at £140m 15 too small for the
listed market and we applaud the announcement from
the board that they are carrying out a strategic review
for the future of the company. We remain hopeful that

a merger with another listed company is a viable option
which will ensure the assets remain in the listed space
The company was a relative outperformer in the year
{(-18%) as were virtually all the high yielding retail names
Hammersnn remains a play on corporate reconstruction
rather than a bellwether for retail preperty. We believe
they are on the right path and we opened a holding in
the year. The crown jewels are the minority ownerships
in the premium outlet malls controlled by Value Retait,
investors will need to remain patient as the breakup will
take time, but value is reappearing.

Investors' attiludes towards office property has been
highlighted earlier. We fully subscribe to the bifurcation
of returns between the best and the rest Smaller
European cities have also performed better with lower
WFH and higher occupancy levels. We have sought
greater exposure to those cities through Arima (Madrid),
Wihlhorgs (Malmo, Lund) and Fabege {Stockhoim). Core
CBD exposure in the largest cities has been through
Gecina (Paris), Great Portland and Landsec (London).
We have also added to the short lease, flexible offering
business model through Workspace (London) and Sirius
(primarily German flexspace). Both of these names

had a poor year with tetal returns of -35% and -32%
respectively but we found recently published operational
data reassuring. Landsec (-16%)} was a top perfcrmer as
it continued 1o reduce leverage through sales of newly
completed prime offices in Central London. We are
strong advocates of capital recycling and expect to see
more sales from non-core assets such as hotels and
leisure.

In the alternatives space, our gverweight 1o self-storage
was entirely through Safestore (-27%) rather than Big
Yellow (-21%). Safestore has outperformed on a three-
year and five-year view but clearly not in this last period.
In fact, we find it hard to choose between these two

very well managed companies. Both own Irreplaceable
estates with core holdings in densely populated areas.
Demand for space has been remarkably stable given

the economic backdrop. Unite (-16%), the student
accommodation provider, was another relative winner

in the year. The combination of increased earmnings
guidance and solid market evidence on modest yield
maovement continues to support the asset class

Both these asset types have intensive operational
requirements and we are confident that the market
undervalues the ptatform through the traditional asset
value model. This was certainly the case with Industrals
REIT where Blackstone paid a premium for the operating
business alongside the assets.
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Manager’s report
continued

As noted in the Chairman's Statement, the current
year's income benefited from a number of non-recurring
iterms. Eurocommercial and Swiss Prime both changed
their pattern of distributions during the year effectively
resulting in an additional hatf year payment from

each of these companies. The Argan annual dividend
which generally goes ex-dividend on or around the last
business day in March therefcre moves between March
and April. In the year to 31 March 2023, we received
dividends in April 2022 and March 2023, resulting in two
full year payments. If the dividend due around 31 March
2024 tfalls back into next April, there will be no income
recorded from this company in the year to March 2074
We have no control over these timings and there are
several companies where dividends go ex-div around
the year end Each of three holdings noted above are
approximately 2.5% of the portfolio so this has had

a significant impact. Without these (and the smalt
enhancement due to foreign exchange movements), we
estimate the earnings would have been around 1.13p
lower than reported. The dividend for the year to March
2023 is therefore well covered.

The dividend for the previous two years was partly paid
out of revenue reserves as the effects of COVID forced
revenue down. In 2022/23, the earnings, adjusted for the
one-offs set out above, are just over 10% higher than the
last reported period befare COVID-19 (bheing the year to
31 March 2019). The full year dividend ta 31 March 2023
is almost 15% ahead of the pre-COVID dividend as the
Board recognises the importance of a growing dividend
10 our shareholders.

Looking ahead to the 2023-24 financial year, at this
stage, we expect to report a fall in earnings. This is partly
explained by the one-off adjustments highlighted above
However, the additional impact is from the number of
the German residential and Swedish companies that
have announced dividend suspensions and/or cuts as
they work to reduce their gearing levels in the face of
rising debt costs The residential names in particular
are making progress with their disposal programmes
50 we expect ta see ther dividends resuming, although
possibly at a lower level, in the not too distant future

The impact of higher interest rates will feed through to
earnings as fixed or capped debt structures come up for
refinancing. The impact of this of course depends on the
duration of such debt packages and this vanes hugely
Across our companies. it 1s encouraging to note that

for most of them, the majority of their debt is fixed (or
capped) untit 2026 and beyond

On a more encouraging note, top line revenue is
benefiting from inflation. All of gur European companies
and a significant number of our UK names benefit from
rents tinked to some form of indexation. It vanes widely
across countries and sectors but is clearly an important
part of our revenue growth trajectory.

Although the revenue for the forthcoming vear is likely
1o be under some pressure given all these competing
factors, we are optimistic that growth will return over
the medium term. Market fundamentals continue to
drive arganic rental growth in so many of our sectors. In
the meantime, the Company still has plentiful revenue
reserves to maintain dividend fevels over short term
income falls, as was seen through the COVID-19
pandemic

Gearing began the year at 10.2%, increased t¢ 12.0% by
the half year and fimshed the year at 12 2%. This does
not represent the changes in gearing seen throughout
the period as gearing has been actively changed
inresponse to the very vaniable market conditions
throughout the year and has ranged between 10%

and 16%.

The cost of cur debt has increased through the year

as our revolving credit facilities and CFD financing

are linked 1o SANIA (or other currency equivalents)
However, animportant part of our debt book are the
EUR 50m and GBF 15m loan notes both at fixed rates of
interest. The combination of the fixed and floating rate
debt gives us a high degree of flexibility with some price
stability at lower fevels of gearing. Generally, where
higher levels of gearing are appropriate {so drawing on
the floating rate financing} the market conditions are
such that returns are not too sensitive to the pricing.

In the year to the end of March the physical property
portfolio produced a total return of-13.7%, made up of
a capital return of -17.5% and an income return of 3.8%.
The MSCIManthly UK Property index returned -14 7%
aver the same period, made up of anincome return of
sO%andacaptal faof 18 8%
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During the year we sold the residential element of the
Celonnades development for £5m on a new 999 year
lease at a peppercorn rent. The value of this element

is determined by the outstanding lease extensions
remaining on the individual Nats. During the Company’s
ownership we completed lease extensions over 75% of
the flats and received more than £12.5m in premiums
In addition, the sale facilitated the simplification of the
leasehold structure of the asset. The Company has
retained the freehold of the island site as well as all the
commercial elernenls The locality continues to improve
with the redevelopment of the old Whiteleys shopping
centre nearing completion. This is animportant next
phase In the further gentrification of Bayswater.

It was a busy 12 months for asset management at
Ferrier Street, Wandsworth. The strategy remains to let
the estate on a short-term basis, retaining the flexibility
for either a refurbishment of the existing or a more
comprehensive redevelopment under the planning
permission secured in June 2022. During the year the
Company concluded 10 new leases (five renewals and
five new lettings) covering over 50% of the estate. This
secured over £500,000 of rent with the average rent on
new leftings exceeding £30 per sq. ft. The attractiveness
of the estate continues to benefit from the further
reduction in supply of London industrial space, whilst
the depth of demand from occupiers has increased.
The diversity of our occupiers reflect this broad based
demand and range from photographic studios to food
production and even a plant nursery

Arnuzl Keport & Accounts 2023
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Inftaticnary pressuies persist. Central banks appear
resolutely determined to remain hawkish with another
round of base rate increases in May Whilst a relatively
blunt instrument, there are signs that the medicine of
increased interest rates is having the required effect with
reduced retail sales growth Energy has been a major
driver of cost inflation and the spot price of gas has
fallen back to pre-invasion prices. This wili soon begin to
feed intc lower headline inflation figures and alsc reduce
the likelihcod of a recession. We expect wage inflation,
driven by high empioyment ievels, to persist, resulting in
inftation remaining ahead of central banks’ target rates.

Against this backdrop real estate fundamentals, in

our preferred sectors, remain solid with little signs of
over-supply and stable demand. Economic growth is
likely to be at best anaemuc, for a while, and speculative
development will remain subdued. Income, often index-
linked, will remain the key valuation underpin. We will
maintain our focus on the most judiciously leveraged,
avoiding those with large near-term refinancing
requirements, With such a large number of well financed
listed companies, we also expect opportunities to gather
assets from those struggling to refinance in a world
where debt availability is getting more restricted.

The sector has a long tail of micre-cap companies

and we continue 1o encourage boards to explore the
opportunities for consolidation where it improves share
liquidity and reduces costs. Gtherwise, we will continue
to see the steady stream of privatisations as these
smaller companies are attractive bite sized morsels for
large private real estate owners. Whilst the Company has
often benefited from these premium bids (and continues
to hold a wide range of small caps) we also believe that
growing the number of larger companies is in the best
interests of the sector and investors.

As we go to print at the beginning of dune, we are
pleased to report an all-paper bid by London Metric
{market cap. £1,700m) for CT Property Trust (£180m)
The Company cwns 10% of CT Property Trust and the
price rose 25% on the announcement.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Furd Manager
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Responsible investment

Introduction

The Board recognises tne 'mportance of corsiderning
Environmental Social ard Governance (ESG ) factors
wnen makirg investments and in acting as aresponsibie
steward of capital This covers the Campanrys own
responsibilities or governance and reparting and, the
most material way in wh'ch the Company can nave
animpact, through responsit'e cwnersnp of the
nvestments that are made or its bena f by its Marager

1. The Company's own approach to
Corporate Governance and Reporting
Maintaining a nigh ieve. of Governance ard d sclosare

i1 the Company's own operations and report.ng

s extrernely important. Qur Furd Managers are
encauragng and supparting this from the companies
1 wrich we invest and we cannot fall short ¢f these
standards ourselves

The Compary's compliance with the AIC Code of
Corporate Goverrance s detal'ed in the Corperate
Governance Report on page 50

Urder Sectior: 414 of tne Compares Act 2006 there s

a reguiter~ent to detarl informat on abodt ermpoyee and
human nghts, including information about ary pa'ices
M relation to these matters and the effectiveness of
tnese policies Astne Company has no employees. this
requiremenrt does not apply Tne Company s ot within
the scope of the UK Modern Siavery Act 2075 because .t
nas not exceeded the turnover thresnold ard is therefore
not obliged to make a slavery and human trafficking
staternent The Drectors are sat.sfed ik at, 1o the pest

of tnet knowledge, tne Compary's pring'pa’ suppliers
which are histed on page 120 conrpy with the provisions
of tne UK Modern Slavery Act 2C15 These are principally
profess:onal advisers ard service providers .n the fimargal
sery.ces ndusiry consequertly the Board considers the
Cormpany to be low nskinrelatcn tc this matter

Tre Beard cuirently comprses three ma.e Directors
ardirreefe~a'e Dreciors Tre Board aso meets tre
FCa's roes tar dvers ty and irclusor, fo'lowing the
recommendatiors of tre Parker Revew

The activii:es of tre Nom nation Lo rittee .nre at.or
to Board changes are referred to v t7e No~rat on
Comrittee Repert on pages sbard 57

Tre Boards dwversiy po cy s cutl red i~ more detag: ~
tre Corporate Goverrance Report

Tre Compary Fas 1c greenhouse gas enn'ssions to repcrt
fro~ .ts operations nor does it nave respons.bi ty forary
otner e ssioTs produc ng scLrces Lader the Cormpar es
Act 2006 iStratege Report and Drectors Reporis

e

Regulations 2013} Investment trust comparies are
currently exempt from reporting aga.nst the Task Force on
Chmate-Reated Financia! Diaclosures (TCFDY), however,
the Frnancial Conduct Autherity (FCA) nas now pubiished
regulations tnat requre the Comrpany's Manager, as its
Alternative Investment Fund Manager (AIFM) to report
aga:nst TCFD at bot- the AIFM and product evei by June
2024 Th.smeanstnat there wih be a TCFD disclosure
specific to tne Company's portfoho ava.labe inthe future,
wh.ch wil be publisned on the Manager's website Tne
Marager has produced a report on its overal ciimate
change approach which s structured using the TCFD
categornes a~dis avanable on itls webste

2. Our Portfolio Manager's Approach to ESG
Cur Portfone Manager's phimary duty .S 1o pursuetre
objective set out at the beginning of this annual repart,
whicn s tonvest in property ard property reiated
compan.es with the objective of exceeding the returrs of
ouJr benchmark

The Company has not set ot 1ts stall to be an ESG
focused fur-d however, as a .ong-term investcr,
governance and susta nabnity cansiderations nave
aiways been embedded « our Manager's mvestment
process. ESG risk assessments and considerations are
factors wricn feed into the imvestment decis.ons Th's
reflects the belief that strong goverrance combined with
a respons'bie approach 1o socal ebligations ard tne
cormmitment 1o protect our envirgnment wi'l ertance
Sharehaoder returns in the ong term

I~ the part of the portfalia trat is invested d.rectly into
commercial real estate we endeavour 1o practice what
we preach

LISTED EQUITY PORTFOLIO

As & ded.cated ‘pvestorir tne property sector oor Marager
2 not having 1o cong der some of the rore cortrovers:al
areas of wnat iz ethica nvestrment However we are
~vestirg 1 bu .dirgs where constructicr ard ongomng
rManagement ~ave a direct mpact o the emvironment
Al oroperty § 0 sOTe way de Verng a SOCIa purpose
Modern herdorg pract ces are very mJc” vore focosed
onredue g erergy corsarpt o and effic ency than i
tre past Propert'es have varying Mespans but are bant
fortreiongter™ Cider boidrgs wrich are 'ess energy
efficient tnan tner moderr courterparts are a fact of

fe trer rep.aceent nas w der erv ronretal and
S50C°a repercLss ors as wen as hage cost mpicatiors
Trey are gorgto forr part of tre ~vestb.e Lniverse for
t~eforesesabefoture a~dtrer effic ert mproverrert
and managere~t s51Jstas mpaortart ag ensur rg new
develcpments fol'cw tne »gnest posshie ervirarmental
stardards Altnoug™ oder baldings w . most tkery show
nferior scores totre rmore "odert counterparts on a

TR Brogerty Investment Trus:



number of enrvironmental measures, we are lcokirg for
demonstration of best efforts to:mprove these measures,
recognising that there wi'l be Pmitations or what can be
achieved but wanting 1o see a pos'tive direction of travel

There are two fundamental considerat:ons 1o investmert
In property companies the assets themselves and therr
management The Manager seeks to invest in long-term
assets whicn are imanaged by qualty teams in a well
governed corporate structure As aresult, there has been
g long-slanding and strong cuiture of stewardstip in the
Manager's ‘nvestmert approach. The Manager believes

that engaging with comparies is best in the first instance,

rather than simply divesting or exciuding investment
opportunities. However, there are instances where
governance matters have driven a decision not to invest
T acompary Asone of the largest teams investing in
pan-Earopeanr real estate equities, cur Manager meets
with a significart number of management teams of
mvestee and potential rvestes companies each year and
has a robust record of engagement, with an agenda of
reduc.ng rsk, mpraving perfarmarce ard encourag.ng
best practice Thisis augmented by the strength of
Columbia Threadneedle s Responsible Investment

teamn and its broader engagermert. Over the course of
the year, our manragement team participated in 227
individaal or group meetings with companies and their
maragement teams.

The Manager :s committed to responsible investment
ard s actively developing new procedures and ways In
which information is gathered and used to support their
engagement with companies on ESG matters

Corporate Governance disclosure requirements have
increased transparency enormously in recent years and
erabled cioser scruting and engagement on Governance
ssues for some years Environmental measdres are now
rapidly coming to the fore and, with wider disclosure
requirements being placed upon gur investee companies,
the Manager 1s increasingly able to scrutinise otner
measi.res such as ciimate change and sustainabiiity
policies and outcomes.

However, the Board and Marager are stii of the view tnat
the ESG rating industry and its approack and processes
nas significant lirritatiors, making 1t difficu't to draw

true compansons and make fully informed decisions

The assessments from the various data providers

reach different conclusions as they do not all score in &
consistent way. Some of the assesgments aie subjective
and different data providers bave different definitions and
critera.

Annual Report & Accounts 7023

This may eventually converge into some form of
consensus or standardisation but it stili has a way to

go Conceptuaily, making ESG comparisens between
companies and portfolios appears simple, but itis
actually rather compiex and it s imiportant to ensure that
valid comparisens are being made. As the shortcomings
are being uncovered ard i~e different approacnes

h ghi ghted we hope that this will put pressare on the
data providers to improve the quality and clarfy the basis
of therr analys's Tre data services are subscrbed to so
have to be ‘it for purpase

Having ncted the shortfa'ls above with the data colected
frem the different providers, our Manager is enhancing
the way in which ESG date .s co lected and compared
Treir own company database covers financial and
operational information together with extens’ve
modeiling ESG data is beng colated alongside this,
allowing comparisons to be made more easily betweer
tne various data sources for a single company and
nterrogated rather than relying on high level "scores”
Interactions with companies on ESG matters are

noted and progress. or otherwise, can be tracked more
efficiently

The Manager is trerefore dedicating direct resource to
the analysis of the information ava'lable and also has
the benefit of input from its award-winning Responsible
Investment Tear Thus is work in progress and a
signficant investment in resource but T wil improve the
Marager's ability to engage with our investee companies
or env.rronmental matters and play cut our responsible
nvestment aims

It is crucial to disaggregate between quality companes
which also have strong ESG credentials and companies
which may appear to have strong ESG credentials (or
the surface at least) but wil' make poor irvestments Cne
example of 171s approach 1s Home REIT. Or the face of it
Home REIT's ESG credertials appeared strong given the
company’s business mode 1s focused on the provision
of accommodation to help tackle homelessness 'n the
UK In addition, ts leases are 100% "green” meaning
Home and i1ts tenants agree to ident'fy and rmplerment
appropriate strategies for the improvernent of the
properties’ environmertal performance. However, we
elected not to partic:pate in tne company’s IPO, and

the tund has never owned the shares subsequently, as
we had reservations about tne overall economics of

the business We were concerned about the covenant
quality of the tenarts (often newly-fonmed charities)
and beleved that the long lease structures put in place
by Home REIT nisked overstating a real'stic value of

tne underlying assets. This approach proved correct

- short selier Viceroy pubhished a report or Home

REIT in Noverrber 2022 which hughtighted numerous
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Responsible investment
continued

concerns with the business and the company hias beern
investigated by reguiatory hodies on a number of tems
inrecent meontts. The shares are currerty s.spended
pending a decision over the future of the business,
naving dropped 61% from the original IPO price

An example of a jarge Folding where we believe tne ESG
credentials compiement tne investment case 1s Lardsec
As well as adher ng to the governance standards

we would expect from a leading isted company, the
compary alsc has a c.eary oatined sustanabi'ity
framework This ncludes long-leim targets, progress
agamnst which s regularly monmitored ard preserted
back to investors suchk as operationa; carbor emissiors
reduction of 70% by 2030 (with a 2013/14 baseline) and
average embod ed carbon reduction of 50% compared
w.th a typical building by 2030 The compary's rewest
developments, whicn in 0ol view contribute pos.tivery

to the investment case giver their abuity to contribute
to both earnings and et targihie asset value over time,
are also all net zero buldings, which we believe will
cortrbute to animproved renta’ growth tone wher the
assets are let. As such thére 1s a symbiotic reiationsh.p
betweer the company’s strong ESG credentials and 13
dnderiying economic performance

Governance

Governance covers matlers sJuch as board structure,
effectiveress, diversity and mdeperdence, executive
pay ard cniter.a, sharehaoider rights and financiat and
governance reporting and standards

The Manager has o corporate governance voting pohcy
whicn, nits ep.nior, accords wih currert best practice
whilst mamtamng a primary focus on firancia returns
The exercise of voling ngrts attacned 1o the portfo'io
mas been delegated to the Manager Where practicab'e,
at sharehold'rgs were voted at al' comparny meetings
Intne financ at year in accordance with Coumrbea
Trreadreedle’'s owr corporate governarce po. ces Ts
ers.res inat a strorg corsistert approach s taker to

proxy votirg whicr backs up and reirforces engage~ent,

takes a robust i "2 on key governance 3S.es Suir as
exeC.tive pay a~d integrates envirgrimenta soca &
diversity ss.es ard sustanab. ity practices to tne
vl g process.

Columbia Trreadneed'e’s Stewardsnp Repert 2022
prondes morewfor—ator or As fir-leve stewardsnp
po Ces aswe'las now these comply v i the

expectat ans of t~e UK Stewardsh p Code 2020 1o wer o
tme Mananer s asgratory s stater-ert of corp arce
ca~ be found o the websie at

Mps vy co'umrhiathread-eed e comien

D.rrgthe fina~c a vear tne Marager voted ags ~st at

[au]

ieast ane management proposal at 52% of shareholder
meetings This represents 13% of total tems voted Of
tha tems voted against, the proposals car be broadly
categorised as foliows

3% 2%

Remuneration
Shérehoider'mghts
Election / Reelection of
Directors

Share repurchaée policy

Director terms
Ratify Auditor

For tre year, the Manager ergaged with 24 companies
directiy on arange of ESG related matters These
engagerments were conducted at boll the board and
sen.or execdtive leve as well as directly w.tn investor
relaticns Topics of engagement were spit as folows

1] Chmate Cﬂhange
" Environmental Standards
| Labour Standards
n Corporate Governance
] Human Rights

The Marager tracks the miestores of the engagement
strategy and has seer progress this year or a number

of ratters Examp.es inciude the pubi catior of
sastamabi y reporis and board accountaly ity on nunan
rgtts risk management

Social

A bu'dings nave a soc.a furclion 1o sore extert,
prov-dirg p-aces to hve work eat srop store ete
Maragemert of bu Idings reeds to ensure a~y soc'a:
Chgatons to the oooLpants are metir terms of

Hea'th & Safety eTpoyee Taragemrent ard welbeng
a~d commitrre~t to corrurities Most of trese

b gators are tne regpors b v of the terart but cur
~vestee compar es are obhiged (o report or rratiers
affectrgirer cwnerpoyees a~d s.or staterents are

2o7s dered
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Environmental

Environmental poices i tne property sector focus
largely on sustairabihity and clirate change Cirmate
change s ane of the defining challenges of modern times

The management team Fave sourced data and research
from several providers, ncluding the Columbia Threadreedle
Responaible Investment tea™, MSCI and Globai ESG
Benchmrark for Real Assets (GRESB)

The guantity and depth of data avalabe it our sector
varies greatly, the larger companses row have teams
dedicated to providing environmenta’ impact data and
reporting. However many of cur companies are small and
do not currenty have the resources to contribute data

to the orgarisations providing analysis to the investor
commurity. AS a consequence, we see strong correiatiors
betweer company size, maturity and overall scores Since
our irvestment strategy leads s to own focused mid-sized
companfes n preference 1o some of the larger diversified
ones, the portfolios overall ESG score migrt tend to be
Jrflatter ng compared to the wider benchmark. The rigour
of our process ersures that tnese companies receive
scrutiny by the team

GRESB is a missien-driver and investor-led organisation
providing standardised and validated ESG data to the
capital markets Estabushed in 2009, GRESB now covers
over UsD Strillor in real estate assets. publishing i) an
annual real estate assessment score for participating
coTpanies, and i) a pubic disclosare score for al; listed
real estate companies. The real estate assessment score
rarks Ervironment, Sccial and Governance metrics based

Data coverage as % of weight of the invested equity portfolio

Real Estate Assessment
' ~ Benchmark

Fund
Rated 6% 2%
Unrated S 34% 38%
Total 7 100% 100%

" Public Disclosure”

on data contnibated directly from participating companies,
whist the public disclosure score evaluates the level of ESG
disclosure by 1sted property companies and REITs.

Further detail on GRESB ca~ be found at
www gresh com

For 2023 there 1s increased GRESB Real Estate
Assessment coverage of the Company's equity portfolio
166% from 50%)

German residentia' companies representing 11 6% of the
index do not submit data 1o GRESB due to the requirerment
to submit data at the asset or buillding ievel and concerns
around farr comparisons of data aggregation We continue
10 engage with GRESB, encouraging them to modify the
requirements to encolrage wider participation.

MSCTESG research covers a wide range of environmental
impact measures nciuding CO2Z and greenhouse gas
eMmissIons, energy and water usage, in additon to wider
corporate governance scores Further detail can be found at
www MSCl com/our-solutions/esg-investing/esg-ratings

Coverage of our sector reduced from 99% 10 96% and the
Compary's portfolio increased from 89% 1o 96% Where
coverage is based on public data, a significant proportion
Is included, whereas where specific data has to be
stbmitted by companies the coverage is currently much
th'nner,

The table below compares coverage by both data
providers year on year,

-+ 'Company Rating -

Fund: ~ Benchmark . Fund . Benchmark,
99% 96% 96% o 96%
1% 4% 4% 4%
100% 100% 100% T00%

Sourze GRESE, MZC, Coumbia Threadneedle -nvestments Data as a1 37 03 2022 Fund exposure calowated as the % weight of 1he invested equity potticho

Real Estate Assessment
Fund Benchmark
Rated o 50% . ca%
Unrated 50% 46%
Total 100% 100%

Public Disclostire Company Rating
Fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark |
| 97% 97% 89% o 99/
3% 3% 11% 1%
100% 100% 100% 100%

Source CRESE, MSC! Columbig Threadneedle investments Dataas at 31 03 2022 Fund expasue caleulated as the % weignitof the nvested equity portfo o
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Responsible investment
continued

We continue to coliect data or emissions and compare
to prior years with the emphas:s being more on direction
of travel than the absciute messures themse'ves Ths
s also an area where we expect to see further charge
which 1s also explained,

Forthe year ended 31 March 20272, we disclosed, as best
we were ab'e to, the portfol o-weighted carbon intensity
of tne tota! partfolio for tre first time

Carbon Risk measures exposure to carbon ntensive
corrpanies MSCl's defintior and caiculation, with

data based on MSCI CarbonMetr cs, I1s the portfo.io-
weghted average of 1ssuer carbon intensity At the
issLer evel carbor mtensity 's the ratio of arnual
scope 1 ard 2 carben em ssions to annual revenue
Carbon Risk 1s categorized as Very Low (010 <15),

Low (15 to<70), Moderate (70 to <250), H'gn {250 to
<525), and Very High (>=525) Tne Carbon Risk of the
eauity portfolio measdred at the firanc.al year end was
4267 COZE/SM Sales (2022 63 3 T CO2E/SM Sales),
faling within the ‘ow nsk MSCI category. The Company's
portfolo-we.ghted carbon intensity was iower tnan that
of tre benchrmark of 45 8 T CO2E/SM Sales

Comparnng agairst the results from last year shows a
headl're c.31% decrease im carbon mtensity for botn cur
own equity portfo'io and -18% for the index There are a
~umber of reasons for this Wnilst the ratio g a srapshot
taker &t each firancia' vear end, ref.ecthing the change

~ equity hoid nys cver the period, there 1s aiso wider
coverage of data at tne 2023 financial year erd {98%

for tne currert year fund holdings versus 843 for the
prior year) The latest en.ssiors data for each company
is captured by MSCI on publicabion of ther data, each
corrpary s ot releasng ther data at the same point
50 tming d fferences will arise Theratio wi'l alsc be
rpacted by tne charging va ue of § Sales, ncluding the
rpact of FX rates However, within tnese ! mitat.ons
we can be reasoraby confidert tnat tne Carbe~ R sk of
tne portfoiro 5 ~provirg and cuirerty better than the

heronmark

T CO2E/$M Sales

&
60
50

a0

0] ———

2023 2072
#® TR Property nvestment Trust

FTSL FPRANARL.T Deve.oped Furope Capped 'ndex

In order to attempt tc g ve a pctare of the directior of
travel we have looked at tne 'ndawvdaai companies the
Compary rods to assess whicr rave mproving or
detericrating carbor mtens ty metrics over three ard
five year per ods

Ths analys s depends upon the integnty of the
Jrdenying data and breadth of data coverage, s0 we
would caution tnat this 1s a work Ir progress, but it
ndicates a positve trend as awareness impraves and
compar:es are obliged tc disc ose data

5yr
momentum

3yr
momentum

" Improving
Deteriorating
a Neutral

By ~L~ber of corrpan es I~prow ngwrere end of pencd
velee s essi-en start of percd Deter cratry where ed
of pericd val.e s greater 3vrs Data for 47 of 61 stocks

Syrs Data ford2 of 61 stocks

B T B AR T
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For i~e property sector, the focus is currertly on the
erergy efficiency of buildrgs once they are occupied.
but we expect intire more attention. will be paid 1o the
carboremitted n getting them built and eventua ly
dismantled wh'ch accounts for a large proporticn of a
bullding’s emissions over its Ifespan

DIRECT PROPERTY PORTFOQLIO

Sustainability s core to the strategy of the direct property
porticho whicn we invest i, ha'd and manage or bena'f
of snarehclders and this has been a key focus for the
management team ntneir asset management approact:

Certra’ to the year's approach was energy consumpt.on.
As the pnimary sodrce of carbon emissions within the
porifolio, a prority over the jast twe've months has

been to yain a clear understanding of the consumpticn
Intensity across the portfolio, estahlishing a henchmark
from whicn we can map the strategy to manrage the
enviranmertal impact of these assets through energy
saving intervertiors This data coliection allows us to
fix tne base year from which to set oLt future targets as
we | as a clear path toward a ret zero carbon portfolio.
Alongside this we have also worked hard to future-proof
the portfolio against the forthcom ng Minimur Energy
Efficiency Standards

We also recognise that the built erv ronment piays a
fundamentairo’e in the Iife of local communities. Asa
landlord the Company cortinues to enhance 1ts socal
engagement with the local community stakeholders

at our assets We also strive to work with .ocal supply
chain partners to deliver a best-n-cass service for our
occup ers, whi st also supporting the local economies
sdrrounding our assets  This helps us demonstrate the
soctal vaiue we brirg to conrrrurities, occupiers and
sharerolders

The final strand to our approach 1s governance,

Th:s forms the foundation for how we manage our
properties. The manager operates a Sustanabrity and
Sociai Resporsibility Commrittee which focuses on the
implementat.on and delivery of ail ESG intiatives and
provdes full transparency on our proactive hands-on
approach From this we can execute our environmental
and social respons bil'ties e are only able to ach'eve
our goals through 8 jo red-up approach with our property
manager energy corsu'tart and other key partners with
whor we work

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

In tast year's report we ident fied the three key pilars

to estabish the fourdation for the delivery of our ESG
strateqy These three piilars, namely Asset Energy
Performance {(Environment), Occupler Engagement
{Social) and Qperatioral Performance (Governance)
continue to navigate the Maragement Team towards the
successful realisation of our ESG strategy

Whilst the significant progress made cverthelast 12
months reinforces our commitment to acnieve ret zero
carbor by 2050, our ultrrate goal 1s to ambtiously
rmprove on tis 2050 target To that end, we nave
mstructed net zero audts across the portfolio to facilitate
us in identifying exactly how we car bring this target
forward from 2050 Thus strategic framework will be
driven by science-based targets in a cost-efficiert
manner, and we will be art'culatirg our improved
pathway over the forthcomng year.

Environmental

Accurate date collection ard transparent reparting are
irtegral to our goal of reducing carbon emissions across
our portfol:o We Fave pLtin place a number of initiatives
to this end which are outlined beiow

Reiliable and accurate data collectior 1$ the cornerstone
to understanding the carbon intensity of cur assets This
gives us the abrity to set ambitious targets to reduce
the carbor intensity and Scope 1 and 2 em'ssions for
both ourselves and our occcuplers. To this end we have
been working i coliaboration with our stakeholders

to implement a pregramme to install actomatic meter
readers (AMRSs') across the portfolic to enable the
accurate measurement and monitoring of each asset's
energy consumption. This consumption data is now
being co'lated and analysed by the property industry-
recognised SIERA+ platform This means we can
measure energy consumption and access live data
which we can analyse and then use to shape our buailding
operation decisions. The AMRs have also prov'ded the
dataset which will form part of the Company's iInaugura:
GRESB subm ss'on currently Lnderway, setting the
benchmark for future ESG performance. With ongoing
access tothis futy fransparent and lve dataset we can
take control of our carbon emissions with integrity and
pirpoint exactly where further mprovemerts can be
achieved.

MIIAIBAD

G
Q
<
174
=
=
&
=
o
@

Sluawalels [eioueu

2INSOINSIP (I 1Y Pue Alessoin

W9Y 10 30110N

UCHeLLIO U I3p|oyaleus



Responsible investment
continued

As outlined nthe last report a key objective for the Furd
was to commence its first GRESE submission Now tnat
we tave an accurate dataset of carbon consumption, we
have bee~ able to begir the first GRESB submrssion for
2022/23 Theresults of this sLbmission wil be available
in October 2023 and from this we wi | be ab e toidentify
further susta nabilty opportunities and enhance our
strategy towards net zero Trisis a significart m lestone
for the Cormrpary and GRESB wil' enab e us to measure
our ESG performance within a Lriform and globally
establisted platform

Ancther key element 10 Managing the carbon intensity
of the portfeho s througn the implementat.on of Green
Leases Clauses across tne portfoio. it has enabied Js
te embed our net zero commitiments nto the formai
structure wthin which we lease our assets, sett-ng out
a mutual agreement between land.ord and occupier

to strive to -mprove energy efficencres and reduce
carbon emissions gererated by the assets They also
provde a formal framework for the Compary to work
with occup'ers on odr data col.ection workstream ir
mistances wiere we are not 11 contro. of the ut 1ty supply
Thus in turn strengthens cur abiiity to enforce carbon
intens’ty targets ard gain further contro. of Scope 1 ard
2 EmiIssIons.

Fartrner control of carbon erissions nas been ach.evad
trrougr t1e successful trans'tion of all energy across
land ord areas for tne who e portfouo to rerewab e
sources This.g a portfolio-wide imitiative ard 100% of
ia~dlord e:ectnony ard gas supples are now cortractad
o certified green tanffs, backed by the Ofgem reguiated
Renewabie Energy Guarantees of Or gir (REGO) screme

From T Aprl1 2023 a'l cor-mercial renta properties

are requ red to nave an ERPC of £ or hetter Tre direct
propéerty portfcl o carrert y meets these sta~dards and,
cvera. treportfolos EPC profie s wel piaced fortr
short-ter™ requ remerts and wproved ratrgs nave
acr.eved overthe ast 12 ~ontns

e
besr

]
t

Twao significant ach evements of note are the
Tprovernent of the two EPC Gratirgs witr'n the
portfoio to B and C ratings ard increasing the
percentage of assets ~ow guaufy ng for EPC ratings
bv over 20% T1n1°s has beer accomplisned througn
detai.ed operationa ara ysis of curassets and tre
imp-ementation of energy sav ng enhancemenrts

It is important te note that the :ncrease in E ratling is

due to charges inthe assessment critera and the
majority ¢ftre E ard D ratings are at Wandsworth wnere
the strategy sto either complete a comprefersve
refurbiskhment or a fun-scale redevelopment in the rid
term Work on this project wil: comp ete prior 1o tne 2030
MEES standard wric™ wilrequre a min mum EPC of

B. Once thus project has beer delivered the percentage
of the portfoiic by ERV achieving 2030 comp 1ance wii,
nerease to 88%  This s hefore any other enbancerests
are impleme-ted.

Furtherto th s the Compary ras now ra:sed the target
of acievng a mirimune EPC rating to the minimur of a
B for al plarned refurbishments and upgrade works to
the portfo o Tris fors part of the w.der ESG-facused
refurbish rent check'ist

EPC (% of ERV)

E 8%
(2022: 6%)

B 58%
D: 28% (2022. 47%)

(2022 32%)

C. 6%
{2022 3%

TR Propersy Incestrert Trust



The Comipany has been working closely with the major
tenant of our :ndustria’ estate in Gloucester to nstall
PV cells an the roof of the building to gererate cneap,
ow carbon {carbon redtral) energy on site  Irfusion,
who package specialist teas for a number of nign-end,
3rd party customers have been a key tenant on the
astate since purchase r 2015 and sustamabiity is key
to the company ethos  The installation of PV cells on
the ronf was a critica devewopment for the company 10
its path towards net zerg carbon Resulis to date have
beer very positive with 80% of the orsite gereration
being consumed on site and the balance being exported
to grid. Irfusian project that 75% of their total annual
electricity consumption will be gererated on site

The key facts of the installation are
- System Size — 244 8kWp
- Year 1 Generation Prediction — 231,752kWh's
« COZ Saving per annum - 49 tonnes

EPC improverment from Crating to B,
This hdgely successful project demonstrates our
occupier-focused, oppartunity-led approach whereby we
have championed our occupier's success in achieving
ther sustairability goals whilst also improving the
environmental profile for the portfol'a. Fo'owng this

sJccess we are investigat.ng installing PV onto the
remanring Lnits or the estate.

annua Reconl & Accodnts 2023

“Infusion GAB are extremely commutted to reducing our
environmental footprint and the installation of Solar

PV at Gloucester was a critical step towards this The
proactive engagement of TRPIT was instrumental to this
and enabied us to install a self-generating power source
to our buildings. This initiative has been incredibly well
received by custaomers, suppliers and employees alike”
Bruce Stevens. Commercial Director, Infusion GB
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Responsible investment
continued

Social

Tne maragement tear nas contirded actve'y to engage
wth ococupiers to support and potentially invest n therr
ESG objectives Communicaticn and col'aboration piays a
central role inacn'eving ESG goals.

A guarter'y ESG newsletter 's now pub'ished and
crrculated with occupiers 1o encourage engagement Key
content for the newsletter includes iNviting cccaplers

1o partic.pate in the AMR installation prograrmme,
community engagement it atves and rais ng brodiversity
awareness across the portfolic which nc.ude the
mnstallation of bird boxes and bug hotels at Gloucester.

At Wardswortn we have successfLliy managed to
ntegrate a criticai ocal community partner into Ferrer
Street through the 'etting of Unit 16 1o tne Wandsworth
Foodbank By.etting the unit at nil rent we have enab’ed
them to continue to sepport people ard familles fac.ng
severe hardship across Wandswortr Borougn, 1ntre
last year over 11,0000 errergency food parce.s were
provded to local tolseholds in severe hardshp Witk a
larger facility at Ferrier St they have been able to ncregse
their emergency food provision by 71% trrougrodt tne
borough ard deliver directiy to those hodsehoids who
cannct access therr We.come Centres,

“Wandsworth Foodbank are extremely grateful to TR
Property investment Trust far enabiing our imove 10
Ferrier St The warehouse provides us with a space o
recerve, sort and store large amounts of donated foad,
and dispatef it 1o our seven Welcome Centres and
directly to peopie’s homes Ve are really grateful for this
partnersiip as we support iocal househnaids through the
ing crisis "Dan Frote Wardevortr Focdbank

f
Cost of-

Janager

—
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The Colonnades 1s also central to the community
landscape of the Bayswater area and 1t :s vital that it is
fuliy integrated into tis environment. We have continued
to work wits our local community partners at the
Colonnades over the last 12 months to neip alleviate the
challenges af rough sleepeis in the Bayswater area.

Governance

In order to defiver oLr ESG targets it 1s essertial that our
interna- management structure 1s fully aiigned with our
strategy. The Sustamability and Social Responsibility
Committee meets or a bimaonthy basis to ensare that we
are on track wth our Sustainabiity Roadmap objectives
througn the tnorough review of current inttiatives and
imple~entation. The Committee works in partnership
with gur managing agents {Stiies Harroid Williams)

to ersure we ma ntamn a sustainable supply cham

which comp-ertents our net zero carbon goals Thisis
demonstrated through objectives set to ensure 190%

of waste matenal Lnderiandlord control 1s not sent {o
landfill. The accreditation of our managing agent to Safe
Contractor also gemonstrates our commitment to paying
al directly employed staff an our assets a real Livirg
Wage Inaddition, the management team attend regular
ESG tramming events and seminars, contiruing our internal
education arcund ESG and making sLre that alt avenues
are being expiored to achieve positive outcomes across
the portfolio.

Net Zero Carbon Pathway

This significant progress over the last twelve rmonths
dermenstrates our firm commitment ta bring forward cur
net zero carbon 2050 strategy Through our thorough
carbon consumption data managermeni, GRESB
submission ard MEES improverrents we will be abie

to clearly set out our key objectives for the forthcoming
year

We will continue to expand cur AMR programme to
MmaxImise our comprehensive dataset on Sierra+. Th's
will provide further insight into how we can dentify and
impiement energy saving measures, targeting Scope 1
ard 2 emissions.

In October 2023 we wil have the Company's inauguial
GRESB rating  From tnis we wil- be able analyse the
res.'ts to formulate a robust strategy to strengthen this
rating and target ar ncrease of at least one star for the
next submission

Annua Report & Accourts 2023

I~ order to further futureproof the portfono against MEES
we will continue to track our exposLre to inefficient
assets tirougn regular EPC anaysis By reducirg the
portfoio's reliance on fossil fuels and 'mp'ementing
further renewable energy sources through solar PV, we
wiil cortinue to drive down the higher EPC rated assets

Qver the next twelve montrs we will strengthen our
management of Scope 3 erissions. We will contirue to
co'laborate with our suppliers and occupiers to adopt
mMore sustainable practices, reduce their reliance on
fossil fuels and deliver best in class asset manageiment
to improve our pathway to ret zerc carbon through
carefully planned and delivered interventions

By successfully achieving trese chjectives over the
forthcoming year we expect 1o be able to declare
ar armbitious improvement on oJdr ret zerc carbon
commitment, bringing 1t forward from 2050.
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Portfolio

as at 31 March o _ 2020 202 0.5%
£'000 %
UK Securities?
- quoted 385,876 40.5 518417 3372
UK Investment Properties 73957 77 - 96,255 A
UK Totai 459,833 48.2 614672 393
Continental Europe Securities
- guoted 488,839 51.3 940,744 60.2
Investments heid at fair vatue 948,672 99,5 1,555,476 g9 5
- CFD (creditory/debior? o 4662 @ 05 7657 0.5
Total Investment Positions 953,334 100.9 1,563,073 1000 L UK Securities
UK Property
| " Continental Europe
as at 31 March Securities
' 2022 2022 i CFD Debtors/Creditors
£'000 %
UK Securities
- guoted 385,876 35.7 518,417 256
- CFD exposure® 75963 7.0 57,324 29
UK Investment Praperties 73,957 7.0 96,255 55
UK Total 535,796 49.7 671,996 34.0
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 488,839 45.2 440,744 585
- CFD exposure? - 54943 51 87318 - 6.5
Total investment exposure?* 1,079,578 100.0 1,700,058 100.0
£ 31 March @ - _Securities
reas R e 2002 20m 2020 2019 UK Froperty
Total investments £949m £1.,556m  £1.401m  £1.1585m  £1,291Tm
Net assets £968m £1.563m £1,326m £1.136m  £1,328m
UK guoted property shares 41% 33% 28% 31% 33%
Overseas quoted property shares 51% 60% 66% 6% 59%
Direct property {externally valued) 8% 6% &% 8% B%
as at 31 March
2023 2022 2022
Benchmark Company Benchmark
% % %
GBP 351 339 36
EUR 41.3 41.9 423
CHF 9.9 95 74 71
SEK 13.8 138 163 6.3
NOK 04 03 J5 0.4

1

aibaiznne sneetvrred 107 rablnr
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Investment portfolio by country

Belgium

Xior Student Housing

Aedifica

Care Property Invest

Icade

Intervest Offices & Warehcuses
Montea

Warehouses De Pau

Shugard Self Storage

France
Gecina
Klepierre
Argan
Covivio
Carmila
Altarea

Germany
Vonovia

LEG Immoaobilien
TAG Immaobilien
Arcundtown

Netherlands
Eurocommercial Properties
NSI

Unibait Rodamco Westfield

Narway
Entra

Spain

Merlin Properties
Arima Real Estate
_Enmoblh‘aria Colonial

Notes

= Corepanies shown by country of st ng
+ The above posit ons are te physical holdings included n the investments held at fa - value in the Barance Sheet The CFD positons s the net of the proft - loss an the

15,267
8,959
7,191
5,457
3,476
1,732
1,429

601

44,112

34,321
29,984
22,445
16,785
5,741
1,170
110,446

72,456
14,868
13,014
4,310
104,648

24,767
2,902
2,110

29779

3,509
3,509

26,908
10,531

4,161
41,600

Market

value
%

16
0.9
07
0.6
04
0.2
0.
0
46

3.6
3.1
2.4
1.8
0.6
0.1

16

7.6
1.6
1.3
0.5
1.0

26
0.3
0.2
31

Sweden

Wihlborgs

Fastighets Balder B
Catena

Sagax
Samnallsbyggnadsbolaget
Fabege

Pandox

Platzer Fastigheter
Atrium Ljungberg

Cibus Nordic Real Estate
Fastighets Neobo

Switzerland
Psp Swiss Property
Swiss Prime Site

United Kingdom

Seqro

Safestore Holdings
Picton Property tncome
Industrials REYT
LandSec

Sirius Real Estate
Phoenix Spree Deutschland
Great Portland

Ediston Property
Londonmetric Property
nite Group

CT Property
Workspace

Tritax Big Box REIT
Supermarket Income REIT
Hammersen
Warehouse REIT
Atrato Cap

Urban Logistics REIT
Shaftsbury

Helical

Cap & Regional
Newriver REIT

Direct Property

CFD Positions {included in

current assets and liabilities)

Total Investment Positions

CFD contizcts | & not the mvestment expasurennzluded .n the Balance Sheet cur-ent assets and bl ties

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

21,99%
19,804
11,166
10,677
8,410
6,382
3,939
2,706
1,493
1,274
742
88,592

40,606
25,547

.. 66,153

79,223
42,509
32,628
28,318
28,199
23,664
23,137
22973
19,440
17,115
15,219
14,262
13,390
7,033
2,509
2,827
2,700
2,573
2,494
1,709
1,408
1,205
941
385,876

73,957

4,662

953,334

Market
value

%

23
21
12
11
0.9
07
04
03
01
01
01
93

42
27
69

05

1000
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Twelve largest equity investments

SEGRO

31 March

Shareholding
value

% of iInvestment

_£792m  £773m

portfolio! 7.3% 4.5%
% of equity

owned . 09% 0.5%
Share price 768p  1346.0p
Segro (UK)

Segro s the largest UK REIT by market cap
and is the largest operator of logistics and
industrial property listed in the UK, with a
total portfolio of ¢.£18bn {splitc 62.0% in
the UK, ¢ 38 0% in Continental Europe, with
€.56.0% urban warehouses, ¢.26.0% big
boxes and c.18.0% land and other uses).

In the UK, the group is mainly exposed to
Greater London industrial and logistics.
Rental growthin these markets has been
extremely strong as thereremains an
acute supply-demand imbalance, fuelied
by tenants’ requirements to deal with the
growth in e-commerce.

In Europe, Germany and France are the
group’s largest markets with ftaly third;
these markets have a lower but still
positive, renta! growth outlook (and are
geographicaily less space-constrained). In
2H22 UK valualions saw a sharp correction,
while EU valuations have lagged the
aggressive repricing of the UK. Segro has
extensive development exposure that it
manages largely tc pre-let and develop at
yields significantly in excess of investent
values (¢.6-7% yield on cost vs, an EPRA
netinitial vield of 3 7% at Fy22) Thishas
been a successful formulato dnive both
earnings and NAV growth, as well as high
shareholder returns.

The five-year tota, shareholder return has
beer +45 7%,

YONOVIA

31 March 2022

Shareﬁadmg

value £72.5m £1499m
% of investment T

portfolio’ 6.7% 8 8%
% of equity T

owned o 06%  G5%
Share price €1734 €42 31

Vonovia (Germany)

Vonovia is a German listed residential
company and the largest real estate
company in Continental Europe by market
capitalisation. At the end of 2022, the
company owned a portfoho of ¢ £95.8bn,
primartly spiit between Germany (.88 3%
of value), Sweden {c 7. 4%) and Austria
(c.3.7%). The portfolio has increased
dramatically and stands at 548,000 units,
following a string of acguisitions, mostly
of isted peers, such as Deutsche Wohnen,
Hembla, Victoria Park, and BUWOG

Vonovia is Involved in the whole value chain

of the residential sector, via its rental business
{c 80.1% of group EBITDA), third-party
development segment (c.6.7%), recurring
sales segment (¢ 4.9%). its value-add
segment (energy, multimedia, and other
services segment, ¢.4.6%)and its nursing
segrment (¢.3.0%). The German residential
sectorrermains heavily regulated, yet Vonovia
has continually been able to generate solid
rent growth (+3.3%1n 2022), whilst atso
complying with regutations and assuming a
sccialrole, which permits them to beneft from
critical political goodwill and partnerships {as
cobserved by the 20,000-unit portfolio sateto
the State of Barlinin 20271} Eventhoughasseat
values have come under pressure, as seen
with ali real estate asset classes, operatiorally
the business continues to perform strongly as
seen by FFO | growth of 14.6% p/s, driven oy
operational mprovernents and healthy rent
growth. Moreover, market evidence points

1o further upward revisions 1o rent growth:
estimates as the supply demand imbalanze in
Germany persists.

Thefive-year to1al sharehoider return has
beer-45.7%.

[N < g
31 March 2022
Sharehelding
value £59.6m  £61.5m
% of investrment
E_Qrtfo\io‘ 5.5% 36%
% of equity
owned 1% _10%
Share price £20.85 €24 18

Klepierre (France)

Kléplerre is a French REIT, which owns,
operates, and manages a portfalio of
Eurcpean shopping centres, spanning ten
countries. At the end of 2022, the company
owned a portfolio of £.€19.8bn, with major
exposures in France (¢.38.3% of value},
Italy (c.23 8%), Iberia (¢.713.0%}, Germany/
Netherlands {¢.9.7%), and the Nordics
(c.8.7%). The company. like all shopping
centre owners, has reaped the benefis of
areturn ta normality as social gatherings
are permitted and travel restrictions have
been lifted demonstrated in its strong
repound in footfall and tenant sales While
the ongoing shift towards e-commerce

as a retail channel has continued, it has

at a slower rate, even retreating incertain
rmarkets, with digitally native retailers
pivoting to physical by opening stores. On
a relative basis, the company continues to
benefit from its 100% focus on Continental
Europe, without any exposure to weaker
UK and US markets. Lastly, the company
benefits from the experience of the
Chairman, David Simon, also Chairman
and CEQ of Simon Property Group, which
owns a ¢.22.3% stake in Kiémerre

In 2022, EPS growth was +18 7% YaoY,
penefiting from accelerating indexation
and occupancy improvements, with
EPRANTA broadly flat YoY. Mearwhile,

it's fimancial metrics remain conservative
with a net debt o EBITDA of 7 9x and an
EPRALTV of c.43.7% Its average cost of
debtis low atjustc.1.2%, and is expected
10 remain low, as evidencec by 1ts high
hedging ratio of ¢.90 G%. and weaghted
average loan maturity of 6.5 years

The five-year 1ola) shareholder returr has
been -4 5%.

T Notes:
= Tnepercentzge of risestreent potto o pes tons set cut 3ho e noiude caposutes traug TR for pattne ad v dus pos tong end g pontto o
s T seveat tote sherenoide retung zre o retuns TN ooa TuTensy o the b ding
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"LandSecurities

31 March 2022
Sharehoiding

value __£393m  £45.2m
% of investment

portfolio’ 5.5% 27%
% of equity

owned _1.3% _08%
Share price 621p 786p

Land Securities (UK)

Landsecis one of the UK's largest REITS,
with a portfolio valued at c.£11bn. The
company's assets are a mix of offices
(c.51.0%), retail assets (€.36.0% split
between shopping centres and outlets)
and other uses {c.13.0% such as leisure
assets, retalt parks and hotels), c.61.0%
of the assets arein central London,

Since Joining the business in 2020 new
CEO Mark Allen has sought to alter the
company’s strategy, pledaing to sell out
of its non-core assets (e g. hotels, leisure
assets and retail parks), while increasing
the size of the development pipeline to
focus on large mixed-use schemes that
others do not have the capabilities to
deliver in addition to the established office
development pipeline the company now
plans to spend an additional £1.5bn over
five years onmixed use developments,
with a 20% profit on cost target. Balance
sheet management has beenrelatively
conservative with a very long debt
maturity of 10 @ years as at September
2022, netdebt to EBITDA of 8 7xand LTV
at September 2022 of 31% (and lower
since that date following disposals of
large office assets including T New Street
Square), The company intends to recycle
capital to fund the developrment pipeline,
avoiding gearning up desprte capex spend,
and has a medium-term target of LTV
remaining in the mid-30s.

The five-year total shareholder return has
teen-17.0%.

T Notes:

~ gecina

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value _£52.4m £440m
% of investment

portfolia! . 48% 2.6%
% of eguity

owned . 08% 0.6%
Share price £8555 £€1743

Gecina (France)

Gecina 1s the largest French REIT

and is one of the largest real estate
companies in Continental Europe by
market capitalisation. At the end of 2022,
its portfolio was valued at ¢ £20.Thn,
comprising of offices {c.80 0% of value),
residential {¢.18.0%), and student
accommodation {C.2.0%).

Gecina develops, manages, and owns
adiversified portfolio, which is heavily
skewed toward the Paris region (¢.97.0%),
and has been selling non-core assets
outside of Paris in recent years. In 2022,
Gecina was a primary beneficiary of the
rmuch-debated return to the office trend,
helped by its centrally located and high-
gualty portfolic. As a result, Gecina saw
solid rent increases driven by index-linked
rents, positive reversion and a matenal
increase in occupancy levels YoY which
all helped to drive 7. 4% EPS growth YoY.
Asset values during FY22 were broadly
flat {-0.6% including value creation from
pipeling), as widening yields were offset
with improving rental markets and
stronger indexation, and highlights the
high gquality of the portfolio.

The company is ane of a handful of
European real estate companies with an
Arating from Moody's and S&F, given its
conservative financial profile, operating
with an EPRA LTV of c.36.8%. The average
cost of debtis low atc. 1 2%, alongside a
high hedging ratio of ¢.90.0%, and a long
weighted average loan maturity at 7.5
years.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-15.4%.

é;“‘ _

31 March 2022
Sharehoiding

value £42.5m  £60.4m
% of investment

portfolo’ 3.9% 3.6%
% of equity

owned 2% 21%
Share price 950p 1340p
Safestore (UK)

Safestore is the UK's largest self-storage
cperator, owning c.160 stores, primarily
in the UK (and weighted towards London
and the South East with ¢.44% of 1otal
group stores). In addition the company
has a large foctprint in the Paris market
and has recently been expanding into
new European cities (through both Jv
structures and outright ownership) taking
footholds in Holiand, Spain and Belgium.
Safestore has a bestinclass operating
platformwhich, along with peer Big Yellow,
allows it to dominate the UK storage
rarket, particularly in terms of online
search

The company has driven consistent
earnings growth both organically (through
like-for-like occupancy, rate growth and
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions The self-storage market also
performed extremely strongty during the
COVID-19 pandemic and has repeatedly
shown 1ts resilient credentials during wider
economic turbulence.

The five-year total sharehoider return has
been +119.6%.

- The percentage of nvest~ent portfo o pos tiohs set out above nclude expasures thraugh CRD for botn the ndwidual pastions and the pat’oho

= The e vear lotel shareno der returns ace the retuins 1 the local currency of the nolding

Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Twelve largest equity investments
centinued

Aoy Pryact

31 March 2022
Shareholding o
value s £40.6m  £44.6m
% of investment

nortfolio’ 3.7% 26%
% of equity

owned o 1.0% 1.0%
Share price CHFW 04.0 CHF”I 21.%

PSP Swiss Property (Switzerland)
PSP Swiss Property is one of Switzerland's
leading reat estate companies, owning

a diversified portfolic of high guality

real estate assets in Switzerland. At the
end of 2022, its portfolio was valued at
CHF2.4bn, comprising of offices (c.64.0%),
retall (¢ 16.0%), food (¢.6.0%), and

other (c.14 Q%). The portfolio 1s skewed
towards Switzerland's key economic
centers, Including Zurich (c 57 0%, Geneva
{c14.0%), Basel (c.8.0%), and other major
cities at ¢ 27 O%.

Underlying property markets in
Switzerland appear to be holding up well.
Transactional evidence is light, but from
the few transactions taking place it seems
that property values for prime assets are
broadly stable Similarly, demand for office
space in economic centers such as Zurich
and Geneva is expected to rémain strong.
As aresult, PSP made further progress
during the year cnits vacancy reduction,
lowering vacancy from 3.8% to 3 0% at
Dec 23, and saw like-for-like rents grow by
+2.2%; all this led to EPRA EPS growth of
+4.1%. Mareover, EPRANTA stili grew 3%
over the year on modest revaluation gaing
and retained earnings. LTV remained low
at 32 €%, amongst the lowest levels for
European property companies while its
current cost of debt is fixed for 4 1 years.

The five-year total shareholder return bas
been +371 4%,

1 Notes:

The pertentage of nyestmient por
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31 March 47K 2022

Shareholding

value £37.3m  £359m
% of nvestment o

portfolio” 3.4% 2.71%
% of equity -

owned L 9.9% _67%
Share price 64n 98p
Picton (UK)

Picton is a diversified UK REIT with a
weighting towards UK industiial. The
£850m portfolio, as at September 2022
was ¢ 58.0% industrial, .32 0% offices
{of which ¢.22 0% London and the South
East) and ¢.10.0% retall (of which ¢.7.0%
retail park). Along with a high quality asset
nortfolio, where rental growth and captal
value performance have repeatedly beaten
relevant benchmarks, the company is

run conservatively, taking very limited
development risk as well as mamntaining

a very strong balance sheet. For example,
the company’s LTV as at December

2022 was ¢.26.0%, with long-dated dett
maturity (¢.10 years) and very limited
near term refinancing requirements. in
addition, we believe the portfolio boasts

a number of valuable asset management
opportunities, including both vacancy
reduction in heavily under-rented space,
and the potential for residential corversion
in certain assets which could provide
jucrative upside versus current valuations.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-0 4%

2 mzed ng

s industrials

31 March 2022

Shareholding

value _£34.5m  £533m

% of investment

portfolio’ 3.2% 31 %

% of equity

owned 9.8% 9.2%
Share price 118p 198p

Industrials REIT (UK)

Industrials REIT is a UK focused

multi-let industrial business. The portfolio
has beentransformed over a number of
years to focus solely on the UK MLI sector,
and the £660m portfoiio is now c.95% MLI
(as at September 2022) Gver a number
of years the UK ML asset class has seen
strong capital value growth, driven by
both yield compression and cngoing ERV
growth (in the 12 months to December
2022 Industrials REIT has seen LfL ERYV
growth of +10.5%), with rents coming from
a low base (average passingrent inthe
portfolio was £5.94 at December 2022). In
addition 1o its strong underlying property
fundamentals the company's Hive
operating platform gives the company
access (o data on enguiry levels and
demand, as well as allowing for innovatve
operational approaches such as the

use of digital short-form smart leases,
speeding the letting process and reducing
any negative drag from portfolio vacancy.
Total shareholder return since IPQ in June
2018 has heen +29 0%, and the company
was recently bid for by Blackstone ata
premiumr of +42 0% to the closing price
before the offer was made

The total shareholder return aince listng
[15:06/18)has been +29.0%

duz postoncendmcportto o
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31 March 2022

Shareholding

value ) _£269m  £47.8m

% of Investment

portfolio™ 25%  28%

% of equity

owned  08% 1%

Share price €8.06 £10.59

Merlin Properties (Spain)

Merlin Properties is a Spanish diversified
REIT withac.€£11 3bn pertfolio, The
majority of the company's assets are
offices (¢ 56 4%), where the company
focusses its exposure on major cities,
primarily Madrid and Rarcelona.
Additionally, the company owns shopping
centres (c.18.9%), data centres/logistics
(€.12.4%), with the residual ¢.12.4% of
assetsin land and other uses

As aresult of inflation and continued

tenant demand in the Spanish market, the
business continued to perform well, with
average lIke-for-like rent growth of 7.3% and
year end occupancy of 95 1% (a 60bps YoY
mprovernent). Even though property values
are not insulated from wider market trends
(asset values declined -1.5% YoY) vields
have already significantly widened by 44bps
and are therefore likely to provide more
protection going forward, During 2022,
Merlin completed the sale of its net lease
portfolio, comprised of 659 bank branches
letto BBVA, forc.£2.0bnata 1/7% premium
toits book value (the BBVA portfolic
represented ¢.15% of the total portfolio).

As aresult of this transaction, the company
managed to significantly reduce its EPRA
LTV by 800bps to ©.35 8% by financial year
end. This gives the company significant
flexibility going forward as it evaluates

its development pipeline in combination
outlock for property values. Moreover, its
cost of debt remains low, at an average of
¢.2.0%, with a hedge ratio of ¢.99.6%, and

a weighted average loan maturity remans
long at 4.9 years.

The five-vear total shareholder return has
been-15 4%,

T Notes:

L PHOENIX
f SPREE

-~

31 March

Shareholdmg

value £26.8m  £51.9m
% of Investment

portfolio’ 2.5% 31%
% of equity

owned _ 1587% _ 147%
Share price 186p 382p

Phoenix Spree (UK)

Phoenix Spree Deutschland is a UK listed
investment company that owns residential
units, exclusively in Berlin, Germany. The
company is predominantly invested in
so-called ‘altbau’ properties (typically built
between 1900-1940) which offer features
that remain highly desired by prospective
tenants and buyers, Atthe end 0f 2022,
the company's portfolio was valued at
c.£776m. The company aims to maximize
shareholder returns by converting

rental units into condominiums and selt
these inthe open market at significantly
higher values.

During 2023, the company continued

to benefit from a structural supply and
demand imbalance in Germany and Berlin
specificatly, which led to healthy rent
growth of +3.9%, with new lettings signed
6.6% ahead of the prior year. Furthermore,
increased mortgage costs will likely mean
that many prospective buyers wilt rent

for longer as morigages have become
more expensive. This wilt likely lead to
further upward pressure to market rents.
Nonetheless, property values reduced by
-3.1% over the year as a result of Increased
interest rates, which led to a declineinthe
EPRANTA of -9.7%, even as average sales
prices were still materially (+22 4%) ahead
of trailing book values. Whilst transaction
volumes have significantly declined as
aresult ofinterest rate increases, itis
expected that investrnent volumes should
pick up again once interest rates have
stabilized.

The five-year total sharehelder return has
been -40.5%.

b SWISS PRIME SITE
31 March 2022
Shareholding

value - £256m  L£27.4m
% of investment

portfolio’ - _24% 1.6%
% of equity

owned . 05% 0.5%
Share price CHF76.05 CHF91.25

Swiss Prime Site (Switzerland)
Swiss Prime Site is one of the largest
real estate companies in Switzerland,
with a diversified portfolio of real estate
assets, coupled with a leading real estate
investment (indirect) business. It owns

a diversified real estate portfolio, which
was valued at CHF13.1bn, comprising of
offices (¢ 44 0% of value), retail (¢.26.0%),
logistics (9.0%), hotels (¢.7.0%), with the
residual c.14.0% of assetsinland and
other uses.

Despite a slowdownin transactions,
underlying property markets in
Switzerland appear to be helding up well,
as the few transactions that did take
place appeared broadly supportive of
existing asset values. Moreover, tenant
demand remains healthy. During 2022
and the early start of 2023 SPS has made
significant efforts to simplify its corporate
structure {the sale of Wincasa, areal
estate services company) and exit the
retall business {Jelmoli). Meanwhile, the
underlying business continues to perform
well, with like-for-like rent growth of +1.9%
and further vacancy reduction (-30bps

10 4 3%) whilst EPRA NTA increased
modestly with +1.7% on the back of stable
property values. The reported LTV reduced
by 130bps over the year to 38.9% and cost
of debt was kept low at 0. 9%.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been+59%.

- The percentage of Investient portfolie pasit ons set out above include expasures througa CF D for both the mdividual positions and the portfo i
> Tnefive-year total snarehoder returng are the “eturns mthe looa' cunency of tae haldng
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Investment properties

Spread of direct portfolio by capital value (%)

Retaif tndustrial
Wgst £nd of London - 500 -
'Irnr_}g[___London* S 17 376
South West 107

Total

= nne- London defned as inside the North and South Creu ar

Lease lengths within the direct property portfolio

- [0 {e35] yeiars
T 51010 years

| 1040 1 5years
1510 26years

N 20+ years

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge Road,
London, W2

[ e
Sector: Mixed use

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 64,000

Principal tenants: Waitrose Ltd,
Graham & Green, Happy Lamb Hot Pot,
1Rebel, Specsavers

The property comprises a large

mixed-use block in Bayswater, constructed

inthe mig-1970s. The site extends to
approximately 2 acres onthe north east
corner of the junction of Bishops Bridge
Road and Porchester Road, closeto
Bayswater tube station and ongoing
development of The Whiteley The
commercial element was extended and
refurbished in 20715 with a new 20 year
lease being agreed with Waitrose

22

Gross rental

income

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London, SW18

Sector: Industrial

Tenure: Freehoid

Size (sq ft): 26,000

Principal tenants: Sweaty Betty, Richard
Dawes Fine Wines, Lockdown Bakers

Site of Just overan acre, 50 metres from
Nandsworth Town railway statior in an
area thatis predominantly residential.
The estate comprises 16 small industhai
units generaily letto a mix of smal to
medum-SiZzed private companes.
Planning permission granted ir
Decemper 2019 for a mixed-use
employment led redevelopment

Contracted rent

£29m
£99m
£1415m

10 Centre, Gloucester Business Park,
Gloucester, GL3

Sector: Industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 63,000

Principal tenants: Infusion GB, Pulsin L td

The IO Cenire comprises six industra’
units sccupled by three tenants and
Sits ona 4 S-acre site Gloucester
Business Parkis located to the east of
Junction 114 of the ME anc one mile to
the east of Gioucester Criy Certre. The
property also has easy access to the
A417 providing good links to the M4 via
iunction 15.

TFE Property Incestmert Tryst
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The Company's investment objective 15 to maximise
sharehalders’ total returns by investing in the shares
and securities of property companies and property
related businesses internationally and also i

investment property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in sterling. The
index, calculated by FTSE, is free-fioat based and as
at 31 March 2023 had 109 constituent companies.
The index limits exposure to any one company to 10%
and reweights the other constituents pro-rata. The
benchmark website www.epra.com contains further
details about the index and perfarmance,

Brsiiess LMoo

The Company's business model follows that of an
externally managed investment trust company.
The Company has no employees Its wholly non-
executive Board of Directors retains responsibility
for corporate strategy; corporate governance;

risk management and intemal control; the overall
investment and dividend palicies, setting limits
on gearing and asset allocation and monitoring
investment performance.

The Board has appointed Columbia Threadneedle
Investment Business Limited as the Company’s
Alternative Investment Fund Manager {AIFM’} with
portfolio management delegated to Thames River
Capital LLP. Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund
Manager to the Company on behalf of Thames River
Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur is Deputy Fund
Manager. Gearge Gay is the Direct Property Manager
and Joanne Elliott the Finance Manager. They are
supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts,

Further information in retation to the Board and the
arrangements under the Investment Management
Agreement can be found in the Repert of the Directors
on pages 49 to 51.

in accordance with the Altemative Investment
Fund Manzagers Directive (AIFMD"), BNP Paribas
has been appointed as Depositary to the Company
BNP Paribas also provides custedial and
administrative services to the Company.

Company Secretarial services are provided

by Columbia Threadneedle investment Business
Limited.

A summary of the terms of the Investment
Management Agreement are set out on
pages 58 and 59.
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Strategy and investment policies

The investment se.ecticn process seeks (o dentify
well managed companies of all sizes. Tne Ma~ager
geneialy regards future growth and capita’
appreciat.on potent-al more h-gh y than immed.ate
yield or discount to asset value,

Although tne investrert object ve a lows for
investment onan interationa’ basis, the Company's
benchmark is a pan-European Index and the
majorty of tne irvestments wil be located intrat
geographical area. Direct property investrnents are
located 1 the UK only

As a dedicated investor n tne property sector

the Company canrot offer diversification outside
tnat sectar, however, within the portfolio there

are imitations, as set aut be:ow, or the size of
indi dual wvestments he d to ersure that there 1
diversification witnr the portfolio.

The max.mum Folding inthe stock of any oneissLer
or of a single asset s .mited 1o 15% of the portfo io
at the point of acquistion Inadditior any no.dings in
excess of 5% of the portfcio Tust not n aggregate
exceed 4G% of the portfolo

Ine Manager currertiy app 1es the fo lowirg
guidelnes for asset a locat'on

UK listed equsties 25 - 60%
Continental European

listed equities 45 - 75%
Direct Property — UK 0-20%

Other listed equities _ 0 - 5%
Listed bonds o 0-5%
Unguoted investments 0-5%

Treasgset allocatcr ga delne upper 1imitfor UK
asted equities Fas increased fromr 50% 10 6% Tre
reguirernent for the weighting te UK commrercial
property nas not cranged nowever t7e number of
corrpar es ~c dingrea estate .ocated ir ELrope
bat wit~ a UK I'strgras rcreased, trerefore the
asset allozatior guidenre ras been cna~gedic
acco=rodateth s

)
I

The Company may employ 'eve's of gearing from
tmeto irme with the aim of erkancing returns,
subject to anoverall ~aximurm of 25% of the portfelc
value

In certain market conditions tne Manager ray
consider it prudent not to employ gearng at al;, and
ta ho'd part of the portfolio 1 casn

The current asset allocation guideline 's 10% net
cash to 25% ~et gearing (as a percentage of portfalio
value)

Mvestrent properties are varued every six months by
ar external ndependert va.Ler. Valuatio~s of a'l the
Sroup's properties as at 31 March 2023 nave been
carned outon a 'RICS Red Book' basis ard these
valLations nave beer adopted .n the accourts.

The Group cnarges 75% of annua! base rmanagere-t
fees and finance costs to capta N ine with tre
Board's expected .ong-term spit of returns i the
form of capital ga rs and income Al performarnce
fees are charged to capita

Itis the Board’s current intertio™ to reld no more
tar 15% of the portfo 0N Isted closed-ended
vestTert companies

Some companies irvesting 1 commercial or
residertia. property are structured as 1 sted externaily
managed cicsed-ended Investment companies

and trerefore for~ part of our irvestrment universe
Altnougr tvs g rota ~ode usaaly favoured by our
Fund Manager, scme imvestments are made nthese
structures =~ order to access a particlar sector of tog
market or woere Ine manage™mert tea™ s regarded
as especia ly strorg If those compan.es grow a~d
beco™e a larger part of our mvestment L verse and
Cr new companies cometo the market .~ tmis format
the Fund Marager may wis™ 1o rorease exposure
tothose verncles If the Marager w shes to rorease
~vestertte over 15°% e Copary v ™ake an

aracuerecerestaccord ~g v

"R Propertyir restmert Trust



Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Company's
objective against the following Key Performance Indicators (KPIs'):

KPI

The Directors regard the out-perforrmance of the
Company's net asset value totai return re ative to
tne benchmark as being an overali measure of vaiue
delwered fo the shareholders over the longer term.

Board monitoring
The Board reviews the perfarmance ir detal at each meeting
and discusses the resuits ard outook with the Manager,

KPI

The principal objective of the Company is a total
return objective, however, the Fund Manager also
aims to deliver a rel'able dividend witn growth over
the longer term

Board monitoring
The Board reviews statements on income received to
date and ingcome forecasts at each meetirg

KPI

Whilst expectation of mvestment performance is a key
driver of the share price discount or premium to tne Net
Asset Va ue of arinvestment trust company over the
lenger term, there are perods when the discount can
widen Tre Board ‘s aware of the vuinerability of a sector-
specialist to a change of investor sertiment towards that
sector, or to penods of wider market Lneertanty and the
Impact that can have on the discount.

Board monitoring

T=e Board takes powers at each AGM 1o buy-back and
issue shares. Wher consider ng the mernits of share

buy- back or 1ssuance the Board 'ocks at a number of
factors, in additior to the short and longer-term discodnt
or premium to NAV to assess whether action wou'd be
beneficiar to sharerolders overall Part cular attention

Is pa'dto the current market sertment, the potertia!
impact of any share buy-back activity on the higuidity of
the shares and on Ongoing Charges over the longer term

Arrual Report & Accounts 20232

Outcome ]
NAV Total Return= (Annualised) -35.5%  -1.8%
Benchmark Total Return (Annualised) 340%  -49%

* The NA&Y Tota Returns caloulated by assurming dividends paid by the
Company a-e remvested in the zssels o the Company on the relevant ex
drvidend date “he hencamark tola return gassumes dividends are re invested
o e reevant ex-dividend dates

Although this KPI has not been met in the current year, it

has over 5 years. The NAV Total Return has exceeded the
benchmark for the previous 12 years.

Outcome

Cormpound Annual Dividend Growth=

_69%  49%
Compound Annual RPI 13.5% 57%

*“he final div dend in the time senes d vded by the initial d'vidend in e period
asedtothe power of 1d v ded by thenuber of years intne seres

The exceptional inflation figure for the year 1o 31 March
2023 means the Dividend Annual Growth Rate has fallen
behind RPlon both a one and a five year basis. However

a growing dividend has been delivered in the current and
previous 12 years, despite a fall in earnings through the
COVID pandemic. Over the longer term, the dividend growth
rate has comfortably exceeded RPI on an annualised basis
{10 years 8.3%vs 4 0% and 20 years: 10.6% vs 3.6%).

Outcome

Average discount* _ 58% -4.7%

Total number of shares repurchased o -
* Averzge daily discount througnout the penod o snare price to NAY with
ncome. Source Bloomberg
The discount has seen wide fluctuations through the year
as market sentiment towards the sector has changed. The
average discount over 1 yearis wider than we have seen for
awhile however, over Syearsis at a similar levetto the prior
year level of -4 6% and to the ten year average of -4 9%.
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Key Performance Indicators
continued

KPI
Tne Board 1s conscious of experses ard aims to
detver a balance between exce lent serv'ce and costs

Tne AIC definition of Ongeing Charges nciudes any
direct property costs ir addtion to the ‘managerment
fees and al other expenses ircurred inrLnning a
publicly usted company As no other nvestmert trust
cerrpanies hold part of their portfo.ao n direct property
{tney either rold 100% of tner portfolic as property
securities o as direct property), in addtion to Ongoing
Cnarges as defined by the AIC, this statist'cis shown
without direct property costs ir order ta al.ow a clearer
comparison of overall admimstraton cosis wilr 1those
of other funds irvest.ng ir secarties

Board monitoring

The Beard moritors the Company's Orgoirg
Charges, n comrparson to a range of atner
vestment trust companies of similar size, both
property sector speciahsts and other sector
specialists Tne broker provides al st of comrpanies
It be ieves s a reasonabe companson Notetrere s
no other Investment TriLst speciaising 0 property
related equities

Expenses are budgeted for eacn financial year and
tne Board revews reports or actua ard forecast
expenses darning t-e vear

KPI
Tne Compary mJst cortinue to meet tre require™ients
of Sect'or 1158 of tre Corporatior Tax Act 2010

Board monitoring

Tne Board reviews fira~c.a: wformatior ard forecasts at
each meetng whch set ot tnerequ remerts oot ined »

Sectio~ 1158

Tre KFIs are

[}
(oM

Qutcome

Ongoing charges excluding
performance fees 073% 0.64%

Ongoeing charges excluding
performance fees and direct
property costs 067% 0.62%

The Company's Ongaong Crarges are competitive when
compared to tne peer group

Costs over the year Fave not increased significanty, the
mcrease 1 the ongoing charges percenrtage 's as atesult
of the fall in NAY over the year

Outcome

TreDrectors belevetrat the cond t orns and orgong
reqguiremerts ~ave bee~ rmet 1respect cfthe yearto
37 March 2022 andthat the Corpary w ' cortroe to
~eefl the regl rements

considered to be & ternat e Performarce Measures as defi~ed ater ~t-e Anrig RPeport

TR Property Irestmert Trust



Principal and emerging risks

in delivering long-term returns to shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitor the
risks that have been taken in order to achieve those returns. It has included below details of
the principal and emerging risks facing the Company and the appropriate measures taken in
order to mitigate those risks as far as practicable.

The ongoing conflict in Ukraine has impacted energy and commodity supplies creating
inflationary pressures and prompting central banks to raise interest rates in response.
Interest rates have risen more quickly and to higher levels than was initially anticipated. This
has brought challenges not seen for many years and particularly impacted the property

sector.

The legacy of COVID-19 has seen ongoing changes and challenges in the workplace in terms
of resourcing and changes in working practices.

Share price performs poorly in comparison
to the underlying NAV

The shares of tne Company are listed on the London Stock
Excnange and the share price 1s determined by supp'y and
demand. The shares may trade at a discoun: or premium
to the Company's underlying NAY and this discount or
premum may fluctuate over time.

Poor investment performance of the portfolic

relative to the benchmark

The Company's portfoiois actively managed. inacdton

1o investment securities, the Company also invests in
commercial property and accordingly, the partfolio may not
follow o outperform the ~eturn of the benchimark

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

The Board monitors the level of discount or premium at
which the shares are trading over the short and longer term

The Board encourages engagement w:tn the shareholders
The Board receives reports at each meeting on the activity
of the Company's brokers, PR agent and meet.ngs and
events attended by the Fund Manager.

The Company's sha-es are avalable through the Columbiz
Threadneedle savings scnemes ana the Company
participates in the active marketing of those schemes

The snares are also widely available on open architecture
platforms and can be neld directly through the Company's
regist a’.

The Board takes the powers to 1ssue anc to buy back
shares at each AGM.

The Manager's objective is 1o outperform the bencnmark
The Board regularly reviews the Company's long-term
sirategy and nvesiment guide ines and the Manager's
relztive positions against those

The Management Engagermen: Committee reviews the
Manage:'s per‘ormance annually The Boarc has the
powers to cnange tne Manager If deemed appropnate,
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Principal and emerging risks
continued

(48]

oo

Market risk

Both share prces and excnange rates may move rapialy and
can acversely mpact ine va'ue of the Company's portfolio
Although the portfolio 1s diversified across a number of
geographical reg.ons, the nvestment mandate s focused
on & s.ngle sector and therefore the portfolio wil be sensit ve
owards the property sector, as weli as giobal equ ty markets
more geterally

Property companies ave subject to many factors which can
adversely affect thenr invesiment performance They include
tne genera! economic and financial envrronment mwhichtne r
tenats operate, interest rates, aval'ab. ity of mvestment and
Cevelopment f nance and regulations 1ssued by governments
and authontes.

Rising interest rates have animpact on both capital values
ana distbutions of property companies riigher nterest rates
depress capital values as investors aemand @ margin over an
nereased nsd-free rate af return

Although the LK has now ex1ec the Eurcpean Jnion, the
structure of its resationship with Conunentg! Europe conunues
“0 evo've and there could be an.mpact on occupat.on across
each seclor

The COV.D-1¢ gloka' pandernic has changea the way we live
and work and uncertainty remains recard-ng the mpact on
economies and property markets zround tne world both i tne
short ana 'onger term.

Tne mvasion of Lkrane by Russ ain February 2027 created
further market vo.atity and uncertanty which -emaing
Inflation and inerest rates are af elevated ‘evels noi seen in
aver 1C vears

Any strengthening or weaken.ng of stesling w.'l have z direct
impact as a proportion of our balance sheet s held In non-GBr
denominated currencies The curency exposure . s mainianec
11 17e wth the bencmark ana vl chenge ove time As at

31 March 2023, 56 4% of Ine Tompany's exposure was o
currencies other thenster'ing

The Boarc recewves and considers a reguiar report from the
Manager deta.l'ng asset alocat-onnvesiment dec sions,
currency exposures, geanng 'evels anda rat.ona.e ' relation
toine prevall ng markel conmions

The report cons aers tne ‘mpact of a range o” curent
szues and setz cut the Manager's "esponse in posit aning
e portfolio anc the angoing mp'icat ons “or the property
market, va.uations overa!' ana by each sectar

TR Prapery Investment Trues



The Company is unabie to maintain dividend growth

Lower earnings in the underiying portfolio putting pressure
on the Company's ability to grow The d vidend could resuit
from & number of factors

» Acthougn most companies negatively impacted by
COVID-19 ~eturned to paying div.dends guring the year,
w.th many at pre-covd levels, r'sing interest rates have
posed a new threat The effect on cividends has (10
genera.)i 10t been felt through the financiz year tnat we
arereporting on but the increased debt costs will nave an
impact o1 earnings and hence d strbuiions in future,

prolonged vacanoes n tne direct property portiolio and
lease or rental renegotiat.ons as a “esuit of longer-term
changes following COVID-19,

strengthening of sterling reducing tne value of overseas
div'dend recelipts in sterling terms The Company saw

a materia! increase i the level of earnings 10 the years
leading up ‘o the COVID-19 panaemic A significant factor
inthis was the weakening of sterling follow.ng the UK's
dec’sicn toleave the EU (‘Brexit'y, Although this has now
passed, the value of sterling may cont'nue to fluctuate in
the near or mea.um te'm as 1ne longer-term impticat ons
of Brex't and COViD-19 and the impact on the UK and
European economies become clearer. The invasian of
Uk-aine by Russia has also increased market uncertainty.
The longer-term :mplications witt difier across the
European econom:es This could lead to currency volatility
Strengthening of sterling would lead to a fall in earnings,

adverse changes in the tax treatment of dividenas or other
income received by the Company,

changes in the T ming of cividend receipts from nvestee
companies,

legacy impact of COVID-19 o1 wornang practices and
resulting changes in woerkspace demand, anc

negative outlook leading to a reduction \n gearing levels in
order 1o protect capital has an adverse effect on earnings
Accounting and operational risks

Sisruption or failure of systems and processes
underpinning the services provided by third parties and the
risk that those suppliers provide a sub- standarc service,

Lnnual Report & Accounts 2023

The Boarc recelves and consigers regular imcome
forecasts

Income forecast sensit vity to changes in FX rates s also
maonitored

The Company 9as substantial revenue 1eserves wnich are
drawn upon when recuirec

The Boarc contimues to monitor the mpact of interest
rates, Brexit and COVID-19 and the long-term implications
tor imcome generation

Therd party service providers produce pericdic reports
to the Boarc on their cantrol environments and bus'ness
continuation provisions on a regular basis.

The Management Engagemen: Committee cons:ders the

performance of each of the service providers on a regular

kasis and considers their ongoing appoitment and terms
and conditions

The Custodian and Depositary are responsible for the
safeguarding of assets. \nthe event of 2 oss of assets
the Depositary must return assets of an identical type or
corespond’ng value unless it is ab e 1o demonstrate that
the logs was the resuit of an event beyonc 1ts reasonable
contro.
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Principal and emerging risks
continued

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Company has been accepted by HM Revenue &
Customs as an invesiment rust company, subject to
continuing to meet the -e evant eligibility conaitions

As sucn the Company 1s exempt from capital gains tax on
the profits real sed “rom tne sale of Investments

Any breach of the relevant eligibi ty conditions could ieac
o the Company lcs.ng mvestmient trust status avd be ng
subject 1o co paranon tax on capiial gains rea"seg witnin
the Company's porifolio

Legal, regulatory and reporting risks

Falure to comply with the London Stock Excnange

L sting Rules and Disc osure Guidance and Transparency
Rules, fallure to meet the requirements of the Alternative
Investmen! Funa Managers Regu'at ons, the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 and other UK European and
oversess leg s ation affecting UK companies

Falure 1o meet the "eguired accounting stanca cs o-
make appropriate disciosures 0 the half Year anc Annua
Reports

Inappropriate use of gearing

Gearing, eithe through the use of bank debt or gervanves,
may be utii-sed from tme o tme Whilst the use of
geernng s intendec 10 enhance the NAY total retun, it vl
have the opposite effect wnen e return of ine Company's
investment porifolie s negatwve or where the cos of geb”
1S n'ghier than the return from the portfolic

Other Financial risks

The Company's vestment act'v Tes expose it 1o g variewy
of finanzial risks whicn nclude counterparty credi risk.
raud ty nisk ane the va'vanen of f nancia mstruments
Personnel changes at Investment Manager

_oss of portfo o manager or other <ey g0

The nvestment Manager monitors the :nvestmen: porifolio,
ncome and proposec anv'dend levels to e1sure that the
provis.ons of C7A 2010 are not bhreached The resuits are
reporzedto tne Board at each meet ng

ncomie farecssts are reviewec by the Company's tax
zovisor througn the vear who also “eports To the Boatd on
the year-end tax pos tion and 01 CTA 2010 comphance

The Board ~ecenes regu ar reguiatory uptates from
the Manager, Company Secretary, iegal adv sers and
the Audizor The Boarc cansiders those ~eports and
recommendations 21c takes acton accordingly

The Board recerves an annual report and upcate from the
Depositary.

Mternal cneckists anc review procecures aren place al
service providers

The Board -ece ves reguiar "epcrts from the Manager on
e levels of gearng i the portfcho These are cons cered
against the gesnng umts set outin the Soard’s Investment
Guidelines ang glso in tne context of current marke?
concriions ant sentiment The cos: ¢f cebt is mon‘tores
and a balance scught ketween term, cost and flexib oy

Deta s of these nisks together with tne o ces for
managing therm are “ounc i the Notes (1o the Financia
Statements

“he Chairman conducts regu’ar meelings with the Fung
Management team

Tnefeebamis protecis the core rfrastructute and deptn
and cuanty of -esou-ces The fee siructure mcensivises
cutpe~‘ormarnce and s fundamen:ial in e ahity o retan
key staff

TR Procert, Irvestmer: Trust



Long-term viability

inaccordance with prov'sion 31 of tne UK Corpaorate
Governance Code, wh ch requires the Corpany

to assess the prospects of tne Company over

tne longer term, the Directors nave assessed the
prospects of the Company over tne coming three
years THus penod is used by the Board dunirg the
strategic pianning process as it cons ders this
perad of tre to be appropriate for a busimess of the
Company's nature and size.

Th's assessment takes account of the Company’'s
current position and the policies and processes for
managing tae principal and emerg rgrisks set out on
pages 3710 40 and the Company's ab: ity to continae
In operatio™ and 1o meet its iabiiities as they fal due
over the period of assessment

In making tnis statermert the Board carried out a
robust assessiment of the principa and emerging
risks facing the Company, incuuding those that might
threaten its business madel, future performance,

so vency and liquidity

In reaching their conclusions tne Directors have
reviewed three yeal forecasts for the Company with
sensitivity analysis to a number of assumptions
nvestee company dividend growth interest rates,
foreign excrange rates, tax rates and asset varue
growtn

In assessing of the viability of the Company the
Directors have noted that:

+ The Company has a long-term investment
strategy under whicn it rvests mai~ly in read’y
realisable, publicly listed securties and which
restricts the level of borrowings.

+ Of the current equity portfolio, 50% codld be
iquidated within five trading days and 71% withir
13 trading days

» Ona Group basis, current assets exceed current
liahilities at the Balarce Sheet Date

+ The Company invests in real estate related
companies whick hold real estate assets and
invests in commercal real estate dinectly. These
mvestments prov de cash receipts in the form of
dividends praperty income d'stributions ard rertal
mcome.

Anrual Report & Accounts 2022

The Comrpany 1s able (o take advantage of its
closed-end investment trust company structure
to hold a proportion of its portfolioin less hguid,
direct property and the less liquid securities of
smaller companies with a view 1o long-term
outperformance.

+ At the Balance Sheet date the Compary had

£120 mihon urdrawn on s revolving foan
faciities

- Trestructure nas aiso erabled the Caompany 1o

secure lorg-term financ ng. EUR 50 m Ihon (oan
notes 1ssued in 2016 are due toc mature at par in
2026 and GBP 15 million loan notes issued on the
same date are due to mature at par 1in 2031

- Theresult of th's ‘s that of our own debt, 32% has

fixed interest rates (assuming all loans are fully
drawn). The flexible structure allows debt levels to
be rapidly increased and reduced as needed,

- Theimpact of COVID-19 on the UK and European

commercial property markets continued to
diminish through the year This resulted in dividend
receipts from investee companies in the current
year s gnificantly stronger than the prior year as
the majority of compar’es have now returred to
paying dividerds, although some at lower ievels
thar before the pandemic.

+ Theinvasion of Ukraine in February 2022 nas

created further market volatility and uncertainty
However the portfolio remaims highly ligu.d.

- The core part of the direct property portfolio is

defensively positiored, witn 40% of the income
secured to a major supermarket for aver 10 years
and benefits from fixed uplifts The balance of the
portfolic s focused on the industrial sector where
the supply and demand dynamics remain positive
frorm an occupational standpont

+ The expenses of the Comrpany are largely

predictable and modest in companson with

the assets. Regular and robust monitoring of
revenue and expenditure forecasts are undertaken
througnout the vear. Analysis has shown that the
Cormpany could suffer a reductior inearn ngs of
B6% ard st'll be able to meet its iabilities from
reverue cashflow as they fell due Fxpenses could
be met entirely fromr capital if required due to the
hgu'd nature of tre portfoho

™
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Long-term viability
continued

Index I.nked income wil benefit from the increase
in nterest rates.

Global irterest rate ncreases nave adversely
affected the property secter and the resditing
increase in the cost of debt will U timately bave an
Impact on ariings.

- Some companies fixed debt for the medium term
s0, far these companies, the impact of cLrrent
rates wi. | rot be feit for a wnile,

+ The Company has 1o employees ard
conseq.ently does rot have redundancy or other
employment re‘ated 'iabi it es or responsibilities

+ The Companyretains title 1o 18 assets neld by the
Custodian wnich are subject to further safeguards
~posed or the Depositary

- Theimpact of a range of factors bave beer
corns dered ir terms of the potential effect cn
stering 66% of the portfolio 's exposed 10
currergles otner than sterling

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

- Real Estate wi'l cortinrLe to be an investib e sector
of internat ¢ral stock markets and imvestors w i
continue to wish 1o nave exposare to that sector

« Crosed-end investrent trust comparies wi '
continue tc be .~ demard by investors ard
regulaton or tax egis'atior wi l not charge to
an extent to Make the structure Loattractive in
compansor to other nvestrent products

+ Theperformance of the Compary wl contrie
10 be sat sfactory Shoud the Board deenr that
perforrarce s less than satsfactory, t~as tne
appropr ate powers ta rep ace the Irvestrient
Marager

The Company's business model, capital structure
and strategy have enabied it to cperate over many
decades and the Board expects this to continue into
the future. The Directors confirm therefore that they
have a reasonable expectation that the Company
will continue in operation and meet its liabilities in
full over the coming three years to 31 March 2026.

By order of the Board
David Watson

I~
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Directors

David Watson

Appointed:
Apnl 20172

Experience:

Davit became Chairmarn July 20290,
prior towhich he served as the Board's
Senior Independent Director ('S0

and Chairrman of the Audit Cormmuttes.
Dav.c spent 8 vears as F:nance Jirector
of M&G Group plc, where he was a
director of four ecuity nvestiment
trusis, anc more recently at Aviva

pleas Chef Finance Officer of Aviva
General Insarance Me was Chairman of
Aegon Asset Maragement UK plz unti
Septermber 2022, Davie ¢ a Chartered
Accourtant anc has had a distinguishes
career ©» the finanoial services dusiry

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Througho ot hs execatve carser Da. o
has accumualated re.evant ski'sin
“nance, addit anc sk maragemer anc
expererce rthe invesiment indastry
Hisexperenceas SIZard Charor g
nurroer of gcards have cunT sign “ car
expererce i sharehocer and insestion
engagemert

Other appointments:
Caz.crscurertyalrettorciihe
Srucerta! Assararce Lomoary whers

e Charstte Auds Do Tee

1Y

Kate Bolsover

Appainted:
Qctober 261¢

Experience;

Kate previously worked for Cazenove
Grougana J P Morgar Cazencove
between 1995 and 2003 where she was
Managing Director of the mutual func
bus ness and iatterly director of Corporate

Communizations Prioric that she worked

extensive.y in the iInvestment fund ‘ndustry
anawas Managing Oirector of Barings
mrutual funds group Kate was previously
anon executve arector of JPMorgar
Arrerican Investment Trust ple. Senior
Indepencent Director of Montanaro LK
Smailer Compan‘es Trustand Chairman
anc Trustee of Tomorrow's People

Skills and contribution to the Board:
From ber exezull e expernence, Kate
contrbutes s.gn ficartanc relevart sk s
of the pyestiyert ndusiry. Her reiz or
VA oUS boards a1s¢ a ves her thereevart
exserence nshareho.cer erdinvesion
encageTent

<

Other appointments:
Kate scurrerty Charmar ofF ce

Lear vz ues PLO anc Ser or Incepencest
Zrectat ofircesce Bong Incore Rius
Limiec She'sa

Cirector o° Banhe S forg 2 Co iz arc ot

aror-esecdt cg

Bele.ue Hea thoare Trust

Tim Gillbanks

Appointed:
January 2C18

Experience:

Timisa Charterea Accoantant with

20 years’ expernencea inthe inarcia,
services and mvestment inaustry Mos?
recently he spent 13 vears at Columhig
Threadreedie Investmenrts, fitially

as Chiet Financial Officer then Chief
Operat.ng Offcer and fnally s interr
Chief Executive OFF cer

Skitls and contribution to the Board:

T Brngs & wade exnenerce, cart caarly
Ir fnanciai serices arc rvestment
TarageTent H s prenods fraroe’
ExPEnence Sanng PIs exesutywe career
irfarms Perar bos roig as the Chairmar of
the A az Corr tlee

Other appointments:

T s currently 2 Nor-Esecut ve Dretior
ofdrowr Shpey& Colmited Jaras
Hergerson ! JKelevestors Lmted and
&nJds Hendersor Croup Holdirgs LI tes
He sasofce-Charotthe Soarac?

Trastees of Rions Cancer JK

TF Properiy Ir jestrmert Trust



Sarah Janc Curtis

" . B . [ .
L e

Appointed:
January 20720

Experience:
Sarah-Jane is a Memcer of the Roya'
Instiiution of Chartered Surveyors She
was previcusly Business Director at
B.cester Village for Value Retall Prior
tothat Sarah-uane was z director of
Covent Garden for Capttal and Counties
PLC. She has also worked for Grosvenor
for 24 years, ‘ncluaing as Londonr Estate
Director (retaivsresidential) and Fund
Manager for LivercoolONE

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Sarah-Jane has gained extensive
experence during her varec

career, zarticu.ary in the retail and
experience sectors and in fund and
mvestment managemen: activit es

Other appointments:

Sarah-Jane s currently Property

D rectar of Bicester Motion aswellas a
corsultant to va'ue Retall PLC.

ArruzsiReport & Accounts 2023

Andrew Vaughan

IR ST KRR
Appointed:
August 2022

Experience:

Andrew oined Redeveo UK 1IN 2000 as
Managing oirector and was appointed CEO
in2071 Hebegan his career a* Frends
Provident where he was a fund manager
Andrew spent three years at Moorfe o Group
asan Irvestment Spec alst before joining
Redevco Hehasa BScinUrban Estate
Surveying.

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Andreye brings deep experience asa par-
Euronean direct property investor

Other appointments:
Andrew s Chief Executive Ofice of
Redevco B WV

Busola Sodeind

M e e T it

Appointed:
January 2023

Experience:

Busoiaisa Chartered Managerment
Accourtant whao has spent most of her
execJtive career In Financial Senvices Urtl
2019 she was a Managing Director/Chief
Financizl Officer at State Street Global
Markets EMEA, prect to which she was
Finance Director to the Carporate Finance
team of Deutsche Bank Caprial Markets
Busola 1sthe founder of a digitarpublishing
firm focused on Iteracy and isalsoa
supporter of wormnen-led ventures.

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Buscla has considerable experience ir
the firancial services sector and from her
non-executive career has gained expertise
in auditand r'sk. She also has experience
ndigita (socialy media ana consurmier
engagement

Other appointments:

B.useals anon-executive airector of
Hargreave Hale AIMVCT PLC. The
Ombudsman Services, a trustee o the
Church Commissioners for Enaland, where
she siz or the Audit & Risk Committes, and
a Trustee of The Scouts Assocation

MIIAIBAN

uodsi aibalens

I
F
o
2
B
®
w0
]
=4
®
3
B
2
I

2INS0I0SIP (N1 Y BUe Aessoln

WY 10 3010N

Uuonewloiul I9DIcUBIBUS



Managers

1

Marcus Phayre-Mudge joined the managerment team
for the Compary at Herderson G'obal Investors in
January 1997, mitiahy managing the Company's direct
property portfolio and latterly focusirg or real estate
equities, maraging a number of UK and pan-European
rea, estate equity funds in addt on 1o actviiies n the
Trust Marcus movedto Thames River Capital in October
2004 where e s alsc fund manager of Thames River
Property Growth & Income Furd Limited Prior to joming
Henderson, Marcus was ar mvestmert surveyor at
K-'ght Frank {19801 and was made an Associate Partrel
in the fund maragement division (1995). He qua 1fied as
a Chrartered Survevor 'n 1992 and has a BSc (Horspir
Land Managerrent from Reading Uriversity.

George Gay

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

Seorge Gay nas beer the D rect Property Fund Marager
snce 2008 He o ~ed Tnaves River Capitar 2005 as
ass stant d rect property manager and qua “led as a
Chartered Surveyor ir 2006, George was prev ous v at
acre Cty nvestr-ert age~t Morga Pepper wrere as
an i~vestrrert graduate te gaimed corsderalr e ~dustry
exper e~ce He rasa~ MA 1 Property Vauat omand Lav
from Oty L cers 1y

Jo Eltiott

P

Jo Elliott mas beer Finance Manager since 1995, first at
Herdersor Global Investors then, since January 20058,
at Tharres River Capital, when she jo.ned as CFO for the
property team. She jomed Hendersor Globa' Irvestors
1995 wnere sne most rece~ty neld the positon of
Director of Property Dmarce & Cperations, Curope
Previoas.y she was Corporate Fance Marager with
London ard Edinborgh Trust pic and pricr to that was
an investment/tieasury analyst with Heron Carporat'an
pc. Jo has a BSc (Hons) ir Zoology from ine University
of Nott ngham ard auanfied as a Chartered Accourtant
with Errst & Yourg i 1988

Alban Lhonneur

Alpan Lhorreur, Deputy Furd Manager jomed Trares
RwverCapta ~A_g.st 2008, He was prev.odsiy at
Ctgro.p G cka Markets as a~ Equity Researcm a~a yst
focusing or Contne-ta Europear Rea Estate Pror i
trat re was at Sodiete Gererale Secur t es where e
fooused o transport eq. ty researct He vas a BSo

ir B.s mess and Maragementfromtre ESC Tollouse
~¢ ud g crevearat Brome U versty Lordor

He @ soattended CERAN Nice Hagh Busmess 3choo
2005 re chta ~ed a post gradoate Spec al sed Master

~Frarce ~ 2008 from ESCP-EAR
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Report of the Directors

The Dnrectors presert the audiled financial statements
of the Group and the Company and their Strategic Report
and Report of Directors for the year ended 371 March

023 Tne Group compnses TR Property Investment Trust
plc andits wholly owned subsidiaries As permitted by
tegislation, some matters normally included n the Report
of the Directors have been ncluded in the Strategic Report
becawse the Board corsiders them to be of strateg'c
impeortance Therefore, the review of the business of tne
Company, recent evenis ard outlock can be found on
pages 1o 12,

Status

The Company is an irvestmert cormpany. as defined in
Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and operates as
ar investirent trust in accordance with Section 11568 of
the Corporat'on Tax Act 2010

Tne Company has a singie share class, Ordinary shares,
with a nomiral value of 25p each which are premium
listed on the London Stock Exchange

Tne Company has received confirmatior from HM
Revenue & Customs that it has been accepted as an
approved investment trust for account'ng periods
commencing on or after 1 Apnl 2012 subject to the
Company continuing to meet the eligibility cord tiors of
Sect:on 1158 Corporation Tax Act 2070 and the orgoing
requirements for approved companes in Chapter 3 of
Part 2 Investment Trust {Approved Company} (Tax)
Regulat.ons 2071 (Statutory Instrument 207171/2999)

The Directors are of the op'nion that the Compary has
conducted and witl cortinue to conduct its affairs sc as
to maintair investment trust status The Company has
also conducted its affairs, and will continue to conduct
its affairs, in such a way as to comply with the [ndividual
Savings Accounts Regulations The Ordinary shares can
be reld in Individual Savings Accounts (1SAs').

Results and dividends

At 31 March 2022 the net assets of the Company
amounted to £968 minor (2022 £1 563 milor), on a per
share basis 305 13p (2022 462 43p} per share

Revenue earnings per share for the year amounted to

17 22p (2022 13.69p) and the Directors recemmend the
paymert of a final chvidend of @ 85p (2022 9 20p) per
share bringing the total dvidend for the year to 15.50p
(2022 14 50p) Ir arrvirg at their dividend proposal, the
Board also reviewed the ncome forecast for the year to
March 2024,

&rrual Report & Accounts 2023

Performance detalls are set cutir the Financial Highlights

on page 2 ard the outcome of what the Directors consider

to be the Key Performance Indicators on pages 35and 36
The Charman's Statement and the Manager's Report give full
detalls and analysis of the results for the year

Share capital and buy-back activity

Al 21 March 2023 the Company had 317,35C,980 (2022
317,350.980) Ordrary snares i issue.

Al the AGM in 2022 the Directors were given powel 1o buy
back Jpto 47 570,911 Ordinary shares Since that AGM the
Directors have not bought back ary Ordinary stares under
that authority, which wili expire at the 2023 AGM The Board
will seek to renew the authority 1o make market purchases
of the Company's Ordinary shares at this year's AGM.

Since 1 Aprii 2223 1o the date of this report. the Company
has made no market purchases for canceilation. The
Board has rot set a specific discount at which shares
will be repurchased

Management arrangements and fees

Details of the management arrangements and fees are

set out In the Report of the Management Engagement
Committee beginning on page 58 Total fees paid to the
Manager in ary ore year (Management and Performance
Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group Equ'ty Shareholders’
Funds Tota fees payable for the year to 31 March 2023
amourt to 0.6% (2022 2 0%) of Group Eguity Shareholders
Funds. Na performance fee was earnad in the year ended
31 March 2023 (2022 £24 489 000).

Basis of accounting and IFRS

Tre Group and Company financial statements far the
year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared o a
goirg concern basis in accordance with UK-adopted
international accodnt.ng standards and in conformity with
the requirement of the Companies Act 2006. The finarcial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with
the Statement of Recommended Practice ‘Financ:a!
Staterments of Investment Trust Companies and Venture
Capital Trusts { SORP') to the extent that 1t is cons'stert
with UK-adopted Interraticna: accountirg standards.

The accounting pol c.es are set out in note 1 to the
Fimancial Statements on pages 86 to 83

I~
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Report of the Directors
continued

Financial instruments

The Compary's Financal Instruments compiise 18
nvestment portfo.o, cash balances borrow.ngs

and debtore and craditors that arse directly frov 1s
operations such as sales and purchases awatng
settlement, prom or 1oss baances on denvative
nstruments and accried ncome and experses The
financ'ai risk management objectives and poicies ansing
from its firarcial instrurrents and exposure of the
Company to nisk aré disc'osed in note 11 to the ‘mangial
statements

Risk management and internal control

The Board has overall responsib-lity for tne Group's
system of nsk management and internal contro and

for reviewing its effectiveness The Portfo'io Manager s
responsible for the day to day imvestment management
decisions an beba'f of the Group Accoarting and
Company Secretaral services have both been ostsourced

The system of nisk management and interna' cortroi ams
to ensure that tne assets of tne Group are safeguarded,
proper accounting records are maintamned, and the
financial information used witnin tne busress and for
publicatior s relable Control of the nsks :dent fied
covernng francal, operatiora,, corrphance and nsk
management, 1s embedded m {he cortros of the Group
by a seres of reqular nvestrert performance ard
attribution statements, financiar and nsk anavses, AIFM
and Portfolia Manager reports and guarterly control
reports

Key risks have beer idertified and contro s put

place to mtgate then o Ld ngl-ose not directy the
resporsibiity of tne AIFM ar Portfol-o Manager The key
rieks are exp'aned in more detal ' the Stiategic Report
or pages 3710 40

Tre effectiveness of eacn tvid-party prov der's interna
controis 1s assessed ¢n a7 0ngong basis by the
Corrphance and Rsk departrents of the AIFM and
Portfoho Marnager, tre Adv.rstrator a~d tre Compary
Secretary Eacn martars s own syste™ of rigk
marage~e~t and interral contror and tre Board a~d
Audit Co~ T ttee receve reguiar reports from trer
Trengk manage™ertand ~terra Cortic syste

s desigred to prov de reasonab g, but ot absolute
ass.ra~ce against watera m sstatere”t of '¢ss aralo
~rarage ratherthan elimmrate r sk of faisretc acmeve
cbject ves Astre Compary rasre emp oyees and te
sperat ona fooctors are wodertakes by thad part es

=N
[ey]

the Audit Commuitee does not consider it necessary for
the Cocmpany to estab,'shits own irternal audit furctior
Irstead, tre Audit Committee rel.es or internar control
reporis receved frarr its principas service provders 1o
satisfy itseif as to the contro's n place

Tre Board ras estab. s~ed a process for dertfyirg
evaltatirg and maragng any major r sks faced by the
Group It undertakes ar arnual review of the Group's
system of rsk maragement and nternal control in lire
with relevart guidance Business nsks have also beer
analysed by the Board and recorded n anisk map that
s reviewed regular.y Bach quarter tre Board recewves a
forma. report from each of tne AIFM, Partfolic Manager,
the Administrator and the Company Secretary detailing
any identfied internal control failures or errors,

The Beard also cons'ders the fow af informatior ard
the interactior betweer tre third-party service praviders
and the cortrols in place 1o ensure accaracy and
completeness of the recording of assets and income
The Board receves areport from tre Porttono Manager
setting out the key contro.s s operation.

The Board also has drrect access to Company Secretana.
advice and serv.ces provided by Coumlbra Threadneedle
irvestrrent Busress Limited wnich, through its
rominated representative, (s respors:ble for ensuring
that the Board and Committee procedures are fo 'owed
and that appcable reguiations are comp red with

These cortrols nave been 1~ place trravghout the year
Lrder review and up to tre date of s.gring the accounts

Key r.sks identified by the Acd tor are considered by t7e
Audit Comimittee to ensure robust interra’ contro s ard
—omitor ng procedures are ¢ piace i respect of these
nsks orar ongo g bass

Annual General Meeting (the 'AGM’)

Tre Corrpa~ys £GM w. be neld at the Royal Automob ‘e
C ub, 8%:97 Pa'l Mali, Le~don SW1TY SHS on Trursaay

23 Jay 2023 at 2 3Cp™ Tne Notice of AGM is set out o7
pages 11010114 and exp anatery ~otes fol'ow or pages
115 and 116

Material interests

Trerewere "o contracts subs stirg durng cratt-eerd
of tre year rwh ch a Directar of the Company 1S Or was
~ateral y nterested ard wnichis or was sig- ficant or
reato~totre Comparyshbug ~ess NoDrector ~as a
cortractof servce v tmtre Corpany Fortrer detar s
regard ng the Directors appo ntrrentletters car be
fo.nd o page 57

TR Eroperty Investment Trust



Listing Rule 9.8.4R

[he Company confirms tnat there are no items which
require disc:osare under Listing Rule 9 8 4R in respect of
the year ended 371 March 2023

Voting interests

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares
Subjectto applicable statutes and cther snareholders’
nghts, snares may be issued with such nghts and
restrctions as the Company may by ordirary resolut on
dec de or (f there 15 no sueh resolution ar s far as it does
not make specific pravision) as the Board may decide
Subject to the Articies of Associat.on (the ‘Articles’), the
Cor~panies Act 2006 and other shareholders' nights,
unissued shares are at the disposal of the Board.

Voting

At a general meeting of the Company, when voting
Is undertaken by way of a poll, each share affords its
owner one vote.

Restrictions on Voting

No member shall be entitied to vote if he has been served
wth a restrict on naotice {(as defined in the Artcles) after
fai.ure 1o provide the Compary with information conceming
Interests N those shares required to be provided under the
Comrpanies Act 2006.

Deadlines for Voting Rights

Votes are exercisabie at a general meet.ng of the
Corpany ‘nrespect of which the busimess being voted
upon is being heard. Yotes may be exercised in person, by
proxy, or in relation to corporate members, by corporate
representatives

The Articles provide a deadline for submission of proxy
forms of not less than 48 hours {or such shorter time as the
Board may determine) before tre meeting (not excluding
no-working days)

Transfer of Shares

Any shares inthe Compary may be held in uncertificated
form and, subject to the Articles, titie to uncertificated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant system Subject
to the Articies, any member may transfer all orary of i's
certficated shares by an nstrument of transfer in any usual
form orin ary other form which the Board may approve,

Annual Repor: & Accounts 2023

Significant Voting Rights

As at 31 Marchk 2023, the following snareholders had notified
that they neld over 3% of the vot ng tights in the Company ¢n
anon- discreticnary basis:

% of voting rights*

Shareholder

Brewin Dolphin Ltd 11.0%
Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 8.4%
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 4.9%,
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 5 5%
Quilter Cheviot Investrmenl Marnagermeant Lid 3.7
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 36%
Charles Stanley Group plc 3.2%
Smith & Williamson Investment Managers 3.0%

* See above “or furtherinformation on the voting nights of Grdnary shares

Since 31 March 2023 the Compary has been informed that
integrafin Holdings ple hold 4 8% of the voting nghts inthe
Company.

Articles of Association

The Company’s Articles of Asscc'ation may oniy be
amended by a special reso-ution at a General Meeting of
the sharehoiders They were amended at the 2021 AGM
and are avanabie to view on the Company's website.

Corporate Governance

Fuldetals are givenin the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 49 1o 55 The Corporate Governance Report
forms part of this Directors’ Report

G
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Corporate Governance report

Tne Beaird of Directors s accountabie to shareholders for
tre governance of the Company’s affairs. This statemert
describes how the principles of the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code (the 'Code’) issued by tne Fnancia,
Reporting Counc | (the 'FRC) in 2018 nave been appued
1o the affarrs of tne Company. The Code can be v ewed at
wivww fre org uk.

Application of the AIC Code's Principles

In app'ying the princ.ples of the Code, the Directors

have also taken account of the 2019 Code of Corporate
Goverrance published by the AIC (the 'AIC Code'), of which
the Corrpany 1s a member The AIC Code estabisnes the
framework of best practice specifically for tne Boards of
investment trast companies. Furthermare, the AIC Cade
has fu'l endorsement of the FRC. which means that AIC
members who report against the AIC Code meet therr
obligations under the Code and the related disclosure
requirements contained ntne List.ng Rules Tre AIC Code
can be viewed at www theac.co k.

The Directors bel'eve that durng the year under review the
Company has cormpred with the mar prircipes and relevant
provisions of the Code, nsofar as they apply to the Corrpany's
business, andwith the provis.ons of tne AIC Code

Compliance Statement

The Directors note that the Company did not compry witr
ine fol'cwing provisions of the Code in the year ended 37
March 2023

Prov.sion 9. Due to the nature and structure of the
Company the Board of ron-executive directors does not
feel it s appropriate o 2ppoint a chef execuive

Provisior 19 Tre Charran has served on the Board for
more thar nne yeais Inaccordance w ib the AIC Code,
the Board roretheless corsiders tnat ne s mdependenrt
He w I stand dowr at tre fortacorm.ng AGM

Provision 24 The Board beuweves tnat a: Directors mc.uding
the Chairrran, showd s ton a' of the Board's Committees

Provision 26 Astne Covparyrasnoempoyeesard Is
operationa' furctiors are urdertaker by inrd partes e
Aud tCommttee does rot consider L appropr ate for t-e
Compary to estab snts own ~terrara.dtfu-ctor Tre
Corpary's sery Ce prov ders provide assaramceof tre:
effective syster of risk —arage™ert a-~d rierma a~d
contro’

Prowvis or 32 The Board does ~ot Fave a separate
Rer_nerat o~ Comr ttee Theflunctorsof 3
Rer~_nerat o~ Com™ittes arecarned ool by tre

Maragere~t Frgageent Com ™ ek

Composition and Independence of the Board

The Board currently consists of s.x Directors, all of
whom are rov-executive. The Board's independence.
nckidirg that of the Chairman. has been considered
ard all of the Directors are deemed to be
independert ir cnaracter and have no relatonstips
ar circumstarces whick are kely to affect their
Jjudgernent

Tne Board subscribes tc the v ew expressed it the

AIC Code tationg-servrg Directors shou'd not be
prevented from forming part of an independent majorty
It does rot consider trat the lergtr of a Director's tenare,
irsoation, reduces their ab iy 10 act independent'y.
The Beard's pol.cy on tenure s that continuty and
experience add signicantly to the strength of the Board,
although 4 believes inthe mer ts of an ongong and
progressive refreshmert of 1s compostion

Diversity

The Board recagruses the berefit of diversity ard

as at the date of th's report if comprises trree mer
and trree womer. Divers ty is taker irto accourt ag
part of the recrutment, appo ntmert and sLccess.or
planning process Tre Board s commitied to
appointng the most approprate candidate, regardless
of gerder or other forms of dversity ard trerefore ro
targets have been set aganst which to repont

iraccordance witn Listing Rule 9 8.6R (9), {10}
ard {11} the Board has provided tre fovowng
nNformat’or .~ relation 1o its diversity

Board Gender as at 31 March 2023™

Number
of senior
Number Percentage positions
of Board of the on the
members Board
Men 3 50% 2@
wWomen 3 50%Y 1@

The Company does nat d sclose the number of D rectors
nexeculive Mmanageren: asth s s not app-cabe foran
Nvesi™en: Irust Company

© Theshree senor pos vons ate Charan of the Board, Seror
Indepenaen: Drecion and Cha rman of the Aud: Commitiee
MNoie -he posg - on of the Chairman of the Aud T Comm see
s no: current y defined ag a sen.or pos onunder the L 87ing
Rues, however (e Board be eves thaz, for an mvestrens rus:
co~ipany, @ shoud be regarded as such as < sbroad yequ vaen:
rothe Chef nanc a Officer of a srading company

" Thsreesthel st g Rues arge: of 40%

* Thsmeeis her stng Rues-arneiof |

TP Property Invesimert Trast
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Board Ethnic Background as at 31 March 2023 ' There are 1w contracts of arrangerents with third
Number parties which affect alter ortermurate upon a
of senior change of control of the Company.
Number Percentage positions
of Board of the on the Dir re
members Board Board ecto : %
Simon Marnson retired from the Board at the z
White British conclusior of the 2022 AGM Andrew Vaughan 5
. L1
or other White was appointed a Director or 1 ALgust 2022 and ]
{including minority- 2] ia Sode'nd d the Board 24 Jar: -
white groups) 5 83% 3@ usola Sode'n ejowlme‘ e Board on 24 Jaruary
. . 2023 The Directors’ biographies are set out
Mixed/Multiple . - P i f
Ethnic Groups 1 17% - on pages 44 and 45. All Directors wiil stand for

re-glection by sharerolders at the forthcoming

The Company does not disciosa the nuimber of Direclors . ) .
pan: L ' AGM Ir accordance with tne Code wih the exceptior

i execulve managernent asthis s notappacab e for an

InvesTTIen: fTust company of David Watson, who will retire from the Board at
- The hree senior pos tions are Chairman of the Board, Senior e conclusion of tne meetirg Kate Belsover wil

Independent Director and Chaitman of the Audiz Committee. succeed him as Chairrmar and Tim Gillbanks will

Note the position of the Chairman of the Audrt Comim ttee become Senior Independent Director

is not current y defined as a sen ar pos tion under the Listing

Rules, however the Board beiieves that, for &N Ivestment rust Board committees

company, I should be regarded as such as 't 's bioadly equivalent o

1o the Chief F nancia’ Officer of a rading company The Board nas established an Audit Commities,

a Nomrmation Committee and a Managerment
Engagement Cormrmittee, wh.ch also carries out

the functions of a Remuneration Committee Al

the Directors of the Company are non-executive

and serve or. each Committee of the Board It has
beer the Company's policy to include all Directars

on all Ccmmittees This encourages unity, clear
communication and avoids duplication of discussion
between the Board and the Committees

The information inc.uded Inthe above tables has
been abtained through questionnaires compieted by
the indwvidual Directors

Powers of the Directors

Stbject to the Company's Articles of Associatior,
the Companies Act 2006 and any directions given
by specia' resolution, the busiress of the Company
's managed by the Board who may exercise all the
powers of the Company, whetner relating to the
maragement of the business of the Company or not.
In particuar, tre Board may exercise all the powers of
the Company 1o borrow maoney and to mortgage or
charge any of its undertakings, property, assets ard
unca'led capital and to ssue debentures ard other
secur ties and to give security for any debt, liability or
obligatior. of the Compary to any third party.

I
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The roies and respensibilites of eacn Committee
are set ocut In the ndividua Committee reports
which foilow. Each Committee has written terms
of reference which clearly define its responsibilities
ard duties. These car be found on the Company's
website, are ava.lable or request and will 3 so be
available for inspectior. at the AGM.

JINSOIDSIP (1A 1Y pUe A1eSS0In

Board meetings
The number of meetings of the Board and Committees held during the year under review, and the attendance of

indiidual Directors, are shown below §
(2]
(13
Board Audit MEC Nomination g
a.
Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible =
David Watsen 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Tim Gillbanks 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Simon Marrison’ 2 2 1 1 0 0 0 0
Kate Bolsover 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
o
Sarah-Jane Curtis 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1 B
[11]
Andrew Vaughan- 4 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 é
Busola Scdeinde- ) 2 2 o 0 1 1 1 1 s
Retired from the Board on 26 July 2022 g
Appanted to tne Board on 1 August 2072 3
Appointed tc the Board on 24 January 2023 S

In addition to formal Board and Committee meetings, the Directors aiso attend a number of ad hoc meetings which
are convened as and wnen necessary
Annual Report & Accounts 2023 =3



Corporate Governance report
continued

The Board

The Board 1s respons:ble for the effective stewardsnip
of the Company’s affars. Certa r strategic 'ssues

are montored by the Boaid at meetings aganst a
framework which has been agreed with the Manager
Additonal meetings rmay be arranged as required. Tne
Board nas a farmal scnedule of matters specficaly
reserved for i1s dec'sion, which are categorised under
vanous headings, nciudng strategy, management,
structure, capital. inancial reporting, internas controls,
geannrg. asset allocat'on share price discount, contracts,
mvestment policy, firance, sk, mvestnent restrctions,
performance, carporate governarce and Board
membersnip and appointmer:ts

In order to enabie them to discharge tnerr resporsibilties
all Drrectors have full and timely access to re‘evarnt
nformation At eacn meeting the Board reviews the
Company's investrrent performarce and considers
firancia' anayses and otner reports of an operatoral
nature. The Board monitors compaance with the
Company's objectives and 1s respons.ble for settirg asset
alocation ard investmert ard gearng hmits within whick
tne Portfolio Manager has discietionto act and thus
superv'ses tne management of the investrent portfolio,
whichns contractually delegated to the Portfo.o Manager,

Tre Board nas responsiblity for the approva. of
iryestmerts ir ungucted irvestments and any
mvestments .- funds maraged or advised by tre
Portfono Manager. It tas also adopted a procedure
for Directors, in the furtnerance of the r daties, to take
independent professional adv.ce at the experse of the
Company

Conflicts of interest

[~ 'Ire with the Comparies Act 2006, tne Board ~as the
power to authorise any potertia! corfiicts of irterest
that may ar:se and impose such .rmits or conditions

as it thinks fit A register of potentiar corficts is
maintaned and srevewed at every Board meeting
toensure a. detays are kept Lp-to-date Appropnate
aut~orsator wil be so.g-t pr ortc the appoartmert of
any ~ew Director or if a~y new corficts arise

Relations with shareholders

Shareno der re'ations are giver ~gn pronty by tne
Beard, tre Ak g-d the Portfo 10 Manager Treprre
TediLy by wicn the Company comiur cates wits
s—areholders ‘s througn the Ha f Yeara~d A-nLal
Reports whcn a 1o provide erarerc ders w tna clear
«rdersta~d ~goftre Companysactvtesardiner
rescts. Tk s rforratic s supp eented by tre da iy
cac. ator of the Net Asset va e of tne Company s
Srdimary shares wr cros pub sned o tre Lordor
Stack Excrarge

o
[

Triginformaton is also avai.abe on the Company's
webs te, www trproperty com. together win a
montnly factsheet ard Manrager commentary.

The Annual Report and Accounts and Notice of the
AGN areissued 1C sharehoiders so as 1o provide at least
twenty working days’ notice of the AGM  n accordance
with corporate governance best pract ce. Sharenoders
wishing to 1odge questions m advarce of the AGM, or to
contact tne Board at any otner tme, are nvited to do sc
by writing to tre Company Secretary at tre reg'stered
address gvenor page 118

Gereral presentations are given to both shareholders
and analysts fol.owing the publication of the anaua)
results. Al meet ngs between the Manager ard
shareholders are reparted to tne Beard

Section 172 Companies Act 2006

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 reguires
directors toact n goed faith and in a way that 1s the
most likely to promote the success of the Compary
Inaccordance wit tre requirements of the
Companies (Miscel'areous Reportirg) Regu'ations
2018 below the Company explains row the
Directors have d scharged ther daty under section
172 during the year. Fuilling this duty ratural'y
supports the Comrpany nach.eving its Investmenrt
Objective and nelps to ensure tnat all dec sions are
Tmade in g respons.ble and sustainab.e way

Onappontment, Drectors are provided with a
detaded irdoction outhirng ther duties, egally

and regulatery as a Director of a UK pubiic rmited
company and continue 1o rece.ve regular relevant
tecrn'ca. updates and trairing. The D rectors also
have access to the advice ard services of the
Compary Secretary and, when deemed ~ecessary,
trey have the opportuity to seek .ndependent
professona' advice - the furtherance of their dut es
as a Drector atthe Corpany’s expense

Decision making
The ~portarce of staker¢'der cors:derations
T partcaiar 2 tne context of decisicn-makng,
regu.ary bro.grtto t~e Boards attertior by tre
Comipary Secretary a~d taken i"1o account at every
Board 'meet ~g The Board cors:ders tre mpact
tmat any ~atenal decisior v nave or a. reevart
stakerolderstc ersare tratit s makng a degision
trat orovotestre ongter™ success oftre Corpay
ametrertn s be forexampe rreatoentod v derds
Cevsirvestyest opportant € ar the Company’s
future strategy 11 add tior, the Board, togetrer with
e Marager ~ads a Teetirg focused on strategy
onaranr.a nas stolook anead im the ~arket and
a~t'cpate potetta scenanas a~d ~cwth s ray
o pact tre Corpary's stakehiolders

TF Property Investirert Tryss



Stakeholders

The Board recogrises the needs and importance of Company), nor does it have a direct impact on the

the Company's stakehoiders and ensures that they are commMmunity or ervironmert in the conventional sense
cons dered durng all its d'scussicns and as part of its T=e Board recognises its key stakeholders and explains
decison-making. Sirce the Company 's ar investment below why these stakeholders are considered important
trust corrpany that is external'y managed, the Company to the Company and tne actions taken to ensure that
does not have any emiplovees {the Directors nave a their ‘nterests are taken into acoount

Letter of Appointment and are rot erp.oyees of the

Stakeholder Group and why

they are important

Board engagement

Shareholders

Shareho der support is
essentlia 1o the existence
of the Company and
gelivery of the ‘ong-term
strategy of the business

The Manager

Hold ng the Company's
shares offers investors a
qguid investment vehicle
through which they can
obtan exposure to the
Company’s diversified
portfalio. The ‘nvestmerit
Manager's performance 13
cntical for the Company
to successiully defverits
nvestment strategy and
meet 115 oh-ective

Annua: Report & Accounts 2023

The Company has over 3,000 shareholders. inclugmg nstitutional and retail investars.

The Board 1s committed to ma.ntaining open channeis of communication anc to engage with
shareholders in a manner they fing most mean ngful in order to gain an understanding of
therr views These incluce the cnannels below:

« Annual General Meeting — the Company welcomes and encourages atiengance and
participation from sharehe ders at ts AGM The Manager gives a presentation at the
AGM on the Company's performance and the future outlook Shareholders have the
opportunity to meet tne Jirectors and Manager and to address questions to them directly
The Company values any feedback anc questions it receives f-om sharehotders ahead of
and during the AGM and takes action or mekes changes if and when appropriate,

« Publications — tne annual and half year reports are made avzilabie on the website and
seqtto shareholders. These publications provide nformatioron the Company and its
portfolio of Investments and a better understanding of the Company's financial position
This 15 supplemented by dary publication of the NAV on the Lendon Stock Exchange and
monthly factsheets on the Company’s website The Company is open to feedback from
shareholders to .mprove its publications.

Shareholder meetings — the Manager meets with shareholcers periodically and often and
feedhack 1s shared with the Board

- Working with the Brokers - the Manager and Broke s work together to maintain dialogue
with shareholders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings The Board is provided
with regular updates at meetings and outside meetings if required.

- Shareholder concerns — |n the event that snareholde s wish to raise issues or concerns
with the Board, they are welcome to do so at any iime by wnting to the Chairman &t the
registered office The Senior Independent Cirector s also avalable 1o sharehowders if they
nave concerns tnat contact through the normal channel of the Chairman has falled 1o
~esolve or for which such contact 1s mappropriate

Maintaining a close and const-uctive working relationship witn the Manager 1s crucial, as the
Board and the Manager both aim to continue 1o achieve consistent, long-term returns in line
with the Company’s investment objective Important components in the coilaboration with
the Manager, representative of the Company's culture include those listed beiow

- Encouraging open, honest and cobaborative discussions at all levels, allow.ng time and
space for onginal and innavative thinking

- Ensuring that the impact o1 the Manager s fully corsidered and understaod before any
busimess decisicn s mace.

« Ensuning that any potential conlicts of interest are avoded or managed effectively

The Board ho'ds detaled discussions w tn the Manager on all key sirateg'c and operationa
tepics on an angomg basis In addition, the Chasrman regular v meets with the Manager to
ensure a close digtogue 1s marntamed
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Corporate Governance report

continued

Stakeholder Group and why

they are important

Board engagement

External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the Depository and

the Broker

Arange of advisers
enatles the Company

to function ang ensure
that [t meets its relevant
obl gations gs an
investment trust compeny
and a constituent of the
FTSE 250

Lenders

Avaiabilny of fund ng and
igqudity are crucia o the
Company's ab,.ty ‘o take
advalage of nvestment
Gpporiut es as they arise

Regulators

The Company can omy
apergté with the approval
of its regulators who have
ategiimate nierest nnow
e Company opérates in
the market and t-eats i1s
shareholders

Investee Companies

Porifolio compan’es are

u rmately snareho.cers’
asseig and the Boarc
"ecogn 583 The 'mportance
of good stewardship anc
communication with
nvestee companes in
meet ng the Company's
inves ment obect ve and
strategy

Tre Board s always ™M rdfu of the requirement to et in

e best mterests of srareho ders az a wrooe andio rave
regard totne otrer requiremerts of sector 172 wcr forr
part of Board's decisio~-mak g process Tre followirg key
dec sions taken by the Beard dornng tre year endea 31 Maron

2023 areexampesofths

Gearing

The Boarc maintaims regular contact with its <ey external prov-ders and receives "egll.ar
reporting from thermn through Board anc committee meetings, s weii as outside of the
reguar meeting cyc.e Theradvice gs we ' astheir neecs ana vews ae rout.nely taken 1nto
account. Tae Manzgement Engagement Comm:ttee formally assesses their performarnice
‘ees ana continuing eppointment at 'east annually 10 ensure that the key service proviae's
continue to function at an acceptable leve and are approprately remunerated to celiver

the expected level of service The Audit Commitiee reviews and eva uaies the coni ol
environments in place at each service provicer as appropriate

The 3o0a-d rieecs to demanstrate -o lenders tnat it 's a well-managed business, capable of
ceivering long-term returns consistenty

The 3oard regular vy considers how it ana the Company mee: the various reguiatery and
statutory ob :gations and folows voluntary ang best-practece guidance, ncluding how any
governance dec sions 't makes can have an 'mpact 01its stakeholders, both in the shorte-
and intne longer term.

The Manage™ communicates regu ariy w th portfolio companies anc g an engsged!
sherenolder (01 benar of the Company) Tne 3oard monitorg the Manage s slewardsn
arrangements and receives regu.a- feechack on meet ngs with 11e management of portfolio
compsanies anc vobing at the - generai meelnys

Dividends

Sabjectio srareroider approva of 1-e proposed final
dwderd the Company w'. paya tota dwidend of 15 30p for
tne firanc’a year, represertng ar rerease of 6 9% on the
RrevioJs year [7Co e roge Srarg v as comMpan es resured
payrgdv derds and as aresat this years dividend s
covered by ear- ngs I7tta forecasts for the fimarcial year
t¢ 31 Marcn 2024 rd catethat revenue may failaganasa

Durmgtrefirarca year tne Compay contimoed o
fise tsexistrgrevohvirg annualicar fac 'hies and

fo owinrgarevewofthe ava ahe opt 07s 2ac” were
re~ewed o broadly s arters asitererevas fe
cuetrrowgrouttre year Toe Board skeertora-ta -
awderarge of barkirgreateorsr.pstecensaret at t
~as accessto adiverse rarge of ter~s and s ot re ant
onary ore proy der Tre fac tes proade fex bty and!
comp emertthe ionger-ter™ pr sate p'acement fixed
ter— debttrat ¢ ~ place

54

~omiber of companes have suspended d'v derds The Board
recogn sestre mportance of dridends to shareho ders a-d
s.hject 1o caef . revievy of ine CoTpanys reverue forecasts
ardreseriesicoetner vatr tre mvestmert osl ook trears
prepared to csereverue reserves to seppert the dwderds
paid tc erare~c ders gver pericds of ~corre srortfa or

s atuty foridentied reasons

TR Property Iryestrent Trast



Portfolio management

During the year the Board continued to focus on the
performarce of the Mzanager in achieving the Compary’s
investment object ve wtnin an appropriate risk

framework The Board continued to consider the 'mpact
onthe Company (incuding portfolio activity, nsks and
opportunites, gearing, revenue forecasts and the aperations
ot other third party providers) of a number of everts througn
the financiat year to ersure that the portiolo nad sufficiert
res’l.ence together witk the Company's operatioral structure
10 meet the unprecedented ¢ rcumstances

Culture and business conduct

Tne Board believes that having a good corporate

cdlture, particuiarly in its engagement with the Manager,
shareholders and other key stakeholders, aids delvery of

its long-term strategy. In ine with this purpose, the Board
promotes a culture of openness, debate and integrity through
0ngoing engagement with the Manager and with its other
service providers. The Directors agree that establishing and
mai-taining a healthy corporate culture within the Board and
i"1ts mteraction with the Manager, sharehelders and cther
stakeholders will support the delivery of its purpose, values
and strategy The Board strives 1o ensure that its culture is in
Jne with the Company's purpose, values and strategy

The Cornpany has a number of policies and procedures

in place to assist with maintaining a culture of good
goverrance Inciuding those relating to diversity, Directors’
conflicts of interest and Directors” dealings in tne Company’s
shares. The Board assesses and monitors compliance witn
these policies as well as the general culture of the Board
regularly through Board meetings and in particular during
the arndal evaluatior precess (for mare irformation see the
Board eva uation section or page 56)

The Board seeks to appoint the best possible service
prov-ders and evaluates therr service on a regular basis as
descrbed or page 58 The Board cons'ders the culture of the
Manager and other service providers, Including therr policies
pract-ces and benhaviour, through reguiar reporting from
those stakeholders and in particuiar durning the annual review
of the performance and cortinuing appoiniment of all service
providers

Employee, social impact and wider community
The Board recognises the requirerment under the Compari es
Act 2006 to detail nfonmaton about human ngnts,
ermpioyees and community 1ssues, nouding information
about any polices it has in relation to those matters and

the effectiveness of those pol cies These reguirements,
practicaily, are not applicabe to the Company as it has no
erployees, all the Directors are non-executive and it has
outsourced il operational functions to third-party service
providers Therefore, the Company has ot reparted further in
respect of these provisions

Annual Report & Accounis 2023

Directors’ indemnity

Directors' and Officers’ habiity insurance cover is in
place in respect of the Directors. The Company's Articles
of Associat’or azow 1, to the extent permitted by the
Companies Acts, to indemnfy the Directors against any
I'ability

The Campary has ertered into deeds of ndemnity for

the benefit of each Director of the Cormpany nrespect of
liablities which may attach to them - therr capacity as
Directors of the Comrpany These provisions, which are
qualifying third party ndermnity prov.sions as defined by
section 234 of the Compan’es Act 2006, were introduced in
January 2007 and currently remair in force,

Directors' statement as to disclosure of
information to the Auditor

The Drectors who were members of the Board at the tme
of approving the Directors’ Report are isted on pages 44
and 45 Having made enquiries of fellow Directors and of the
Company's Auditor each of the Directors confirms that:

- sofar asthey are aware there is no .nformation of which
the Company's Auditor 1s unaware, and

« each Director has taken a I the steps that they ought to
nave taken as a Director to make themselves aware of
any refevant acdit informat.on and tc estabhst that the
Company's Auditor 's aware of that ‘nformation

This informaticn is given and snould be interpreted in
accordance with the provisiors of Sect.en 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

L attan

By order of the Board,

Columbia ThreadneedI|e Investment
Business Limited,

Company Secretary
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee
Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities
Review the Board arnd its Comim tiees and make
recormerdations to the Board in relation to structure,
size and compostion, the balance of krow edge,
exper ence and skii ranges;

- Consider succession pranning ard tenure poiicy and
cversee tre deveiopmert of a diverse pipetine:

+ Consider the re-election of Directors; ard
= Review the outcome of the Board evaiuation process

The Nominat on Corrmittes meets at least annually,
and maore freguently as and wner requ red It last met ir
March 2023

Activity during the year

Tne Committee d' scussed succession p armng of

the Board, ts terure ard diversity poicies ltreviews
araua ly the size ard structure of the Board ard wi l
continge to review sJccess-or plarirg and fortner
recruit~ent, taking .nto account the recommendat’'ons
of Board evalLations The Commrittee apponted a search
consultant and, followirg interviews with a rumber of
suitabe candidates, it recommended the appointment of
Busala Sodeirde to the Board

Board evaluation

Doring tre year the Board engaged T M Stephenson

of Stepherson & Co ar indeperdent coTpary wh'ch
specalses in vestrment trust board evaluaticons, to
faciitate ar rdependent eva uation of the effect veness
of tre Board, 'ts comrmittees ard the performarce of
each Director. Ir additior to tne Directors, the most
senior merrbers of tne Investmert Management teams
were nterviewed Mr Stephersors report was d scassed
bv the Committee

Theeva uatior was considered by the Corrmttesto be
constroctve rterms of analysing Board corpes o™ and
providd ng recormendat ors on Board ssccessior pianrimg.

Trerewere ~osgnficartactorsar s g from the
evaluat.on process and it was agreed trat the corrent
compostior of the Board and s Committees refected a
s. tabe ~ix of skils a~d experence a~dtrat tne Board
asaw cie the ~dvdual Crectors ard its Comrmittees

viere fuction ng effect ve'y

W
o

I~ ‘gnt of the external performance eva.uation, the Board
confirms tat the performance of eact Director continLes
10 be effective and demaonstrates therr commitment to
taeirro e Trerefore all Directors, with the exceptior of
David Watson, will offer themselves for re-electior at the
forthcomimg AGM. Further informat’'on or eacn Director's
sk’.ls, experience ard their contribLtion to the Board are
out med in the biograpnies on pages 44 and 45

Ir accordance witn the provisions of the Code, it ‘s the
intent'or cf t1e Board to engage an external facitator to
assist witn tre performanrce eva:Lation every three years
and tne next exterra: evaluation wil be carned out during
the year ending 31 March 2026. The Board wil continue
to complete an i~ternal board evaluat:on annaaly in the
irtervening years

Board’s policy on tenure

Provis.on 24 of the AIC Code of Corporate Governarce
aliows a different approach to tenure n reation to irvestment
companies, refecting how they differ to operating
companies \n 1ot naving a chief executive, The Board took
INto consideratior the approacn and introduced its 'Poicy
Goverring Board Merbers' Tenure and Reappontment’.
is policy outires the Board's approach totenure and
reappointment of non-execJtive directors 1t states iis be ief
that the value broaght t~rougr contuity and expenence of
Drectors with onger periads of service is rot orly desirable,
but essenta nan investrent company 17e Board dd

not fee' that twould be appropr ate to set g spec™ic tenare
I'rit for .ndivd.al Directors or the Cha rman of the Board

or its cormittees Instead, the Board wl seek to recruit
anew Drector on average, every two to three vears so as
reguiary to brg the stiru.as of fresh thirking nto the
Boards d scussons ensurirg that oneacn occasion that the
Board erters ri¢ new mvestrent comriiments, at east
nalf t7e Board members bave direct personal expenerce of
"egotating previoLs cormitrmients with tne Ma~ager

Board Succession

Havirg served as a Drector sce 2012, Lwli stand downr
frem tre Beoard at the cencius o of trhe forthcor g
AGM Kate Boisover wi succeed ™e as Crarman

T~ 51 barks will succeed Kate as Semior Imdeperndent
Drector. Buso a Scdende was appo ~ted a D rector or
24 _ancary 2023 Anindependent third party agercy,
NLrore L ited was ergaged for tre recrultmert orocess
wr orresy ted v Buse as appo rtrent Nurcle nave ro

ctner comnect o w tntne Corpary

TP Procerty Irvesimert Trust




Directors’ training

Qn appomtment new D rectors are offered tra ning to
suit therr needs Directors are also provided with key
informat on on the Company’s activities on a regdJlar
basis inciuding regulatory and statutory requirements
and nterral cortrols Charges affecting Directors’
respors.bilities are advised to the Board as thoy arise
Directors e~sure that they are updated or regulatory,
statutory and industry matters

Letters of appointment

No Director has a contract of employreert witn
the Company Directors’ terms and condtions for

appo ntrrent are set out ir ‘etters of appoirtment which
are available for inspectior at the reqistered office of the

Company and at the AGM

David Watson

N
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Report of the Management Engagement Committee

Management Engagement
Committee (the 'MEC’)

Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities
- Monitor and review the performance of the AIFM and
Portfoiic Manager,

Revew the terms of tre Irvestment Management
Agreement;

« Annually revew the contracts and performance of
eacn externa! third-party service provider ard

« Review, on an annual basis, the reruneration of tne
Directors

" addition to nvestment Mmanagemert, the Board
has deegated 1o external tn rd partes the depositary
ard custodia services furctions (wrich include the
safeguarding of assets), the day to day accodnting,
company secretar.a’ administration and share
registration services tach of these contracts was
ertered into after fuill and proper consideratio™ of the
qua‘ity of the services offered, inc'uding the control
systems in operation irsofar as they relate ta the
affairs of the Compary The MEC deternires and
approves Directors’ fees, having regard 1o the leve of
fees payab e to non- execuative D rectors 0 the industry
general'y, the role that nd vidual D'rectors fufi'm
respect of Board and Commitiee respors.biities and
the time committed to tne Company's affars For
further detai's please see tne Directors’ Remuneration
Report on pages 63 to 65,

Tre MEC meets at least annua ly towards tne end of
tne financial year and last met ir March 2023

Activity during the year

At the meeting nexd in March 2023, tre MEC
reviewed tne performarce of tne AIFM a~d Partforo
Marager a~d corsdered both tne appropriateness
of tre Marager's appo-tme~t ard the contractua:
arrangeneris (e Ldirg the stracture ard evel of
re~.neration) w I~ tne Manager

1 addtcrtctnherev ews by the MEC tre Board
reviewed and cons'dered performance reports
from tne Portfo 1o Manager at eac Board meeting
Tre Board aiso received regular reparts from tre
Ad~angtrator and Corpany Secretary

T-e Board be eve trat the Manager's track record
and performancererars outstand ~g Asaresut,
tme MEC co~firrred trat tne AIFM and Portfo o
Manager shoud be retaned for the Anarc al year
endng 31 Marck 2024 be'~gn the best rterests of

wn
€8]

al’ shareho.ders A sumimary of tre sigriicant terms

of the Investment Management Agreemert and the
third-party serv-ce providers who support the Compary
are set out below

Dur.rgtneyear, the MEC also reviewed the performance
of all their th rd party service providers includirg BNP
Parbas Computershare, Co umb.a Tnreadneedle acting
as Comrpany Secretary, both fims of corporate brokers,
Parmure Gordon and Stifel, and PwC (as tax adv sors)
The Portfo 1o Manager provides reqgular updates on the
perforrance of ali third-party providers during the year
ard attended trus part of the MEC Meeting. The MEC
confirmed that it was satisfied with the level of serv.ces
delivered Dy each third-party prov-der

Management arrangements and fees

Or 171 suly 2074, the Board appointed BMO investrent
Business Urr'ted {(now Colurmbia Trreadreedle
IMvestment Busness Limted) as the Company’s
Alternative investment Fund Marager (ir accordarce
witn the Alternative Investment Fund Managers
Direct've; wath portfelio management delegated to the
Investrent Manager, Trames River Capital LLP

The significant terms of the Investment Maragement
Agreement with tne Manager are as fo.laws

Notice period

The Irvestment Maragement Agreement ((IMA])
provides for termination of the agreement by eitner
party withoLt compensat on o tne prov sion of not
esstnan 12 months wr tten not.ce

Management fees

The fee forthe per od Lrder review was a fixed fee of
£38950C0 pus an ad valcrerr fee of G 20% pa based
ontne net asset va ue (determ ned in accordance w o
tne AIC metnod of valuat’'on) on t~e ast day of March,
Jure September and Decerber, payable quarter'y
advarce The fee arrangements have beer reviewed by
tne Board for the year to 31 March 2024 ard tre fixed
eemert of tre fee w'i ncrease to £4.090 000, wrilst
the ad valcremirate w il rera n w-gnanged

Tre Board continues to corsider that tie fee structore
al'grs tne rierests of the srarerolder and tre Manager
aswe. asbengngnycepet tve

Tre fee arrargemets v Cort e to be reviewed on
ananrdaibass

Performance fees

In gdd t-o~ to the manager=ert fees e Board nas
agreedto pay the Mar~ager perfor—arce re.ated fees r
respect of a» accounting perad feertar perforance
object ves are ach eved

TF Propertydrvestmert Trus?



A performance fee s pavab-eif the total return of
adjusted ret assets (after deduction of ali Base
Maragement Fees and otner expenses), as defined
nthe IMA, at 31 Marcn each year outperforms the
total returr of the Compary’s benchmark plug 1%
(the 'hurdle rate’), this outperfarmance (expressed
as a percentage} 1s known as the ‘percertage
odtperformance’. Any fee payable will be the
amount equivalent to the adjusted ret assets at

31 March each year muitipted by the percentage
odtperformance, ther mulliptied by 15%. The
TAaXImLmM performarce fee payable tor a period s
capped at 1.5% of the adjusted net assets However,
if the adjusted net assets at the erd of any penod
are less than at the begirning of the period, the
maximum performarce fee payable will be imited to
1% of the adjusted net assets.

Adjusted Net Assets means the Net Asset Value
after (i} excluding ary increases or decreases in Net
Assel Value attributabie to the 1ssue or repurchase of
any Ord.nary Shares, (1) adding back the aggregate
amount of any dividends paid or distnibutions made
irrespect of any Ordinary Shares; and (in) excluding
the amourt of ary Performance Fee accrued for

the period

If the total return of snareholders’ funds for any
performance period is less than the benchmark

for the re:evant performance period, such
underperformance (expressed as a percentage} will
be carr-ed forward to future performance periods

If any fee exceeds the cap, such excess performance
(expressed as a percentage) will be carried

forward and applied tc offset any percentage
underperformance in future performance periods.

In the event that the benchmark is exceeded but

the hurdle is not, that outperformance of the
benchmark can be used to offset past or future
underperformance. These amounts can be used

for offset purposes orly and therefore cannot have
tne effect of creating a fee in @ year where a fee
would not otnerw:se be payahble or increasing the

fee in that year The -1.5% underperformance of

the benchmark in the current year has been offset
against the brought forward outperformance

as descrbed above Asaresult of this, the carry
forward of outperformance at 31 March 202315 0 4%
(2022 1 9%)

2
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Management company

On 8 Novermber 2027 BMO's asset management
busiress in Europe, the M ddle East and Africa became
part of Columbia Threadneedle Irvestments the global
asset management business of Ameriprise Financial,
Inc The piocess of integrat ng the two firms 15 well
advanced and both comparies have confirmed the
Importance of maintaming the stability and continuity
of the teams which support the Company

Depositary arrangements and fees

BNP Paribas was appointed as Depositary on

T4 Jely 2014 in accordance with the AIFMD

The Depostary’s responsibilities include. cash
monitoring segregation and safe keep ng of the
Company's financial imstruments; and monitoring the
Company's complance with investment and ieverage
requirements. The Depositary receives for i1s services
a fee of 2 0 basis ponts per annum on the first

£150 million of the Company’s assets, 1 4 basis pomnts
per arnum on assets above £7150 million and below
£500 million and 0.75 basis points an assels above
£500 million.

Review of third party service

providers fees

Custody and Administration Services are provided

by BNP Paribas and Compary Secretarial Services

by Coumbia Threadneedle Investment Business
Limited The fees for these services are charged
directly to the Company and are disclosed witmn other
administrative expenses d sclosed in notes 1o the
accounts

David Watson
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit committee
Chairman: Tim Gillbanks

Key responsibilities
+ Review the internai financial and non-firancia!
controls;

- Review reports from kev third party serv.ce prov ders,

+ Consider and recommend to the Board for approval the
cortents of the draft Ha:f vear ard Arnua Reports:

+ Review account ng po'ic.es and s.grificart finanoial
reporting judgements,

- Monitor, togetner with the Manager, tne Compary's
compliance wth financial reportirg, mainterarce of
investmert Trust status ard regulatory requrremenrts.
and

Cansider the impact of providing non-auadit services on
the external ALditor's independerce ard objectivty.

Representatives of the Manager's internal audit and
cormpliance departmerts may attend committee
meetings at the Committee Chairman's reguest

Represertatives of the Compary's Auditor attend the
Cor~mtee meet ngs at wh'ch the draft Half Year and

~1Jal Report and Accounts are reviewed ard are given
the apportunity 1o speak to the Comim ttee members
without tre presence of tne representatives of the
Marager

Tre Beard recognises the reguirermert for at east ore
Committee member to Nave recent and relevart nancial
experience and for the ALdit Cormrmittee as a who.eto
nave competence refevant 1o the sector The Comrmittee
Chairman Mr Watsor and Ms Sodeinde are gua ified
accountants with extersive and recent experience 1 tre
Fina~cial Services Industry Tre other mebers of tne
Committee nave a combinatior of property, “inanc’a!
myestment and business exper ence through senor
positicns re dthroagnoat trer careers

Activity during the year
Dur =g trevyear ithe Commmittee met bw ce vato all
~e~bers at eacn Teet rg and corsderedtrefolow g

- Considerat or of the R sk Map:ary cnanges to
the ke 'Focd or mpact of r.sks a~d consequert a
crarges requred to Beard Monitor rg ard ~ut.gatior
pracedores Corsidelat on of anvrev orererg ~g
rsksard vcoson rtreRisk Map fappropr ate

Tris has included consideraticon of the impact of the
COVID-19 pardemic, Russia's invasior of Ukra'ne,
"flatiorary and terest rate increases across a range of
risk categones,

- Tne Groups Interral Cortro's and consideration of the
Reports thereon,

The ISAE/AAF reports or the r equivalent from BMG/
Columbia Threadneedle and BNP Paribas;

+ Whether the Corrpany should have 1ts own internai
avdtfuncton,

+ Theextermal Aud'tor's plarning memorandum setting
out the scope of the annua audit and proposed key
areas of focus,

+ Tnereports from tre Auditor corcern ng its aud't
of the Finarciai Statements of the Company ard
Consideratior of Significant issues ;N relatior to tne
Fnanc'a Staterents:

+ Treapproprateness of ard any changes to, the
accountirg po c'es of the Corpany, ncudngthe
reasorab eness of any judgements requred by sLc
poicies:

- Tne Long-Term Viabi ity statement and consideration
of the preparatior of the Financ.a Statements on
a Gong Concern bas.s. taking accourt of forward
iook’ g ircome forecasts, the lg.'dity of the
investnient partfolio and debt profile,

+ Trefinancal and otner d'sclosures ir the F narcial
Statemerts.

« Tnerformation preserted in t-e Half Year and Anrual
Reports to assess whether taker as a whoe, they are
fair, balanced and understandable and the information
presertedw | enabe srare-olders to assess tne
Co™panys pos tion perfermance, business mode
ard strategy.

+ Treperfarmarce of tne exterral auotor to approve
treracdtfees ardco~s dertre assessrert of
deperdence

* Trerey ey asd subseqgee~t proposa totne Board of
the ~ter~ang s dv'de~ds ard

Trerevewa of the Committee's ter~s of refererce,

ensLr ~gtrey rema s appropr.ate and comp art Wit
tre 2018 UK Corporate Gaoverrarce Code

B “reperty Insestmert Trast



Going concern

In assessing whether it continues 1o be appropriate to
prepare the Accounts or a Going Concern basis, the
Committee has made a detailed assessment of the
ablity of the Company and Group to meet its liabilities
as they fall due, including stress and liquidity tests which
considered the effects of substantial fails in investment
valuations, substantial reductions in revenue received
and reductions in market hquidity.

In I'ght of te testing carried out, the overal levels of

the nvestment .iguidity neld by tre Company and the
significant net asset position, the Parent Company and
Group, the Directers confirm that they are satisfied that
the Cormpany and the Group have adequate financial
resources to continue in operation for at least the

qext 12 months forlowing the signing of the financial
statements and therefore 1t 1s appropriate to continue to
adopt the Going Concerr basis of accounting.

The long-term viability of the Company was also
assessed as set out on pages 41 and 42.

Risk management and internal control

The Board has overall responsibifity for the Group's
system of Risk Managemenrt and Internal Control and for
reviewng their effectiveress. Key nsks identified by the
Auditor are considered by the Aud't Committee to ensure
tnat robust internal contro's and moritaring procedures
in respect of these are In place on an ongoing basis.
Further details can be feund on page 48

The Audit Committee receved and considered reports
on Internal Controls from the key service providers. No
areas of concern were highlighted

The Company’s Risk Map was considered to identify

any emergirg risks and whether any adjustments were
required tc existing risks, and the controls and mitigatior
measures In place in respect of those risks

Elevated levels of inflation and interest rates and the
Russian invasior of Ukraine were also considered and
the risks associated with those events reflected in the
risk map.

The legacy impact of COVID-19 on economres around

the world and operational ¢changes made by our service
providers i1 resporse to changing workp:ace practices
were considered and the nsk nrap adjusted accordingly

Based on the processes and controls in place within
Columbia Threadneedle Investments and other
significant service providers, the Board has concurred
that there 15 no currert reed for the Company to have s
own nternal audit functior.

Annual Report & Accounts 20232

Significant issues in relation to the financial
statements

The Committee has considered this report and financial
statements and the Long-Term V-ahility statement

on pages 41 and 42 The Committee considered the
Auditor's assessment of risk of material misstaterment
and reviewed the internal controls in place in respect

of the key areas ‘dentified ard the process by wh:ch

t1e Board mon'tors each of the procedures to g've the
Cormmittee comfort on those risks on an engong basis
Those risks are also nighlignted in the Committee’s Risk
Map

- Carrying ammount of listed nvestments (Group and
Parent Compary) — the Group's investments are
priced for the daily NAV by BNP Paribas.

The quoted assets are priced by the Administrator's
Global Pricing Platform which uses independent external
pric:ng sources The control process surrounding this s
set out in the BNP Paribas AAF 01/06 Internal Controls
Report and testing by the reporting accountant for the
period reported to 30 September 2022 which did not
reveal any significant exceptions. The gquarterly control
report to the Board from BNP Paribas covering the perod
up to 37 March 2023 disclosed no sigrificant issues (o
report In addition, on each business day, the Manager
estimates the NAV using an alternative pricing source as
an independent check.

The Auditor agreed 100% of the listed investments of the
portfolio to externally quoted prices and ndependently
received third-party confirmat’ons from investrment
cLstodians and found the carrying value of hsted
irvestments to be acceptable.

« Valuation of Direct Property Investments {Group and
Parent Company! - the pnysical property portfalio is
vaiued every six months by professional independent
valuers.

Kright Frank LLP value the portfolio on the basis of

Fair Vaiue in accordance with the RICS Valuation —
Frofessional Standards VPS4 (1.5) Fair Vaiue and VPGA
1 ValLations for Inciusion n Financial Statements,
which apply the definitior of Fair Value adopted by tne
international Financiar Reparting Standards IFRS 13
defines FaT Value as.

"The amount for wkich an asset could be exchanged, a
hability settled or an eguity instrument granted codld be
exchanged, between knowledgeable, willng parties nan
arr'slergth transactior’
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Report of the Audit Committee
continued

In undertaking thén va uation of eacr property,
Knigrt Frank make their assessmert on the basis of
a collation and aralys's of approprate comparab e
mvestments, renta: ard sale trarsactions, together
with eviderce of demrard witn™ the vicin.ty of each
property. Tris nformation s then app.ied to the
properties, taking into account ' ze, locat'or terms,
covenart and otner matenal factors.

Tne Board ~as reviewed reports from the Marager
and the exterral valuer and determined the va'uation
to be reascnabe

The Auditor has set out therr detared testing ard
procedures inrespect of the direct property va uat on
ard congluded that they found the Company’s

va Latior of iInvesiment praperties to be acceptab e

There has beén noth ng brought to the Commritiees
atte~tion in respect of the financ'a staterrents for
the vear erded 31 March 2023 that was matenal

or significant or tnat the Comm ttee felt should be
brought to sharenciders’ attertior

Auditor assessment and independence
The Company's exterral audtor, KPMG LLP (KPMG )
was apponted as the Company's auditor at the 2016
AGM. Tne Commttee Lndertock a review durng
2021 to ensure that shareholders were receving

t~e best services and value for money A number of
firmeg were invited to express interest and respond
onasma'l number of key poirts. The decision was
made for the addt to rema 1 with KPMG. Th's s Mr
Merchant's secord year as the Company's Audt
Partner

The Committée expects to repeat a tender process
no later tnan 20261 respect of tne audt for the
follow.ng 31 March vear erd. in l.re vtk tne current
audtreg.lators

At the naf year meeting of tre Com™imittee, KPMG
presented tre raudit pla~ fartne year erd and the
Com™irrittee considered the acd t process and fee
proposat Tne Comrrttes asc rev ewed KPMG's
~dependerce pol'c es and procedures ~c ud'ng
g.a ity assurance procedares It was considered that
tncse po ces are fit for purpese a~d the Directers
are sat sfed trat KPMG s rdependent

Tcta fees pavabietctre Avdiorimrespect of t-e
sudtfortreyearto 31 Mare 2023 were
FO7 0002022 £82 000y wron were approved Iy

the & dit Cor tiee

o]
)

The Comrrittee has approved and ‘mplemrented

a pol cy on the engagenert of the Auditor to
sapply non-audit serv.ces, tak ng nto accourt the
recommendations of tne Account'ng Pract ces
Board with a view 1o ersdring tnat the external
Auditor does not provide ror-audit services that
have the potential to '™parr or appear to impair tre
independence of their audit role In add tion, tne
Committee eviewed tne actions put in place by
the Auditor ta ensure there was a ciear separation
between aLdtand advisory servces. The Commitiee
does not believe there to be any impediment to t=e
Auditor's objectivity and independerce

Full detarls of the Auditor's fees are provided in nate
6 to the accounts o1 page 85 The fees for non-
audt services for the year 10 31 March 2023 wereo nil
(20227 1.1

Foliowirg each audt the Committee reviews tne
audtprocess and cons.ders its effectveness

and the gua ty of tre services provided to tre
Company. Witnin this process, the Committee
takes nto consideratior: ther own assessment, the
seif-evallaton of the auditor and the Audit Quality
Review Report produced by the FRC i order to
moritor tne progress of the Audtor's performarce
coTparablewitnits peers and the targets set by
the FRC Therevew falown g the completior of
the 2023 avd t concluded that the Comr ttee
was satisfied with toe Auditor's effectiveness and
performarce The Comm tee fe'lt that KPMG had
rar an effective and effic ent audit process witr
appropr ate challerge A resciution tore-appo nt
KPMG LLP as the Company's Aadicrwiiibe put to
sharetio'ders at the forthcorirg AGM

Tim Gillbanks

TR Property InLestmert Trust



Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

The Board has prepared this report and the Directors’
Remuneration Policy, In accordance with tne
requirerments of Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium
Sized Companies and Groups (Accourts and Reports)
Regulat:ons 2013, An ord nary resolution for the
approval of this report wil be put to the members at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The law requires the Cormpany's Auditor KPMG LLF,
to audit certain of the disclosures provided. Wnere
disclosures have been audited, they are indicated
as such The Auditor's epin:on s included in the
'Independent Auditor's Report’

Annual statement from the chairman
of the committee

The MEC met 'n March 2023 ard considered the results
and feedback from the Board evaiuation it was agreed
that the Directors’ fees would be ircreased, witk effect
from 7 April 2023, to tne followng levels: Chairman
£73,000; Audit Committee Chairman £43,000; Senior
Independent Director £43,000, and otmer Directors
£37,000.

Directors' remuneration policy

The Company’s policy 1s that the fees payable to the
Directors should reflect the ime spent by the Board on
the Company’s affairs and the responsibilities borne
by the Directars and should be sufficient 1o enable
candidates of fugh calibre to be recruited. The policy 1s
for the Charman of the Board, the chairman of the Audri
Committee and the Seniar Independent Director to be
paid hrgher feeg than the other Directors in recogrition
of their more onerous roles This policy was approved
by the members at the 2020 AGM, and the Directors’
intention 1s that this will continue for the year ending
37 March 2024, In accordance with the regulations,

an ordinary resolution to approve the Directors’
remuneration policy will be put to shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM on 20 July 2028, as reguired every
three years,

The Directors are paid in the form of fees, payable
monthly in arrears, to the Director personally or to a third
party specified by that Directer There are no long-term
incentive schemes, share option schemes or pension
arrangements and the fees are not specifically related

fo the Directors’ performance, either individually or
collectively

Anrual Report & Azcounis 2023

The Board comprises entirely of non-executive Directors,
whose appointments are reviewed formally every year
None of the Direclors have a contract of service and a
Director may resign by notice in writing to the Board at
any time, there are no notice periods and No payments
made for loss of office Theteims of thew appomtment
are detalled in an appointment letter when they join the
Board As the Directors do not have service contracts,
the Company does not have a policy on termination
pavments. i he Company’s Articles of Association
currently it the iotal aggregate fees payable to the
Board to £ 300,000 per annum.

Any shareholders’ views in respect of Directors’
remuneration are communicated at the Company's
AGM and are taken into account in formulating the
Directors remuneration pohcy At the 2022 AGM,

90 8% of shareholders’ vates cast were in favour of the

resolution approving the Directors’ Remuneration Report,

with 0 2% against, showing very sigmificant shareholder
support.

The components of the remuneration package for
Non-executive Directors, which are comprised in the
Directors' remuneration policy of the Company are
set out below, with a description and approach to
deterrmination
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Directors’ Remuneration report
continued

Remuneration Type

Fixed Fees Additional Fees Expenses Other

The aggregate mit fo- Additional fees may be paid “me Directers are entited Board members are not

the fees ‘or the Boarc to any Director who fulfils the  to be paid all reascnabie ehg.ble for bonuses, pension
gs awholes £300,000 r0 e of tne Chairman, who expenses properly incurrec benefiis, share options,

per annum wh ch, n chairs any comimittee o tne by tnem attending meetings leng-termincentive scremeas
accorgance weth the Board or who 1s appointed wth shareholcers or other G other non-zash benefits or
Articies of Associgtion as ne Sener Independent Directors or atherwise 1 laxabie expenses

1s gvidec between the Director connection wth the aischarge

Directors as tney deem of their dut es as Directers

These fees are set at a

appropnate.

PBrOp competitive level to reflect
Fees are set to reflect experence and ime
the role of eacn Board commiizment

member and the ume
commtmens reguired

to carry out tner gut'es
and are reviewec with
reference totne feespac
to Drectors of s mear
nvestment companies

Annual remuneration report

For the year endec 31 March 2023, Directors’ “ees were paid at the annua. "ates of Cha-nman £72 0002022, £70,500)
and gll othe Directors £36,000 (2022 £36,000; Anadd tional £6,000 was pa-c per annum ‘o7 each of the roles of Auar
Committee Cha rman and Senior Indepenaent D rector The actug! emounts pard 1o thie Directors during the financ al vesr
under review are as shown below

Amount of each Director's emoluments (audited)
Tre fees payable in respect of each o7 the D rectors who served during the finenzia' year were as fo'lows

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£ £

David Watson 72,000 70,000
Simon Marrnson 14,000 40,000
Tim Gitllbanks 42,000 40,600
Kate Bolsover 40,069 35,000
Sarah-Jane Curtis 36,000 35000
Andrew Vaughan - 24,000

Buscla Sedeinde o L - 6831 -
Total N 234,900 220000

e o funer

curng e

res.gned o tie Board on 2€ Ju sy 2027

=ppointes Sen o ndepetdent S orettor
eppo nted e Boerdon 1 4ugus

aopc nledic tie Boasd an 24 aanuan, 2025

a4 TR Broperiy Irvesimert Truz



Company performance

Tre graph below compares, for the ten years ended

31 Marck 2023, the percentage change over each period
in the share price total return ta shareholders compared
to the stare price total return of benchrark, which the
Board cons ders to be the most appropriate benchmark
for investment performance measurement purposes An
explanation of the performance of the Comrpany 1s g:ven
in the Cnairman's Statement and Manager's Report

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return
over 10 years (rebased)

4000 e —
3500 — - e
3000 -
2500 —
2000

1500

1000

Rar 12 Bdas 14 Mar 1T Ma 18 Mar b7 a1z e 130 Mar 20 ida 11 R 27 Mars?

B 7R Property Share Price Totat Return [l Benchmark Total Return

Share Price Total Return assuming investment of £1,000 on 31 March
2013 and reinvestment of ali dividends (excluding dealing expenses).
[Source: Thames River Capitai)

Benchmark Total Return assuming noticnal investment into the index of
£1,000 on 31 March 2013, (Source. Thames River Capital)

Directors’ shareholdings (audited)

The interests of the Directors ir the shares of the
Company, at the beginning and at the end of the year, or
date of appointment, if later, were as foliows:

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

31 March 2023
or as at date of

appointment 31 March 2022
David Watson 41,864 36,407
Kate Bolsover 2,360 2,360
Sarah-Jane Curtis 10,009 5237
Tim Gillbanks - -
Busola Sodeinde - n/a
Andrew Vaughan 107 n/a

Since 31 March 2023 to the date of this report, there have
been no changes to the Directors’ interests in the shares of
the Company

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Relative Importance of spend on pay

2023 2022

£000 £'000 Change
Cividends paid 47127 45,381 38%
Directors’ fees _ 228 220 3.6%_

Five year change comparison

Owverthe astfive years, Directors’ pay has increased as set
out intne table be ow

Change

2023 2018 over Annualised

£000 £000 5 years Change
Chairman 72 70 2.9% 06%
Audit Committee
Chairman 42 38 10.5% 20%
Senior
Independent
Director 42 38 10.5% 2.0%
Director 3 33 91% 1.8%

Annual percentage change in Directors Fees

The table below sets out the annua; percentage change
fees for each director who served in the year uncer review,

EYSEhIIR % change % change

Hid syl from 2021 from 2020

10 2023 to 2022 to 2021

[EULOCH M (audited)  (audited)

Director % % %
David Watson +2.9 11581 45120
Simon Marrison -65.0:% +4 1~ +37 -

Tim Gillbanks +5.0 0.0 0.0
Kate Bolsover +14.5 % 0.0 +100.0
Sarah-Jane Curlis +2.9 0.0 +449.3 -

Andrew Vaughan n/a: n/a n/a

Busola Sodeinde ) n/a® nfa n/a

ToApponted as Cnzeman st efect o 28 oay P00 noredse et e0ts
the mibigi part vear ang subseguaert ‘Ul vear intie o e

Apponited cs Senor ndopendent Srector coth ettect feoe S5 Jule 2000

norease tefents Mt paitceas and subsoguent faf vear nthe e

Appontod ee & N0 fxecaiive Leector on 1 Oclobe 707 noense
refects the sl “ui vea wotn the Comipan,

Appo nted af A nen-exeCutive Lrector an 28 sanasty S0P s
reTeats e sl U yvnan vt e Tret pany

Appo cled g Sen o nedependent Boertor et efielt o 2o iy 207

rorease eflests te s agnae noc e dunng e eeas

o 1 Angast 202

Appoeited as & o exelt ve L

St s b o en T sy D0

For and on behalf of the Board
David Watson

- ‘.7{‘.“ [ - ‘.."'..,:Jj_,.__‘!

MIIAIRAN

uodai aibaiens

I
=]
2
3
a
2
a
B
2
e
3
2
5
2
w

2INSCIISID (HAIHIY DUE AIBSSOID)

WY (O 3IN0N

UOIIBLLLIOJUI Jap|ouIeUS



Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation
to the Group financial statements

The Directors are respansib'e for preparing tre Annual
Report and the Group and Parent Company financial
staterments in accordarce with applicable law ard
regulations

Company law reguires the Directors to prepare Group
and Farent Company financial statements for each
firanc al year. Directors are required to prepare the Group
financial statermerts in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting stardards and applcable

‘aw and have elected ta prepare the Parent Company
financial statements or the same basis

Under company law the Directors must rot approve

the financial statemerts uniess they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
GroJdp and Parent Company ard of the Group’'s profrt or
loss for that period. Ir preparing eact of the Group and
Parent Campary finarcia’ statements, tne Directors are
required to-

+ select su tabe accounting pol.cies and apply them
cong'stertly,

+ makejudgements and est.mates that are reasonable,
reievart and relable;

+ state whetqer they nave been prepared 1 accordance
with mterrational accoanting standards ir conform ity
weth the regquirements of UK-adopted irteratiorai
accouriing stardards

+ assess the Group ard Parent Company's abuty to
cortrLe as ago g eoncer, disc 0sing, as appl cate
matters reiated to goirg corcern. ard

+ usetne goog cercerr basis of accourting un ess
they ether nterd to iguidate the Group or tre Parent
Company or to cease operations or have 1o reaiistic
alternative but to do so

Tre Drectors are respons ble for keepirg adeq.ate
acccoting records that are suffic ert tc show and
explain the Parent Cormrpary's transact o-s and d.sclose
witr reasonab'e accuracy atarvt metrefima~ca

pasit o1 of the Parent Corpany arderab e trem 1o
ers.rethat tsfinarciai statements corply wih the
Companies ACt 2006 Tneyarerespons b.eforsocn
inter~a contro as tney determine g necessary (o erab e
tre preparatior of 9narcia, statements t-at are free fror
~ater'a’ v sstaterrent wrether due to frasd orerror
and ~ave genera respors bty for tak ~g s.ch steps as
are 1eascrably opento trem to safegeard 17e assets

of the Groeup ard to prevert a~d detect frad a-d other
rregu antes,

(9]
h

Under appicable law and regulations, the Directors
are alsc responsible for preparnrg a Strategic Report,
Directorg’ Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report
and Corporate Goverance Statement

The Directors are respersible for the maintenance
and ntegnty of the corporate and financa.
rfarmatior nctuded or the Company's webste
Legis'atior in the UK governing the preparat’on and
dissemination of finarcral statements may differ
from legisiation in ctrer jur sd'ctions

Im accordance w th Disc osure Guidance and
Transparency Rule 4.1 14R, the financial statements
will form part of the annuai financia' report prepared
L.s:ng tne single electronic report ng format under
the TD ESEF Regulat.on The Aud'tar's report o0
these financal statements provides ro assurance
over the ESEF format

Responsibility statement of the Directors
in respect of the annual financial report

Each of the Drectors confirms that to the best of
tneir knowledge:

« tnefinranc a: statements, prepared i accordance
with the appl.cable set of accounting standards,
give atrie ard fair view of 1ne assels, liabilites,
financial postior and profit or oss of the Group
and Parent Compary and the undertakings
included in the consolidat on taker as a whole, and

< tne sirateg ¢ report includes a far review of ine
deve oprrent ard performance of the bosimess
andtre pos tor of the 'ssuer and tne urdertaki~gs
included ntne conso datior taken as awho.e,
togetner with a descript on of the prircipal risks
ard darcertairties that they face

Tre [ rectors consider trat tne Ar-ua' Report
and Accounts take as a who'e, 18 fair, balanced
and understandable a~d prov des tre ~forrat'on
necessary for srareng ders to assess tre Group's
postior and perfermance bos~ess model and
strateqy

By order of the Board
David Watson

TP Property Ir.estmert Trust



Independent auditor’s report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust Plc

01 Our opinion is unmodified

We nave audited tne iranc’a staterents of TR Property
Investmert Trust Plc {the ‘Company’) for the year

ended 31 March 2023 wnich compr.se the Greup
Staterrert of Comprehensive Income, Group and
Company Statements of Cnanges in Equity, Group and
Company Baance Sheets, Group ard Company Cash
Frow Statements and the related notes, iInciuding the
accounting policies in note 1

In our opinion:

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of the Group's and of the parent Company's
affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of the Group's return
for the year ther ended,

+ the Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with Uk-adopted international
accounting stardards:

+ the parent Company firarcial statements have heen
properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted
nterrational accounting standards and as appiled in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
20086, and

- the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted our aLdit ' accordance w'th International
Standards on Auditing (UK} (15As (UK) ) and applicable
law Cur responsibilites are described Leuw. We belicve
that the audit evidence we have cbtained is a sLfacient
ard appropriate basis for our opinion. Our audt opinion
1$ consisternt with our report to the audit committee

We were first appointed as aaditor by the Directors on

2 November 2016. The period of total urinterrupted
engagemert s for the seven financial years ended

31 Mareh 2023, We have fuafil ed our ethica’
respons-bilities under, and we rema n ndependent of
the Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
mcluding the FRC Ethica: Stardard as appred te listed
publicinterest entities  No ron-audit services prohibited
by that standard were prov ded

verview

Materiality: group £10 5m (2022: £16.8m)
financial statements 19% (2022: 1%) of Total Assets

as a whole

Key audit matters vs 2022 ) vs 2022

Recurring risks Valuation of direct property <>
investments i )
Carrying amount of listed - p
investments

02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key aud't matters are those matters that, in cur professional jJucgement, were of most s'gnificance in the audit of the
financial staterments and include the most significart assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not due

to fraud) ident fied by us, including those which had the greatest effect or: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audin, and directirg the efforts of the engagement tearr We summarise below the key audit matters
{unckarged from 2022), .n decreasing order of audsit significance, in arriving at cur audit gpinion above, together

with our key audit procedures to address those matters and our frdings from those procedures in order that the
Company's members, as a body, may understand better tne process by which we arrived at our audit opinion. These
matters were addressed, and oar firdings are based on procedures urdertaken, in the context of, and solely for tne
pJipose of, our audit of the “inanc'al statements as a whoie and i forming our opinion Inereon, and corseguently are
incidental to that opinion and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

Annua Report & Accounts 2023
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement -~ -1 ~2

eris Our response

Valuation of direct
property investments
(Group and Parent)
(£74 0 million,

2027 E96 3mi hon)

Refer 1o pages 60 10

62 (Aucit Commitiee
Report), pages 81 and 82
{accounting policy), note 10
onpages 89 10 92 (inancia
d'sc.osures?

o
(k8]

Subjective valuation:

7 0% (2022 5 7%) of the Group's,

and 6 8% {20272 & 6%} of the Pzrent
Company's, total assets (by va'ue) are
held in ‘nvestment properies

The fa'r value of each property requ res
significant estimation, i particular wit
regard to the estimated rental vaiue and
y-e'd assumptions ~ne assumptions
will be wmpactea by a number of factos
incluaing guahty and conait.on of the
buiicing and tenant financial strength

The ef‘ect of these matiers is that,

as part of our risk assessment, we
determined that the valuation of
mvestment propertes has a high
degree of estimation uncerta nty, witn &
potential range of reascnable outcomes
greater tnan ous materahty for the
financ.al statements as 2 who.e Tne
financia’ statements (note 10! disc ose
the sensiivity estimeated By tae Group

We performed the deta .ed tests below rather
than seeking 1o rewy on any of the Group's
controls, because *he nature of the ba'ance
i3 such that we wou.d expect to obtain aud *
eydence primar v inrough ihe detailed
precedures descrbed

Our procedures inc uded

* Assessing valuer’s credentials: Using our own
property valuation spec alis:, we evaiuated he
competence, experience and .ndependence of
e external valuer,

+ Tests of detail: We compared the information
prov dec by the Group to s externai property
valuer for a sampie of properties, such as
rental income and ienancy aata to supportng
documents including lease agreements,

* Methodology choice: We heid discussions
with the Group's externa! property valuer 10
determ e the valuation methodoiogy used s
approprate Us ng our own property vauation
speciaist, we Critica.y assessed the results
of ine valuer's report by checking that the
valuations were in accorgance with the RICS
Va uat on Professiona! Standards the Rec
Bock' and iFRE anc that the metnodology
agopted was appropriate by reference 1o
acceptabie veluation practice;

Benchmarking assumptions: ¥/ ith the
assistance of our cwh property va.uauon
spec-alsn, we helc ciscussions wth ine
Croup's external property valuer 1o undergtand
movernen’s ' property values. For a sampie ¢
properties, we assessed 11e key assumptions
used by the va'uer upon wnict the va uations
zre baseq, nc.ucing Mose “e atng 1o esimated
rental va ue anc veld, by making a compa~son
tc our own undersianding of tne market anc to
dustry bencnma«s,

+ Assessing transparency: We also cons gerec
the adecuzcy of the Group's disclosures abaut
the degree of estimation and sensivity 10 <ay
assumiplions made when valung the di-ect
propenty fyestmeants

Our findings

e faund the Group's va'uat on of investment
propernes to be baignced 12022 kalznced) Ve
NEve CONSdeTes TIE 255008160 (ST OBUTES 10

Tk Sroperty Ircestment Trust



e s Our response

Carrying amount of
listed investments
(Group and Parent)
(£872 1 million;

20722 £1,456.8 million?

Referto pages 60 to 62
(Audit Commitiee Report,
page 82 (accounting policy)
and note 10 on pages 89 to
92 (hinanzial disclosures;

Low risk, high value:
The portfolio of listed evel 1
investments makes up 83 0% (2022

86 4%) of the Group's, and 80 2% {2022

84 6%) of tne Parent Company’s, 1otal
assets (by value) and s one of the key
drivers of results We co not consider

thege investments to be at a high risk of

mater:al misstatemen?, or to be subec:
1o a signif.cant leve of jucgement
because they comprise hquig, cuoted
mvestimenis —owever, due o their
mazer:glity in the context of the
financial statements as a whoe, they
are considerec to be one of the areas
which had tne greatest effect on our
overall audit strategy and allocation of
resources in psanning and completing

wWe performed the cetaned tests below rather
than seeking to rely on any of the group’s
contrals, because the nature of the halance
18 such that we wou'd expect to abtain audit
evidence primarly through the detailed
procedures described.

Qur procedures included

- Test of detail; Agreemng the valuation of T00%
of leve' 1 listec investments in the poertfolio to
externally quoted prices, anc

- Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 100% of
ievel 1iisted investment holdings inthe
portfolio 1o independently received third party
confirmations from investmen: custodians,

our audn

Our findings

we found no differences from third party
holdings confirmations nor from the externally
quoted prices of a size ta require reperting 1o the
Audit Committee (2022 no differences].

03 Our application of materiality and an
overview of the scope of ocur audit

Materialty for the Group financial statements as a whole
was setat £10.56m (2022 £16 8m), determined with
reference to a benchmark of total assets, of which it
represents 1.0% (2021 17.0%)

Mater-ality for the parent Company financial statements
as awhole was setat £9.97m (2022 £16 CGm), which

8 the componert materiality for the Parent Company
determined by the Group audit engagement team. Th's
s lower than the materiality we would otherwise have
determined with reference to Parent Company total
assets, of which it represents 0.95% (2022: 0.95%).

In"ne with our sudit methodolegy, our procedures

on individual account balances and disclosures were
performed tc a lower thresnold, performance matenality
50 as to reduce to an acceptable level the risk that
indivdually mmaterial misstatements in individual
acco.Jnt balances add up to a materal amourt across
the finarcia: statemerts as a whaole Performance
rmatenality was set at 75% (2022: 75%) of materiaity
for the firancial statements as a whole, which equates
to £7 85m (2022 £1Z7 6m) for the Group and £7.45m
(2022 £12m) for the Parent Company. We applied

th's percentage in our determinatior of performance
materiality because we did not identify any factors
mdicatirg ar elevated level of nsk

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any
corrected or uncorrected identified misstatemerts
exceeding £0.53m (2022 £C 84m) for the Group and
exceeding £0.9m (2022 £0.8m) for the Parert Compary,
in addition to other identified misstatements that
warrarted repcrting on gualtative thresholds

The audit team performed the audit of the GroLp as a
single aggregated set of financial informat on ratner

than scoping n ‘ndividual components This approach

1 unchanged from the prior year The audit of the

Group and Parert Compary was performed using the
materiality 'evels set cut above and was performed by a
single aucht teamr The scope af the audit work performed
was fully substantive as we d'd not rely upon the Group's
internal controls over financial reporting

Group Materiality
£10.5m (2022 £16 8m)

Total Assets

£1,051m (2022: £1,686m)
£10.5m

Whole financial statements
materiality (2022° £16.8m)

£7.85m

Whole financial staterments
performance materiality
(2022 £12 6m

£9.97m
Parent Company Materiality
{2022 £16.0m)

£0.5m

Misstaterments reported
1o the audit committee
{(2022: £0 8m}

| Total Assets

o))
fel
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

04 The impact of climate change on our audit

wWe have performed a risk assessment of how tne impact
of climate cnange may affect the financial statements
and our audit. Level 1 Iisted .nvestments make ap
83.0% of the Group's tota: assets, for wnich far value

is determined as the qgLoted market price Therefore,
we assessed that the financia! statement estimate tnat
is primarily exposed to climate rsk 1s the investment
property portfolio. far whicn the valuat'on assumpt’ons
and estimates may be impacted by physical and poacy
or ‘egal chmate r'sks. such as floedirg or ar increase

‘n ¢ imate related comp 1ance expenditure. We held
discussions with our own cimate cnange professionals
to cnalierge our sk assessment. We assessed that,
whilst ¢'imate change posed a risk 10 the determination
of investment property valuations in the current year,
ths nisk was not significart wnen considerng hoth tre
nature and domicile of the properties and the tenure of
unexpired ieases Tnerefore there was no sign.ficant
impact of this on our key aud-t matters.

We have read the disclosare of climate reated rarrative
in the front nalf of the financal statemrents and
consdered corsistency with tne finarca statements
ardour audit knowledge

05 Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statemerts
cr t1e go ng corcerr basis as they do not intend to
hquidate the Group or the Campany or Lo cease their
operations. and as they nave conc uded that tre Group’s
and the Compary's financial positior meanrs that this
‘srealstic They nave also conciLded tnat there are no
matenal uncertamnties that courd nave cast sign ficant
douLbt over therr ahility to contirue as a gorg concerr for
al least a year from the date of approval of the finarc al
statements { the going concern pericd’

Ve used our knowiedge of the Group, 118 industry
andthe gerera' econcm c erviormertto dertify

tne mrerent rsks to s busiress mode and ana ysed
~ow those r'sks mignt affect the Group or Comparys
firancial resources or abihity tc cont'rue operat ors over
the going cencerr pernod Trer sks tnat we cons:dered
most kely to adverse'y affect the Growp or Co~pany s
ava abie financiai rescurces and ts ab ty to operate
over this per od were.

» Tre ~pactofasgnificartredocto ~thevacator
of investmerts ard the mplicatiors for the Growp of
Coparvs debt coverants

-
L~

+ The aquioity of the investiment portfoio and its abi tv
to meel the liabilities of the Group as and when they
fail due, and

+ The operatiora res lience of kev service orgarisat ons

VWe corsidered whether tnese nsks col'd plausib'y affect
tne higquidity or covenant Compl ance 0 the go.ng concern
period by assessing the degree of dowrs de assumptior
that, ndividua'ly ard collectively, could result in a hauidity
‘ssue, taking nto account the Group or Company's
current and projécted cash ard gl d investment
pos'tior {and tne res.lts of their 1everse stress testing)

We considered whet~er the going concern d.sclosare
imnote 1 gives a ful and accurate description of the
Directors’ assessment of going corcern, includng the
ident fied risks and re‘ated sensitivities

Cur conclus ons based on this work

- we consider that tre Directors use of the goirg
concerr basis of accounting ir the preparation of the
finanicia’ statements 1s appropr ate,

+ we have not ident.fied. and concur with the Directors’
assessrert that there 18 not a materal uncertainty
related tc events or cordtions that, ind v-duahy ar
coilective y, may cast sigrmficart doubt or the Gioup's
ar Company's ab ity to contirge as a go.ng corcerm
for the goirg concern perod,

- we have notrirg materai 10 add or draw attentior to
Ir reat-on to the Directors’ statemrert on the use of tre
going corcern basis of accourting wtr no mater'a
Lncerta nt es that may cast sig- ficart doubt over
the Group and Company's use of that basis for the
going cercern pencd, and we fourd the gorg concerr
disclosLre nrote 110 be acceptable and

- tne related staternent under the L:st ng Rules set Gut
o1 page 61 s materai'y cons stertw tatne firanc g’
staterents and our aud t know edge

However, as we carnot predict alt future events or
cordtors and as scbsequent events ~—ayresitr
outcomes trat are incors.stert wth judgemerts 1oat
were reasonab'e at the t mét-ey were Tade tre above
cerciusorsare ~ot aguarantee trattre Growp orthe

Compary w oontnoe ~operaton

TR Propertyireestmenrt Trust



06 Fraud and breaches of laws and
regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of matenal misstatement due to fraud
{fraud risks) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressdie to commit fraud
or provide an oppoertdnity to commit fraud, Our risk
assesgsmert procedures neluded

« Enguiring of Directors as to the Group's P'gh-level
policies ard procedures to prevent and detect fraud,
as well as wnether they have know'edge of any actual,
suspected or a'legad fraud;

+ Assess:ing the segregation of dut'es in place between
the Directors, the Administrator and tne Group's
Irvestment Manager, and

+ Reading Board and Audit Committee minutes

As required by auditing standards. we perform
procedures to address the risk of management overnde
of controls, .n particu‘ar to the risk that managemert
may be i a position to make mapproprate accourting
ertries. We communicated identifled fraud risk
throughout the audit team and remaimed alert to any
ndications of fraud throughout the audit. We evaluated
the desigr and implementaticn of the controls over
journal entries and other adjustments and made
‘ngJines of the Administrator about inappropriate or
unusJal activity relating to the processing of journat
entries and other adjustments

We substantively tested all material post- cl0sing
entries and, based on the results of our risk assessment
procedures and understanding of the process, including
the segregation of duties between the Directors and

the Administrator, no furtner high-rnisk journal entries or
other adjLstments were ‘'dentified.

On this audit we have rebutted the fraud 1isk related

to revenue recognition because the revenue 15

non- judgermental and straightforward, with fimited
opportunity for man‘pulation We did not «dertify ary
signficant unustal transactions or add tional fraud risks

Arrual Report & Accounts 2023

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

We ‘dent'fied areas of laws and regulations that could
reasonably be expected to have a mater al effect an

the “inancial statements from cur general commerc-al
and sector experience and through discassion with

the Direclors, the Investment Manager and the
Administrater (as required by auditing standards)

and discussed with the Directors the policies and
procedures regarding complance with laws and
tegulations we communicated identled iaws ard
regulations throughout our team and remamed a ert to
any rdications of non-corrpliance throughout the audit.
As the Parent Compary is regulated, our assessment of
rnisks involved gain.rg an urderstanding of the control
environment including the ertity’s procedures for
complying with regulatory requirerments

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the
financial statements varies considerably

Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and regulations

that drectly affect tne financial staterments including
financizl reporting leqislation {including related
companies iegislation), distrbutable profits legislation,
and ts qualification as an Investment Trust under UK
taxation legislation, any breach of which cou d iead to
the Group los:ing varous deductions and exemptions
from UK corporation tax, ard we assessed the extent of
compiiance with these laws and regulations as part of
our procedures on the related financial statement items,

We assessed the legality of the d'stributions made by
tne Company in tne period based on coemparing tne
dividends paid to the distributable reserves prior to each
distnibution

Secordly, the Group is subject to many other iaws and
regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts cr disclosures
ir the financial statements, for instance tnrough the
imposition of fines or htigation. We identified the
following areas as those most lkely to have such an
effect: money laundering, data protection, bribery and
corruption legis.ation and certain aspects of Compary
legislation recognising the financial nature of the
Group’s activities and its iegal form. Auditing standards
lim t the reguired audit procedures to idertify non-
complance with tnese laws ard regulat:ons to enquiry
of the Directors and the Administrator and inspection of
regulatory and egal corresponderce, If any. Therefore,
fabreach of operationai regulations 1s not disciosed to
us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will
not detect that breach
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

0& Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations -
ability to detect - 7 .~

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law or regulation

Owing 1o the mherert himitations of an audit, there is an
drnavoidable rsk that we may not have detected some
Mmaterial misstatements in the financial statements, ever
though we tave properly planned and performed our audit
inaccordance with avditing standards Forexampie, the
fLrther removed non-compliance witn aws and requlations
is from the events and transactions refiected in the financial
statements, the .ess likely the nnerently limited procedLres
required by audting standards wourd identify it.

In addiuon, as with ary audit, there remained a h.gher risk
of non detection of fraud, as these may involve colusion,
forgery. Intentional omissicons, misrepreséntations, o1 the
overnde of internal controls Our audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstaternert We are not
resporsble for preventirg non-corrphance or fraud and
cannot e expected o detect non-compliance with al, aws
and reguiations

07 We have nothing to report on the other
information in the Annual Report

The Directors are responsibie for tne other informatan
presented ir the Annua Report togetner with the financ al
statements Ouropinon on the firancial statements
does not cover the other informaton and, accordingly,
we do not express ar gud:t op mor or. except as explicitly
stated below, any form of assurance conciusior tnereon

Qur responsiblity 1s to read the ather :nformaton and

in dong so, corsider wnether, based on our firancial
statements aLdit work, the informat.on therein 's
matena'ly migsiated or neersistent with the firarcal
statements or oJr audit knowledge. Based solely on that
work we have not idertified —atenal misstatements M
the otner information

Strategic report and Directors’ Report
Based scie'y or curwork o~ the ¢trer nforrat or

- we nave notidet fied matera rmosstatererts ~the
strateg ¢ report and the Directors’ report,

* Codroprionthe sformaton gven o inose reports
forthe fira~ca vear s consistert w tr the firacia
statemerits and

T oL o or trose reports nave beer prepared 1
accordarce w it the Comipan es 4ct 200

o]

Directors’ remuneration report

fr oLr opmion tre part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with tne Comparies Act 2006

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
longer-term viability

We are regl red to perform procedures to idertify
whether there 1s a material inconsistercy between
tne Directors’ disclosdres in respect of emerging ard
principal risks and the viability statement. and the
financial statemrerts and our audit knowledge.

Based onthose procedures, we nave notnirg matena' 1o
add or draw attention to n relatior to-

+ the Directors’ confirmation withir the Long-term
V.abiity statement on page 41 that they have carred
out a robust assessment of the emerging and principal
risks facng the Group, including those that would
tnreater its business model, future performance
solvency ard iquidity;

the Principa' and emerging nsks and uncertainties
disciosures describ ng these r'sks ard haw emerging
risks are dert.fied, and explaining how trey are being
managed and mit.gated; and

+ the Diectars expianation ir the Long- term Viaht 'ty
statemertof now trey nave assessed Ine prospects
of the GroLp, over wirat period they have done s0 and
why they considered t-at penod to be appropniate, a~d
ther statement as to whether they have a reasorab e
expectation that the Grodp wl be able to continue
noperaticn and mMeet its hiabiiit es as they far due
over the perod of theirr assessment. g uding any
related disciosures drawirg attention to any necessary
qualficatons or asscmptions.

We are a'sorequired to review the Long-term V abi. ty
Statement setout 07 page 41 ard 42 Under tme Listing
Ruies Basedon the above proced.anes, we nave

conc aded that the above d sc osores are materally
cons stert wt~ the financia statere~ts and our aLdit
k~ow.edge

O.rworkis rmted to assess g these matters nt-e
cartext of only tre know edge acqured durrg our
‘narcia stateTentsacdt A4S we cantot predct a |
future events or cordit ors and as subseqguert everts
ray resa tir outesmes tnat are reensistent waite
Judgeerts that were reasonab e at tne time they
were ade tie absence of arvir rgtc report on tnese
statementsisrot a guara~tee astetre Groups and
Compary's cnger-ter~vabil ty

TR Property I vestmert Trast



Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to perform procedures to dentfy
wnetrer there 's a materal nconsistency bhetween the
Directors’ corporate governance disclosures and the
‘inarcial statements and our audit know edge

Based on those procedures, we tave conciuded that
each of the following 1s matenally corsistent with the
‘inarcial statements and our aud't know:edge

- the Directors’ statement tnat they consider that the
annual report and financia: statements taken as
a wnore s fair, balanced and understardable, and
provides the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Group’s positicr ard performance,
business model and strategy,

- the sectior of the annual repart describing the waork of
the Audit Cormmittee including tre significant 1ssues
that the audit committee considered n relation to
the ‘inancial statements, and how these issues were
addressed; and

+ the section of the arnual report that describes
the review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
managemenrt ard internal contro systems

We are required to review the part of the Corporate
Governance Staternent relating to the Group's
compliance wih the provis ons of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified by the Listing Rules for our
review. We nave nothing to report e this respect.

08 We have nothing to report on the other
matters on which we are required to report
by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report
to you if, 1N cur opinion

- adequate accounting records nave not been kept by
the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have nct been received from branches not visited
by Ls, or

+ the parent Company financial statements and tne part
of tne Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
are notin agreement with the accounting records and
returns: or

» certain disclosures of Drectors’ remuneration
specified by faw are not made; or

- we have not received all the ‘nformation and
explanations we require for our aud't.

We have nothing toreport ir these respects

Anngal Report & Accounts 2023

09 Respective Responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained maore fully . tnelr statement set out

on page 66, the Drectors are responsible far: the
preparation of the financial statements including being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view; sucn internal
cantrol as they determine is recessary (o enable the
preparation of financia. statements tnat are free from
matena: misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
assessing the Group and parent Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. disclos ng, as applcable,
matters related to going concern, and usng the going
concern bas's of accoanting urless they either intend to
liqu'date the Group or the parent Company or to cease
operations, or have no reglistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

{Our objectives are to obtan reasonabie assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from materal misstatement, whetker due to fraud
or error, and to issue our opnien I an auditer's report.
Reasonab'e assarance 1s a high level of assurance,
but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs (UK} will always detect a materia
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered materiat if,
individually or in aggregate they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial statements

A fuller description of our regponsibilities is
provided on the FRC's website at www.frc.org uk/
auditorsresponsibil'ties.

The Company 1s required to include these financial
statements in ar annual financial report prepared using
the single electroric reporting format specified in the
TD ESEF Regulation Th's auditor's report provides no
assJrance over whether tre anrual financial report has
been prepared in accordance with that format.
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independent auditor’s report
cominuegd

10 The purpose of our audit work and to
whom we owe our responsibilities

This reportis made solely to the Company's members
as a body, in accordance witn Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companes Act 2006 ard the terms of our engagement
by the Company Jur audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to tne Compary's irembers those
matters we are required to state to trer in ar aud.tor's
report, and the further matters we are requ red to state
1o themin accordance with the tenms agreed wih

tne Company and for no other purpaose. To the fullest
extent permitted by \aw, we do rot accept or assume
responsibhity to anyone otter than the Company and tre
Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Pl Mt L

Philip Merchant {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

KPMG

TP Property Incestrent Trust
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Group statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital
Return Return Return Return Total
Notes £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Income
Investment incorme 2 52,077 - 52,077 44170 - 44,170
Other operating income 4 255 12 267 5 - 5
Gross rental iIncome 3 3,513 - 3,513 2773 - 2,773
Service charge income 3 945 - 946 1,103 - 1,103

(Losses)/gains on investments
held at fair value 10 - (549,430) (549,430) - 249038 249,038

Net movement on foreign
exchange; investments
and loan notes - (2,780} (2,780) - 1,136 1,126

Net movement on foreign
exchange, cash and cash

equivalents - 2,016 2,016 - 537 637
Net returns on contracts for

difference 10 9,462 7(45,556) ) (36,094} 5,707 16,361 22067
Total Income 66,253 (595738)  (529,485) 53,752 267.172 320,924
Expenses

Managerent and performance

fees 5 (1,560) (4,680) (6,240) (1.663) {29,477} (31,140
Direct property expenses, rent

payable and service charge costs 3 {1,660) - (1,660) (1.435) - {1.435)
Other administrative expenses & (1,163) (542} (1,705) (1.621) {608) (2,229)
Total operating expenses (4,383) (5222) (9,605) (4,719} (30,085) (34,804}
Operating profit/{loss) 61,870 (600,960) (539,090) 49033 237,087 286,120
Finance costs _ 7 (1,146)  (3.438)  (4,584) (629) {1.886) (2,515
Profit/(loss) from operations

before tax 60,724 {604,398) (543,674) 48,404 235201 283,605
Taxation 7 8 (6,087) 12,495 (3,592) (4967 3048 (1,918)
Total comprehensive income 54,637  (601,903)  (547,266) 43437 238250 281687
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary

share 9 17.22p  (189.67)p  (172.45)p 13.69p 7507p 88.76p

Tne Total column of 11 5 statemen: “epresents tne Group's Statement of Comprehensive Income, prepared 1 sccorcsnce wh
UK-agaptec internetone accountng stancards Tne Revenue Retus 570 Capnal Peiur co Umns 276 supp.ementary 1o ths
;

MeRph:
znd are prepareda unde” gu cance pubi sned by the Assoc st ancf Invesimen' Companes A tems nlhe abave sistement
cerwe f'om cont nuing cperations.

jny

The Croup coes ot naye a1y Giner Mcome G expense thal s notl ncudec 71ing zhovse staiement therefore Total
SOMP enens e IMComE 1S also The prat 212 088 ‘07 he year
Alcome s ettr butabie o tne sharenoloe’s ¢f e parent company

The notes from pages 8010 104 formpart o tnese Financ s Setement

143

o
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Group and Company statement of changes in equity

Group

For the year ended 31 March 2023

At 371 March 2022

Total comprehensive iIncome
Dividends paid

At 31 March 2023

Notes

79,338

Share
Premium

Account
£'000

Capital
Redemption
Reserve
£'000

Retained
Earnings
£000
1,396,268
(547,266)
(47,127)
801,875

1,562,739
(547,266)
(47,127)
968,346

Company

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes

Share

Capital
£000

Premium

Account
£'000

Capital
Redemption
Reserve
£000

Retained
Earnings
£'000

At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Total comprehensive income - - - (547,266) {547,266)
Dividends paid L 17 - - - (47,127) (47,127)
At 31 March 2023 79,338 43,162 43,97 801,875 968,346
Group
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained

Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 37 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
Total comprehensive income 281,687 281,687
Dividends paid 17 - - (45381} (45,381)
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Company

Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained

Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43971 1,159.962 1,326,433
Total comprehensive income 287,687 281,687
Dividends paid 17 {45,381) (45,381)
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43971 1,396,268 1,562,739

The notes from pages 80 10 104 form part of these Financ.al Statements,

Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Group Company
2022 2022
Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investrments heid at fair value 10 948,672 948,672 1,506,436 1,506,436
investments in subsidiaries 10 - 36,292 - 36,297
Investrments held for sale 10 - ) - 48,980 48,980
948,672 984,964 1,555,416 1,561,713
Deferred taxation asset 12 903 903 903 203
949,575 985,867 1,556,319 1,592,616
Current assets
Debtors 12 65,287 65,293 97673 97208
Cash and cash equivalents 36,671 36,069 32,109 32,107
101,358 101,362 129782 129,315
Current liabilities 13 (23,654) (59,950) (66,109} (101.939)
Net current assets 77,704 41,412 63,673 27,376
Total assets plus net current
assets/(Habilities) 1,027,279 1,027,279 1618992 1,619,992
Non-current liabilities o 13 (58,933) (58,933) (57.253) (57.253)
Netassets 968,346 968,346 1,562,739 1,562,739
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital T4 79,338 79,338 79,338 79,338
Share premiurr account 15 43,162 43,162 43,162 43162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,971 43,971 43971 43,971
Retzined earnings N 16 801,875 801875 1.396,2683 1,396,268
Equity shareholders’ funds 968,346 968,346 1,662,739 1,562,739
Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share 19 305.13p 305.13p 492.43p 492 43p

Thege fnancial staterments were approved Dy tnc direclo’s of TR Property investiment Trust p ¢ iCompany \o 844921 anc
author.sed forissue on T June 20223

7 Watasn

D Watson
Director
Tre ~otes from pages 82 10 104 for~ gart of trese Firarc al Stater—eris

g TR Property Investmert Trast



Group and Company cash flow statements

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£'000 £'000 £000
Reconciliation of profit from operations
before tax to net cash outflow from
operating activities
(Loss)/profit from operations before tax (543,674) (543,674) 283,605 283,605
Finance costs 4,584 4,584 2515 2515
Losses/{gains} on investments and
derivatives held at fair value through profit
ar loss 594,986 594,990 {265,39%) (258,387)
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents and loan notes (336) (336) (977} (3773
Scrip dividends included in investment
Income and net returns on contracts for
difference (6,325) (6,325) (10,839} (10,839)
Sale of investments 448,587 448,587 544,370 544370
Purchase of investments (427,509) (427,509) (430,830} (430,837)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and
accrued income (978) (978) a 8
Decrease/(Increase) in sales settlement
debtor 30,399 30,399 (32,871} (32.871)
Increase in purchase settlement creditor 3,172 3,172 5170 5170
Decrease In other debtors 1,419 1,413 2,951 2,851
(Decrease)/incresse in other creditors - (22,265) (21,797) 12,809 6,798
Net cashflow from operating activities
before interest and taxation 82,060 82,626 111,572 111,512
Interest paid (4,584) (4,584) (2,515) (2,515)
Taxation paid ) 3 (3,403) _ {3,869) (1258) (1,258)
Net cashflow from operating activities 74,073 74,073 107,739 107,739
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (47,127} (47,127) {45381) (45381)
Repayment of loans - (25,000} ____(25,000) (60.000) (60,000
Net cashflow from financing activities {72127} (72,127) (105381M) (105,381)
Increase in cash 1,946 1,946 2,358 2,358
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 32109 32,107 29114 29,112
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents 2,016 2,016 637 637
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 36,071 36,069 32,109 32,107

The nates from pages BC to 104 form part of these Financial Statements

Anndal Report & Accounts 20232
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Notes to the financial statements

01 Accounting policies
The financial statements for the year ended 371 March 2023 have been prepared an a going concern basis, in accordance with
JK-adopted .nternatonal accounting stancares and in confarmity wit the requirements of the Companies Act 2036 The fingnc.al
staterments have a'so been prepared in accorcance witn the Statement of Recommenaed Practice. "Finznciai Staterments o
vestment Trust Companies and Venture Capral Trusts, (SORPY, 1o the exten: that t1s consistent with uk-aaopted internaticnal
accounting stanaards

ivassessing Going Concern the Board nas made a aetaled assessment of tne abiity of the Company and the Croup 1o meet
15 habilites as they fall due, Including stress anc liguidity tests which consigered the effects of substantial falls nonvestment
vaiuations, evenues received and marke? howdity as the giobal economy contimues 1o sutfer dsnption cue 1o nflahonsry
pressures, the war 1n Lkraine and the after-effects of the COVID-1G pandem.c

0 hght of the testing cariec out, the Lowidity of the level 1 assets held by tne Company anc the signif cant net asset value,
and the net curent asset position of 71e Group &nd Farent Company, the Direclors are satisfied that tne Company a1a
CGroup have adequate financia’ resources to continue 11 aperation for at least the next 12 manths foowing the signing aof
the inancizl statements ana therefare 1t 1s appropriate to acopt the going concern basis of account rig

The Group ang Company financal statements are expressed in sterling, wnich s the r functional anc presentat onal
currency Sterling is the functional currency because 11 1s the currency of the prima-y econcmic environment in which the
G-oup operates Values are rounced to the nearest thousano pounds (£'000) except wrere otherwise incicated

Key estimates and judgements

THe preparation of the financial statements necessarly requires the exercise of jucgement, both in apphication of
accounting polic es, which are set out below, and in the select' on of assumpt ons used in the zalcu ation of estimates
These estimates and judgements are rev.ewed on an 0160 Ng bas's and are continua y evalua-ed basec on hustonca
experience anc other factors However, aclual resu ts may d *fer from tnese est mases The only key esumate

s considered 1o be the va-uaton of investment propert es See section (F1 o this note. “There are not cons dered

10 e any key UCQements

a) Basis of consolidation

The Group financia statements consolidate 17e f nancial statements of the Company anc its subsidiaries 1o 31 Ma-cn
2023 Ailthe subsidianies of the Comipany have been consolidated 'n these financial statements inaccorcance witn
IFRS1C the Company has been designated as a1 investment entity on the basis that

<t obtamns funds from investors ang prov aes those nvestors with mvestment management services,

« It commits to 18 Investors that 1s business purpese s toinvest funds so ely for ~eturns from capital appreciaton ang
mvestment Income, and

- i* measures anc evaluates performance of sustantaily a'l of 1s nvestments o1 a fair verue basis

Each of the subsid aries of the Company was esiablisned for the sole purpose of aperating or support ng the invesiment
operations of the Compzny (incluc ng raising add-niona financing, ancis not tself an avestmententty FRS 13 sets out
et in the case of controtled entities thet suppart the mvestment act vity of the investment entity, those entit.es should be
£01s0 cated rather than presented as nvestments at fa'rva ue. Accord ngly the Company nas consoliaatec the resulis
and inanc a3l gos uons of trose subsidiar es

Subsidianies a e consolicated from the cate of their acgu.s tion, being the date onwhicn tne Comipany obtams cont-ol, and
continue 1o be consaligazec unty tne date that sucn contro’ ceases The financ.a statemen's of subsig ares used 1N the
preparation of the consolidated fnancia’ statements ae based on consistent sooounting polic’es Al ntra-group balances and
‘ransaciions, 1Nciugng uareal sec profits ansing theefrorm, are el'minatec

b} Income

O v aencs rece veb e gnecury snares gre treated as reveue “or the yea  oh en ex-q.v dene bas s Wnere no ex-a.v gend
date s avelabie ¢« cencs rece «able onor betore the vear enc are reatec as revenue or the vea” Provis.on 's mede

for any © v dends 10t expected to be recevet Vinere the Group 1as electeg to "ecerve these div denas inine ‘orm of
acdc: ona snates renes inan casn the smount of cash oovicend foregone s recogn sec as noome D fferences betveen
ne s etue oF sheres rece ved 2nd e casn g «denc “oregone ate recocses 1 e capital eturns of tne Group Statemen:
of Comprenens.ve ncome — ne fxed eturns ondett securlies are recognsed on g Time apporionment £3%i5 80 85 10
reflect the effective y.eig 01 &l SULh securly mlerest-ecenabie Trom czsh and sno e m cepos 1s 8 aCoTuss o e
enc of the year Stock lenaing income s e accruask z TG TOMIM 88 01 S Tgken g re.eTue
UESS &8 “he Croport ongie Comim s510M "ele cen
geausiec fromtne cost 0 the nsestmen:

o

Recogmtion of property “ents’ Ncome s et ol

st ot noome from s

w

[
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071 Accounting policies

¢) Expenscs

All expenses and finance cos's are accounted for on an accruals basis An analysis of retained earnings broken down nto
revenue anc capital items s given innote 16 .n arnving at this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue
items except as follows

+ Expenses which are 'nedental to the acquisition or disposal of an nvestment,

« Expenses are presenied as capital where a connection with the maintenance or enhancement of the va'ue of the
Investments can be demonstrated, this incluges irrecoverah e VAT icurred on costs relaing to the extens.on of
resicential leases as premiums recelved for extend:ng or terminating leases are recogn:sed in the capital account

« One quarter of the hase management fee s chargec to revenue, with three quarze-s allocared to cepita “eturn to reflect
the Board's expectat'ons of long term investment retums Ail performance fees are chargec to capita return;

« The fund acministration, depostary, custody and company secretarial services are charged drectly 1o the Company and
are nciuded within 'Other administrative expenses' in note & These expenses are charged on the same basis as the base
management fee, one quarter to Income and three quariers to capita

d) Finance costs

The finance cost in respect of capital instruments other than equity snares 1s calculated so as to give a constant rate
of return on the outstanding balance One qua=er of the finance costis charged to revenue and three quarters to
capital return.

e) Taxation

Current tax assets and lizbiltes are measured at the amount expected to be recavered from o7 paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the ba ance sheet date

Incorme tax 15 charged or credited directly to ecunty If it reates to ftems that are credited o charged to equity
Otherwise income tax 1s recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive ncome.

The tax effect of different ‘tems of expenditure 15 aliocated between capital ana revenue using the Group's effective rate
of tax for the year, The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the vear and takes into account laxaten deferred
because of temporary differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes

In accordance with the recormnmendations of the SORP the allocation method used to calcuiate tax relief on expenses
presented against capital returns in the supplementary information in the Statement of Comprenens've Income s the
‘marginal basis”. Under th's basis, if taxable income 1s capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the
revenue return column of the Statement of Comprehensive Income, then na tax relief 1s transferred to the capitar column.

Deferred tax 1s the tax expecied 10 be payable or recoverzble on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and I'abilities in the Balance Sheet and the coresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 15
accountec for using the balance sheet lability rmethod Defer-ed tax habiiities are recognised for &t taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised 10 the extent that it 1s probakle that taxable profits wili be availzble
against whicn deductible temperary cifferences can be utilised

The Company ‘s an investment rrust under 5.1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, is 1ot hable for tax an
capital gams Capital gains aqsing in subsicdiary companies are subject to capita’ gains tax

f) Investment property

investment property is measured initially at cost including transaction costs. Transaction costs ‘nclude transfer taxes,
professional fees for legal services and imitial leasing commissions to bring the property to the condition necessary for
It to be capable of operating ~he carrying amount alsc inciudes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment
property at the ume that costis incurred If the recogmition criteria are met The purchase and sale of properties is
recognised 1o be effected on the date uncondtional contracts are exchanged.

Subsecuent to Initia! recognition. investment property is stated at fa'r va ue Gains or losses ansing from changes in the
farvalues are nctuded in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise

Investmen: property s derecogn sed when 17 has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and ng future
economic benefit is expected from its disposa: Any gains of losses on the retrement or disposal of investment property
are recogn.sed n the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year of disposal

Gains or losses on the disposai o Investment property are determined ag the ¢*ference between net disposal proceeds
and the carrying va.ue of the asset at the dzte of disposal,

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carmes its nvestment properties at fair vaiue 1n accordance with IFRS 13, revzlued twice a year, with changes
in fair values being recogn'sed in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Incame The Croup engaged Kight Trank as
independent valuation spectalists to determne fair value as at 31 March 2023

AnnuarRepot & Accounts 2073 a1
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

a1

Accounting policies

Valuations of investment properties
Determination of the fair value of Investmen: properties has bheen prepared on tne basis defined by the RICS Va uation -
GClobal Standards (The Red Book Globa® Standarcs) as follows

wiing buyer and 2
cled knowiecgeably,

"The estmatec amount for which & prape-ty snould exchange an the date of valuauion between
willing seller in an arm’s length transaction afie” proper marketing wherein the parties hac each
prudenty anc w thout compulsion”

\'\S Qy

The valuauon takes into accoun future casn flow from assels (sucn as €77 Ngs, tenants profiles, future revenue streams,
capita’ values of fixtures and fitt'ngs, p'ant ane machinery, any enmvaronmenta! mastters and the overall repair and congit on
of the property) anc discount raies applicable 1o those assets. These assumpnons are based on locai market conditions
existing at the ha'ance sheet date

Inarriv ng at the r estimates of fair values as et 31 March 2023, the values have used their market kwo»/\edge ana
professional ;ucgement and nave 1ot on'y relied sole\y on historical transact:onar comparables Examples o inpu's 1o the
valuation can be seenin the sensitv ty 2nalvsis d'sclosed in note 10 (e)

He'd for sale investment e presented separately on the face of the Ba.ance Sheet.

Held for sale
investment prope-ty classif ed as held for sale 1s measured fair vatue.

Th e conaition s regaroed as met only when “he mvesimen: gropesty s avarable for mmed ate s2ie 10 118 present ,
condition g1d the sale 1s highly probe ble

Manggement must be comimitted to a p an or sa.e with an active programme toidentfy a buyer at a reasonable prcem
re.aton10its ‘ar value which shouid be expected 1o que*y for recognition as & cormpleted sale within one year from the
date of classification

Rental income

Rer:al income rece vab e under operai ng leases s recogmceJ on a stra ghi-nie basis ove thie term o Tne lease, except
for contingent “ental incomie WnIch 1S recognisec wnen .t arses

ncentives for essees to enter nto 'ease agreements or other negoniated rent free periods agreed ¢ spreac eveniy ove’
the lease tenm. even f the payments are 1ot made on suct a bas's The ease term s the non-cancellab e penioc of the
iease togerer with any further 1em ‘o wnicn the tenant nas *ne opt on 1o continue the lease, wnere, at the incept on o°
ine ease, the directors are rezsonably certain thal me tenant will exercrse tiat opton Premums recerved 1o terminate or
exiend leases are recognisec M the capital account of the Group Statemen: of Comprenensive Income wien they ange

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

IMcome &7 sing from expenses rechargec to tenants is recognisec N the per od in wh'ch the expense can be contractual v
recovered Service charges and ather such eceipts ave ¢ uded gross of the related costs in ~evenue as the directors
congicer that the Group acts as prncipal inth s respect.

g) Investments

When @ purchase o- saie s made uncer con'ract, the terms of which require delivery w¥ith 7 e simeframe of the re'evan:
market e nvestments concernec are “ecogn sed or gerecognised 0N Tne rade cate

Alirtne Group s invesuments are defined under IFRS as investments designated as farr value tn—ough profit o 1gss but e
a so gescnied nthese fiancial statements as .nvestments ne ¢ at farr vahie |

-

Alincestments are Jes-gNaiet Upon nitiar recogniion as ne.a a1 “air vaiue, ang are measures &) subseguent repeting dates &' fa
ue, whien, for gucted investments, s ceemed 10 be ¢ osing prices for sToc<s sourced from £ tuopem g0tk excnanges and for
SETE stoc«s sourcec fromi the L oncon Stock Excnange SETS sihe Loniaon Stoc Exchange eleston ¢ trading ser..ce Covenng
mOS‘ af the market nciug ng all tne FTSE A1 -Shzare anc the most - cuic A1 consTiuents LIcugiec mvesimenis 0r 1 esimens

or vyt there son'y a0 mact ve market ere he d at farr L alue whch s baseo on /2lusthions mace by e dreciors n acco cance
w th IPEVCA gu'dei nes and using curent market prizes, Tad ng concitions and e genera economic ¢ mate

R

"ts “nancia siatements the Company recognises e fair va ue of s mvestments nosubs d‘"was as be ng Tne ac usteg net
sa e e subs diznes nave histor caly besn hoid g vencles for direct property nvestment or “nanc ng ven cies No 235875
currenty nec through the subs dizry struziure anc al fngnaing nstruments e dect y ne a by tne Company

L& UE @re "ecogmses - 'h’ G*nup Stetemen: of Comiprenens ve Incame 04 0 spose
recogsed 1 e Group fComprenens e tLome

ne ¢ al far «aUg basec ontras
ment of Comprenensive Moom S & i1 tolg retun

; "'om movermenis in e pooe of 1 yiniG stor reat ; 0o from the uncerly ng
mancing costs o' CFBsend o . . o

reCcogn sed N

osses an foraac Currency CClTa
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01 Accounting policies

Derivatives continued
CrDs are synthetic equities ana are valued by re‘erence o the investmes' unde-lying market va ues.

The sources of the returns under the dervative cantract e g notional dividends, financing costs, nterest returns and
capitar changes) are a located 16 the revenue and capital accounts in alignment wth the nature of the underlying source
of mcome and n accordance with the guidance g'ven in the AIC SORP Notional aividend Income or expenses arsing on
long or short posit ons a“e apportioned wholly to the revenue account. Notional interest expense on ong positions 's
apport'oned between revenue and capital 'n accordance with the Board's long term expected returns of the Company
fcurrently determ ned 1o be 25% to the revenue account and 75% 1o capital reserves). Cnanges in value relating to
underying price movermenis of securiies in re'ation 10 CFD exposures are allocated wnol y o capital reserves

woda. oibeyens

h) Borrowings, loan notes and debentures

Ail loans ana debentures are nitiaiy recognised at the fair va'ue of the cons deration receivec, less issue cosis whe e
apphcable. Aferinttial ~ecogrition, all interes: bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Amortised cos: is calculated by 1aking into account any discount or premium on settlement The costs of arrang g
any 1mterest bearing loans are capitalsed and amortised over the iife of the loan on an effective interest rate basis

[
2
°
3
2
3
9
o

i} Foreign currency transiation
Transactions Involving foreign currencies are converted at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

~areign currency monetary assets and liabilities are transiated into steriing at the rate "uling on the baiance sheet date
=areign exchange cifferences are recogrised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measureg at amortised cost and comprise cash in nand and demand depasits.
k) Dividends payable to shareholders

Interim dividends are recognised in the period .0 which they are pa.d and final dwvicends are recognised when approved
by sharenolders

1) Adoption of new and revised Standards

Standards and interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous consolidated financial statements

Tnere were no amenrdments 1o International Financial Reporting Standards or interpretations that had an effect during the period

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards ‘ssued before the reporting date that become effectve after 31 March 2023 are not expected to have g
amaternial effect on equ'ty or profit for the subsequent perioc The Group has not early acopted any new Internationai @
Financia: Reporting Standard or Interpretation Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective up 2
to the date of issuance of the Group's financial statements are listed below a
=
IAS 1 Amendments - Class fication of Liakilities as Current or Non-Curren? {effective cate amended to 1 January 2023). z
The amenaments specify the requirements for classifying tabilities as curent or nan-current. The amendments are not g
expected to have a materizl impact on the Group's financiz statements @
: ) =3
IAS 1 Amendments - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (effective 1 January 2023) The amendments regure an entity to .
disclose its matenal accounting pohcy information nstead of its signficant accounting palcies. The amendments contain ®
guidance and examples on identifying material accounting policy mformation -
IAS B8 Amendments - Definition of Accounting Estimates (effective 1 January 2023} The amendments define accounting %
estimates as "'monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject 1o measurement uncertainty’. The amendments a
also clarfy the interaction between an accounting policy and an accounting esumate 2
AS 12 Amendments - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabiities arising from a Single Transaction (effective 1 January
2023; The amendments ~equire entities with certain assets to recegn se ceferred tax an particu.ar transactions that, on
initial recognition, give nise to equal amounts of taxahie and ceductible tempo-ary differences
IAS 1 Amendiments - Non-curren: Liabilities with Covenants {effective 1 January 2024) The amendmens requre disclose
ot information when there 15 a nign: to defer settlement of a lizbility for at ieast twelve moaths
[z}
=
2
1]
g
=3
]
u
g
3
5
S
=2
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

02

Investment income

Dividends from UK listed investments
Dividends from overseas listed investments
Scrip dividends from listed investments
Property income distributions

Net rental income

Gross rental income

Service charge income

Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs

Operating leases

2023 2022
£000 £'000
3,084 3101
30,891 21,349
6,325 10,693
11,777 9,027
52,077 AN
2023 2022
£000 £000
3,513 2773
946 1,103
(1,660) {1.439)
2,799 2447

The Group has entered 1Mo commercial leases on s property partfo’ o, Commerc al property leases typica y have icase
terms between 5 and 15 vears and nc'ude ciauses to enzkle penod ¢ upward revision of The rental charge eccerding ¢
prevailing market conditions Some 1eases contain opt ons 1o breax betfore the ena of the lease term

Suture min‘mum rentals unoer non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 Yarch are as foillows

Within 1 year
After 1 year but not more than 5 years
Maore than 5 years

04 Other operating income

[8a)
I

Interest receivable
Interest on refund of overseas withholding tax

Inceme received 1o capital

2023
£'000

2,900
9,900
14,150
26,950

2023
£'000

255

LY
267

TF Property In

2022
£600
2,800

10,250
17,500
30,550

2022
£'000

sestrrent Trus:
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05 Management and performance fees

2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 @
[]
Management fee 1,560 4,680 6,240 1663 4988 6657 %
Performance fee - - - - 24,489 24,489 §
1,560 4,680 6,240 1663 26,477 31140 -
A summary of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Report of the Directors on page 47,
Under the terms of this agreement the manager 1s not entitled to a performance fee for the year to 31 March 2023
@
“ . Q
06 Other administrative expenses S
3
&

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

Directors’ fees (Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 63 1o 65) 228 220
Auditor's remuneration:
- for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial

statements 97 82
Legal fees 1 27
Taxation fees g0 77
Other administrative expenses 187 199
QOther expenses 532 869
Irecoverable VAT S 8 153
Expenses charged to Revenue 1,163 1,621
Expenses charged to Capital S _ 542 608
1,705 o 222

Other administrat ve expenses clude depositary, custody and company secretanal services. These expenses are
charged on the same basis as the base management fee; 25% to income and 75 to capital Total other admin'strative
expenses charged to both income anc capital are £721,000 (2022 £807,000)

Other expenses incluce broker fees, marketing and PR costs, Directors’ National Insurance and recruitiment, Registrars
and istng fees, and annual ~epart and other pubtication printing anc dist-'bution costs These expenses are cnarged
salely ‘o the revenue account

@
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

07 Finance costs

Loan notes, bank loans and averdrafts repayable within 1 year 3,189 1,162
Loan notes repayable between 2 - 5 years 837 814
Loan notes repayable after Syears o 539
2515
Ameunt allocated to Capital B (3438) (1.886)
Amount allocated 1o Revenue“ e 1,146 629
08 Taxation
a) Analysis of charge in the year
2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
UK corporation tax at 18%
(2022: 19%) 4,221 (3,521) 700 2,832 (2,832)
Overseas taxation 2148 1,026 3174 2,135 - 2135
6,369 (2,495) 3,874 4967 (2,832) 2135
QOver praovision in respect of prior
years {282) - (282) )
6,087 (2,495) 3,592 4,967 (2,832) 2135
Deferred taxation s - - - {217) (217}
Current tax charge for the year 6,087 (2,495) 3,692 4,967 (3.049) 1918

[G¢]
[}
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08 Taxation

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the yeat 1s lower (2022 lowe~) than tne standarg rate of corporation tax in the UK for a large
company 6f 19% (202218

The difference is explained below

2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Revenue Capital Total
£000 £000 £000 £'000

Met profit/(loss) on ordinary

activities before taxation 60,724  (604,398)  (543,674) 48,404 235,201 283,605

Corporation tax charge at 19%

(2022:19%) 11,538 (114,836) {103,298) 8197 44,688 53,885

Effects of:

Non taxable losses/{gains) on

investments - 104,392 104,392 - {47.317) (47,317)

Currency movements not taxable - 145 145 - {337) (337)

Tax relief on expenses charged to

capital - {1,878) (1,878) - 3,243 3,243

Non-taxable returns - 8,656 8,656 - (3,109) {(3.109)

Non-taxable UK dividends (586) - (586) (603) - (603}

Non-taxable overseas dividends {6,791) - (6,791) (5810) - (5,810}

QOverseas withholding taxes 2,148 1,026 3174 2135 - 2135

Deferred tax movement - - - - (217} (217}

Cver provision in respect of prior

years (282) - (282)

Disaliowable expenses 131 - 131 26 - 26

Deferred tax not provided B 7n , - (71) 22 - 22
6,087 (2,495}77”7”’ 3,592 o 4867 (3,049} 1,818

¢} Provision for deferred taxation
The amounzs for deferred taxat'on provided at 25% (2022 25%) comprise,

Group
2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Unutilised Iosses carried forward - (903) (903) - (803) (903)
Shown as:

Deferred tax asset (903) ~ (903) - (303) {903)

Company 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022

Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Unutilised losses carried forward - {903) (203) - (903) (903)
Shown as:

Deferred tax asset _ - (903) (903) - (903} (903}

Arnual Renort & sccounts 2023 8/
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

08 Taxation

c) Provision for deferred taxation continued

The moverment in provision in the year Is as follows:

Group 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022

Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total

£000 £'000 £000 £'000

Provision at the start of the year - (903) (903) - (686) (686)

Unutifised losses carried forward - - - (217} (217)

Provision at the end of the year - {903) (903) - (903} (903)
Company

2023 2022 2022 2022

Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total

£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Provision at the start of the year - {903) (903) - (686) (p86)

Unutilised iosses carried forward - - - - (217) (217}

Provision at the end of the year - {903) (903} - (6o3) (303}

The Group has not recoanised aeferred tax 2ssels of £5,601,017 12022 £8,007.769) ansing as a resur: of losses carred
forward, It 1s consideres 100 uncertain ithat the Group will generate profits ‘n the relevant companies that t1ne logses woule be
avallable to offset agamst anc, on tnis bas's, tne deferrea ax asset in respect of these expenses nas ot been recognised,

Due to tne Company s status as a0 investmen: trust company anc the intedtion to continue meeTng e condit ons
requ.red ‘o chtain approval for the *oreseeabie “uture, tne Company has not providec ceferred tax on any capial ga ns
arising on the revaluation or disposal of mvestments

09 Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share
The earnings per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital, as below

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

£000 £'000

Net revenue profit 54,637 43437
Net capital profit o (601,903) 238250
Net total profit - L  (547,266) 281,687
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year 317,350,980 317,350,980
Revenue earnings per share 17.22 1369
Capital earnings per share ) B N (189.67) 7507
Earnings per share (17245 88.76

The Group has no securities In issJe that could dilute the return per share. “herefore the basic and diluted return per share
are the same

jad]
[e]
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10 Investments held at fair value
a) Analysis of investments

Listed in the United Kingdom 383,303

Unlisted in the United Kingdom 2,573
Listed Overseas 488,839
Investment properties 73,957

investments held for sale -

investments held at fair value 948,672

Investments in subsidiaries
at fair value - -

948,672

Company
2023

£000

383,303
2,573
488,839
73,957

948,672

_ 36,292
984,964

Group

37

2022
£000

6,076
2,341

940,744
47275
48980
1555416

1555416

Company
2022

£'000
516,076
2,341
940,744
477275
48580
1,555,416

36,297
1,591,713

Investments held for sale: mixed use property, the Colonnades, London, W2, was under offer at 31 March 2022 with a
sale expected to complete by the end of June 2022 Uliimately, the residential element of the Colonnades was sold and a
decision was made to retain the commerciat element for the foreseeable future. There are no investments held for sale as

at 31 March 2023.
b) Business segment reporting

Valuation

Net

Net

31 March  additions/ appreciation/

2022 (disposals)
o

£000 000

Listed investments 1,456,820 (52,591)
Unlisted investments 2,341

Contracts for difference 7,657 42,561

Total investments segrment 1,466,818 (10,020)

Direct property segment o 96,255 (4,723)

1,563,073 (14,753)

(depreciation)
£'000
(532,087)
232

{45 556)
(577,471}

(17.575)

{594,986)

Valuation
31 March

2023
£000

872,142
2,573

..Apgez

879,377
73,957

953,334

Gross
revenue
31 March
2023
£'000

51,450
627
9,462
61,539
4,459
65998

Gross
revenue
31 March
2022
£°000
43775
395
5701
49,871
3,876
53,747

In seek.ng to achieve 1ts investment objective, the Company invests in the shares and securities of property companies
and praperty related businesses internationally and also i investment property .ocated in the UK. The Company
therefore considers that there are two distinct reporting segments, nves ments and direct property, which are used

‘ar evaluating performance and allocation of resources The Board, which is the principal decision maker, rece'ves
nformation on the two segments on a regular basis Whilst revenue streams and cirect property costs can be attributea
te the reporting segments, general administrative expenses cannot be split to aliow a profit for each segment to be
determned The assets and gross revenues for each segment are shown above

The property cosis incluced within note 3 are £1,660,000 {2022: £1.435,000) and deducting these costs from the direct
propesty gross revenue above would resu't in net incame of £2,799,C0C (2022 £7,441,000) for the direct property

reparting segment.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

10 Investments held at fair value

c) Geographical segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net Net Valuation revenue revenue

31 March  additions/ appreciation/ 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 (disposals) (depreciation) 2023 2023 2022

£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000

UK listed equities and convertibles 516,076 46,397 (17G.164) 383,303 15,941 11,731
UK unlisted eauities 2,341 - 232 2,573 395 365
UK direct property’ 96,255 (4,723} {(17,575) 73,957 4,459 3876
Continental European listed eguities 940,744 (98,9872) (352923) 488,839 35,741 32,044
1,655416 (57,314) (549,430} 948,672 56,536 48,046

UK contracts for difference? 1,627 31,268 (33831 (936) 3,425 1616
European contracts for difference? 6,030 11,293 (11.725) 5,598 6,037 4,085
7,663,073 {(14.753) (594,986} 953,334 65,998 53,747

inclugec inthe above fgures are purchase costs 0° £981.000 (2022 £489900) and seies costs of £238,00C 12022
£255.000

These compnse Ma. iy stamp duty anc commission

The Company recelved £512 155500 (2022 £544.092 000 from mvestmenis, cludng cirect property, salc In t1e
year The book cost of these investments wnen tney were puichasec was £212 279000 (2022 £356.438.000) Tnese
mvestments have been revalued over {'me anc until tney were solo any unrealised gams,; osses were ncludec i the far-
va ue of tie investments

! Net additionsaisposals) ncludes £480000 12022 £366,000) of capitel expenditure Net appreciation (deprec-stion)
‘ncludes amounts in respect of rent free pe~ods

IeY

Gross revenue for contracts for difference relates o d vidends receivalie, on an ex dividend basis, on the uncer v ng
positions held The appreciaton-(deprecation; in CFDs re ates to the movernent i fair vaiue 11 the vear.

The deprecistion n ine TRS rexgtes to the movement 1 fair value in tne vear unt maturny.

d) Substantial share interests

Tne Group helc interests in 3+ or more of any class of capital in O compan 2s (2022 8 compamest 1 woich 1invests
Nane of these nvestments is cons cered s'ignificant In tne context of 1nese “nancial statements See note 21 on pages 103
and 184 for further cetal ¢ of subsdiary investments

e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financia asse:s and “inancial 1abihines are carmec 1 tne Bz ance Sneet e ther a7 T1err fair va.Ue [ nvesTmen's; of the
balance sheet amount s & reasonakle appraxmation of *air va ues (cue from brokers, dividends anc interest ~ece vabie,
due to brokers, accruals anc cash &t banki

Fair value hierarchy disclosures

caitiothe ‘s -

Categorszton with atne hesa chiy has been cetermimec on thebas s 0 t1e owest eve putthal:s sign:
velue mezsurement of ine e e.ant asset as fallows

ce.e 1-vedeousng cucled pr ces nanacive markel for Centceigssers
te.e Z-nauecbyreference o .3 ual gntecnicues using obseryalkh € NEuLis ctne than cuoted prres w i nLese' ]
_e.en 3o cgusd by reference 10 L3 UET 0N tRCRN OUeS USING puts tnat are ol

THE s Ual 0n tECTN aues Used by the Group 278 €30 3 100 0 TS 200U

el
[<h]
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10

Investments heid at fair value

e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities continued
The table below sets cut fair va ue measurements using IFR5 13 fair value nierarchy.

Financiai assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2023 £'000 £600 £000 £'000
Equity investments 861,611 10,531 2,573 874,715
Investment properties - - 73,957 73,957
Contracts for difference - 4,662 - 4,662
Foreign exchange forward contracts - (386) - (386}
___BB1,611 1407 76,530 952,948

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2022 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Equity investments 1,456,820 - 2,341 1459161
investment properties - - 96,255 46,255
Contracts for difference - 7,657 - 7,657
Foreign exchange forward contracts - 2,736 - 2,736
1,456,820 10,393 985%6  1,565809

The table above represents the Group's fai- value hierarchy. The Company's fair value hierarchy 1s 1dent cal except for the
inc.usion of the fair value of the investment in subs:d arnes which at 31 March 2023 was £36.222 000 (2022 £36,297 000;.
“hese have been categonsec as leve 3 in both years The movementin the year of £5,000 (2022 £7.015000) s

the change in farr velue in the year The total financial essets at fair value for the Company 2731 March 2023 was

£884,064,000 (2022 £1,591,713,00C;

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

31 March Appreciation / 31 March

2022 Purchases Sales (Depreciation) 2023

At 31 March 2023 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Unlisted equity investments 2,347 - - 232 2,573
Investment properties

- Mixed use 48,187 387 (5,203) (6,746} 36,625

- Office & industrial o 48,068 - 93 - (10,829) 37,332

96,255 480 (5,203) (17,575) 73,957

98,596 480 (5,2032) {(17,343) 76,530

All appreciation/(depreciation’ as stated above relates 1o movements in fair vaiue of unlisted equity nvestments and
nvestment properties held at 31 March 2023,

Tre Group held one unquoted avestment at the vear end (see 11 & overleah

Transfers between hierarchy levels
Tnere we e no rransfers cuning the year between any of the levels
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

10
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Investments held at fair value

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations

e s gnif cant uncbservab e inputs used in the fair value measurement cetego-'sed witrin Level 3 of the fa r vaiue
wegrehy of investment properties are

- Estmatedrental value £7 5 £65 persqg (2022 £6 5- £651

- Capitalsaton rates: 3 0% - 6.0% (2022 2 0% - 6 0%}

Significant increases (gecreases) in estimated rental value and rent growth misolation would result -1z sigrufizantly

ngher (lower) farr value mezsurement A signficant increase [decrease) iniong-term vacancy rate in iso ation wouid
resultin @ significantly lower thignes) “a 1 va ue measurement

There are interrelationships between the yields and renta’ values as they are partiaily determined by market rate
cond tion The sens.tivity oF the vauation 1o changes in the most significant nputs per class of investmen: property are
shown beow

Estimated movement in fair value of

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial

2023 arising from £'000 £'000

Increase in rental value 5.0% 289 1,712 - 2,001
Decreaseinrentalvalue 5.0%  (289) (1,712) - (2,001)
Increase in Yield 0.5% (3,538) {3,466) - (7,004)
Decrease in Yieid 0.5% 4,343 4,261 - . 8604
Estimated movement in fair value of Office &

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial Other Total
2022 arising from £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Increase in rental value by 5% 306 2,266 145 2717
Decrease in rental value by 5% (294) - (2266) (1) (2.5617)
Increase in yield by 0 5% (3,865) (6.343) (832) {11,040}
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 4,841 8711 1,107 14,653

NO Impairmen: osses Nave been recogniged as 57 371 Marcn 2023

Financial instruments

Risk management policies and procedures
e Croup invests in eguit'es and other instrumenits ‘or the long termin the pursu t of the Investment Okject ve set ot
onpage 33 The Group is exposec 1o a var ety of misks that coule resulr 1 ener a -eduction or an.ncregse in the pro’ s
ava.eb e “or aistr bution by yeay 0° dredends

The princ’pa tis<s the Group faces M its porfelio menagemen: gcivties are
+ Market nsk icomprs g price 1Sk, CUrrency ns< ana iteres? "ate ris«<

< Lgud Ty rsx

+ Creci-sx

The Managers po C es anc processes oo manag g these 1S«S are sumirianeed o pages 3

cweughout the vesr

“P Property Insestrent Trus:



11 Financial instruments

11.1 Market price risk
3y the very nature of 15 actw ties, the Group's inves:ments are exposed to marke: price fluctuations.

Management of the risk
The Manager runs a diversif-ea portfolio and reparts to the Beard on the portfolio activity and performance at each Board
meeting The Board monitors the investment activity and strategy to ensure it 1s compatible with tne stated objectives.

The Group s exposure to changes in market prices on 118 cuoted equity investments, CFDs and investment property

portfol'c, was as follows
2023 2022
£000 £000

Investments held at fair value 948,672 1,555,416
CFD long gross exposure 130,906 144,642

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out in the Investment Po icies on page 34, there are guidelines 1o the amount of exposure 1o a single company,
geograpn-cal region or direct property These guidelines ensure an appropriate spread of exposure to individual or sector
price risks. As an investment company dedicated to investment in the property sector, the Group is exposed to price
movements across the property asset class as a whole.

Price risk sensitivity

The foliowing table illustrales the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year and the value of sharehclders’ funds to
an increase or cecrease of 15% nthe fair values of the Group's equity, fixed nterest, CFD and direct property investments.
The level of change is consistent with the illusiration shown in the previous year The sensitivity 's basec on the Group's
equity, fixed inzerest, CFD and direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, with all other variables he.d constant

2023 2023 2022 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value
£'000 £'000 £000 £°000

Statement of Compreﬁé“r'{sive
Inceme - profit after tax

Revenue return (71) 71 {115) 115
Capital return 142,826 (142,826) 234176 (234176}
Change to the profit after tax for the

year/shareholcers’ funds 142,755 (142,755} 234,061 {234,061}
Change to total earnings per Ordinary

Share _ 44.98p (44.98)p 73.75p (73.75)p

11.2 Currency risk
A proportion of the Group's portfolio 1z invested in overseas securities and thei- sterling value can be significantly affectec
by movements in foreign excnange rates,

Management of the risk

Twe Board rece ves a "eport at each Boarc meeting on the proportion of the investment portfon.o held in sterhing,
Curos ar other currencies Tne Group may sometimes nedge foreign currency movements outside the Eurozone by
funding investments in overseas secunties with unsecured loans denominated n the same currency or through
forware currency contracis

Cash deposits are helc in stering and/or Euro denominated accounts
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11 Financial instruments .~ -

Foreign currency exposure

At the repornting date the Group had the following exposure’
(sterling has been shown for reference)

Currency 2023 2022

Sterling 34.0% 34.0%
Euro 42.0% 42 0%
Swedish Krona 14.0% 16.0%
Other ) 10.0% 80%

Tne following table sets out the Group's tolal exposure to foreign currency nisk and the net exposure to foreign currencies
of the net monetary assets and habilities

Swedish
Sterling Krona

2023 £000 £000

Receivables (due from brokers,

dividends and other Income receivable) 10,534 51,105 2,811 837
Cash at bank and on deposit 8,226 20,620 4,299 2,926
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts (16,000) - - -
Payables (due o brokers, accruals and
other creditors) (10,573) (1,221) (1,474) -
FXforwards o (118,592) 52,283 39,628 26,295
Total foreign currency expasure on net
monetary items {120,405) 122,787 45,264 30,058
Investments held at fair value 459,832 330,586 88,592 69,662
Non-current assets Q03 - - -
Non-current habidites  (15,000) {43,933) - -
Total currency exposure 325330 409,440 133,856 99,720
Swedish

Sterling Eurc Krona Other
2022 £000 £600 £°000 £000
Recelvables (due from brokers,
dividends and other income receivable) 53,812 27,758 12,659 608
Cash at bank and on deposit 20,341 3247 2.883 5638
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts {35,000} - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and
other creditors) (25.642) (711} (1,634) (3,722}
FX forwards o (8B280) {10.996) 58877 42735
Total foreign currency exposure or ret
monetary items {74.669) 19,898 73785 44 6539
Investments held at fair value 674672 680755 181,455 78,534
Non-current assets 303
Non-current liabilities (15.000) {42253
Total currency exposure 525,806 658400 2557240 123,193
Foreign currency sensitivity
Tme foiow agtableiiustates e senis T Ly ot the proft aTer tar for e yesr o e Groun s AUy n regate To the

+ ster nge

- ster nge

¢+ sler ng

WO
I
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11 Financial instruments
Foreign currency sensitivity continued
I* sterling had strengthened against the currencies shown, this would have had the following effect:

Year ended March 2023 Year ended March 2022

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£000 £000 £°000 £°000 £°000

Statement of Comprehensive
Income — profit after tax

Revenue return (4,080) (354) (370) (3.215) (399) (252

Capital return (53,496)  (17,442)  (12993) (72110} (33,256 (16,053)

Change to the profit after tax for

the year/sharehclders’ funds  (57,5786) (17,796) (13,363) (75,325) {33655y (16,309
2023 2022

Change to total earnings per share L 7 (27.96)p L {39.48)p

If sterling had weakened aganst the currencies shown, this would nave the fol owing effec:

Year ended March 2023 Year ended March 2022

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Qther
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive
tncome - profit after tax

Revenue return 5,392 446 475 4419 475 314

Capital___r_eturn - 72,392 23,608 17,586 136,656 45017 4771

Change 1o the profit after tax for

the year/shareholders’ funds - 77,784 24,054 18,061 141075 45,492 5,085
2023 2022

Change to total earnings per share 37.78p 6039

11.3 Interest rate risk
Interest rate mavements may affect

«the fair value of any iInvestments in fixec interes! securities,

- the fair vajue of the loan notes,

- the ievel of iIncome recelvable from cash at bank and on deposit;
» the level of interest expense on any vanabie rate bank loans, and
* the prices of the under ying securities held 'n the portfclios.

Management of the risk

The possible effects an fair value and cash flows that coulc anse as a result of changes ininterest rates are taken into
account when making investment decis ens Property companies usually have borrowings themselves snd the level of
gearing and structure of 1ts aebt portfolio 1s a key factor when assess 1g t1e Mvestment in & property company.

Tne Group has fxed and has hac variahie rate borrowings duting the year The ‘nterest rates on the loan notes is fixea,
detals are set out 'nnote 13 In addition to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, mult-cur-ency revolving loan
facilities which cacry variahle rates of ~terest based on the currencies drawn, p.us a margin The unused facilit'es total
£12C,000,000 (2022 £95,000,000,
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Notes to the financial statements
continued
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Financial instruments

Management of the risk continued

The Manager cons.cers hoth 1me level of deb: on the balance shee: of the Croup (1 & theloan notes and any bank ioans
drawn} and the "see-through’ gearing, taking nto account the assels and .abilities o the underly ng investments, when
considering the mvestment portolio. Tnese gearing evels are reported requ arly to the Soard

Tne major 1y of the Grour‘s investmen: portfolio 1s non-intecest bearing As a result tne Group s financial assets are not
dicectly subiect to s’ gnificant amoun:s of risk due 1o fluctuations inthe prevalling levels of market interes: -ates.

Interest rate exposure

The exposure at 31 March of financia: assets and financial Lab hties to Interest rate "Ik 1s shown by re‘erence 1o
- floating nteres? rates. when the interest rate 1s due tc be re-set

- fixed nterest “ates when the financial ‘nstrument s cue o be repad

The Group's exposure 10 floating interest rates on assets s £81,170.000 (2022: £77,242.000;

The Group's exposure 1o Gxeg interest rates on hab 1nies s £58,933,000 (2022 £57,253,000)

The Group s exposure to floating interest rates on hahbiities s £10.000,000 (2022, £35,000.000)

‘nterest recevatle and finance costs ave at the following rates:

- Interest receved on cash baiances, or paid on bank overcrafls, sat e margin over SON'A ¢ 11s foreign currency
ecuivalen: {2027 same}

+ Interest paid on borrowings under Tie muiti-currency loan fach mes, s at a margin over SONIA o7 12s fare gni currenicy
eqgu'valent for the type of loan 12022, same;
- The fnance charges on the £50m and £15m loan rotes are at interest rates of 1 92' anc 3 59+« respect vely

“he year end amounts are not representative of the exposure o terest rates dur N the yea~ as te level of exposure
cnanges as investments are made in fixed interest secur ties, bor-owings are drawn down and repaid, and tne mix of
berrowings etween flogting and fixes nterest “ates changes

Interest rate sensitivity

4 change o0f 2% an interest rates at the reporting date would nave nad the fo owing cirect impact

2023 2023 2022 2022

2% 2% 2% 2%

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£'000 £000 £000 £000

Change to shareholders’ funds (198) 198 (243) 243
Change to total earnings

per share ) (0.06)p 0.06p (0.08)p 0.08p

“n's level of cnange = not representative of the yea- gs & who'e, smce the exposure changes troughout the vear.

n s assessment does not take into azcount Tne .mpact of interest rate chenges on the marke! va ue ¢ the nvestments
the Group holds

11.4 Liquidity risk
Jiquctec nvestments s the portfol o are sulject to cuic.ty rsk T he Group me:d one uncuoted -avestment a1 ine yes”
encisee 171 € beow’

o

Marth 2023, 8% 12027 &7

ncetts 1 Marke: conc T ong the qu d-sy of o rect property 'mvesiments masy be reducec ATET
o “ec

Cproperty nLegiments
A1 37 Maren 2L e Groups estment pettfo ©Ise T 0 STEC SECUT NS WM 278 predom 1E0lY
eadily rea sa

zCiIes are g C ‘L e m ."‘ SMg CETS e 1.5 nten
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Financial instruments

Debt and Financing maturity profile

Wwithin Within Within More than
1-2 years 3-4years 4-5years S years
At 31 March 2023 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Bank loans* 10,000 - - - - - 10,000
Loan notes - - 43,933 - - 15,000 58,933
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and lcan notes 1,382 1,382 1,241 539 539 1,585 6,668
Securities and properties
purchased for future settlement 8,536 - - - - - 8,536
Accruals and deferred income 2,953 - - - - - 2,953
Other creditors ) 141 - - - - - 14
23,012 1,382 45174 539 539 16,585 87,231
Within Within Within Within Within  More than
1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year 3-4 year 4-5 year 5 year Total
At 31 March 2022 £°0090 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Bank lcans 35,000 - - - - - 35,000
Loan notes - - - 42,253 - 15,000 57,253
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,241 539 2,124 7,954
Securities and properties
purchased for future settlement 5,364 - - - - - 5,364
Accruals and deferred income 25,523 - - - - - 25,523
Other creditors 7 222 - - - - ) - 222
i B 67459 1,350 1,350 539 17,124 131,316
T AZEDT UtIyens v far iy w T RBS wag renewed for cne vear nFebruacy 2025 E10m0 20700 13 ganon g fac ity at the ba snce sheet date

TOATAG one veRe fas ity At N3 T uxemhourg was reneveed roJuly 2022 £ 12022 Trovaans d- oty af e balance sheet date

P OATALT fAan vy s O

Management of the risk

The Manager sets guidelines for the maximurm exposure of the portfolio 1o unguoted and direct property investments. “hese are set
out Inthe -nvestment Policies on page 34 All unquoted investments with g value cver £1m and direct property investments with g
value aver £5 million must be approved by the Board for purchase.

The Company maintains regular contact w'th the banks providing revoiving facilities and renewal discussions commence
welt ahead of facility renewal dates In addrtion new opporiunities for the provision of debt are explored on an engoing
basis.

11.5 Credit risk

“he faiiure of 2 counterparty 1o a transaction to discharge 4s chligations under that transaction could result in the Group suffering
2 '0ss. At the period end 11e argest counterparty risk, which the Group was exposed o was witnin Debtors and Cash and cash
eqLrvalents where the total bank balances held wih one counterparty was £56,326,000 {2022 £50,107,000).

Management of the risk

irvestment transactions are carried out with a number of brokers, whose credit standing is ~eviewed peaiod cally by the
Manager, and 'mris are set an the amount that may be due from any one broker Cash at bank is only held w th banks with
h-gh quality external credit rat gs
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11 Financial instruments

Credit risk exposure
In summary, compare 1o the amounts 11 the Ba.ance Saeet, the maximum exposure to cred t risk at 21 March was as “oilows

2023 2022 2022

Maximum Balance Maximum

exposure Sheet exposure

£'000 £'000 £000

Debtors 65,287 65,287 97673 97673
Cash and cash equivalents 36,071 36,071 32,109 32,109
101,358 101,358 129,782 129,782

Wnere the receivables of the Group are exposed 1o credit risk. the requirement for imparment 18 assessec &t each year
210 For all receivables, in the iable above, nompairmen: has been recognsed in relation to expected cred tlosses as the
impact of these losses 1s immateral as &1 31 Marcn 2023 (371 March 2022 no impairment)

Offsetting disclosures

‘norcerto def ne its contractual nghts betrer a7d to secure 1 ghts that will help the Group mitigate 1s counterparty - sk
e Group may enter into an 'SDA Master Agreement or simlar agreement w tn ts OTC derivative contract cournterpar.es
An ISDA Master Agreement 1s an agreement between the Group and tne counterparty that governs OTC denvatves and
foreign exchange contracts and typically conta'ns, among other things, collatera posiing terms and netting provis:ons
nthe event of a default and<cr terminat-on event. Under an ISCA Master Agreement, the Group has a contraciua right

10 offset with the counterparty certa n dervative financ & instruments payables andsor receivab es with collatera

held ano/or pogted anc create one sing' e net payment 1 the event of cefaut inc'uc ng the bank-upicy or msolvency

of the counterparty However, bankruptoy or nsolvency aws of a parucular junsdiction may impose “estnztions on or
profitit ons agamst the right of offsel in ban<ruptey, fsolvency or other events

The disciosures set out n the following tables include fingncia assets anafnanciz' hab™ ties that are sub ect to an
enforceable master neti ng arrangement or ssmila- agreemerit

AT 31 March 2023 anc 2027, the Group's cerivative assets and liabihties by type and counterparty) were as follows

Year ended 2023 Year ended 2022

Net amounts Net amounts
of financial of financial
assets/ assets/
(liabilities) liabilities
presented in presented in
the Balance Cash collateral the Balance Cash collateral
Sheet pledged Sheet pledged
£'000 £'9300 £000 £000

CFD positions:

Goldman Sachs 4,662 65,117 7.657 45133
4,662 65,117 7657 45133
FX forward contracts:
HSBC (386) - 2736
(386) - 2,736 -

[e4)
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11

Financial instruments

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Except for the loan notes which are messured at amortisea cost {refer 1o Note 13}, the farvaiues of the financial assets
and fimancial iahilines are ersher carred in the balance sheet at their fair value (Investments) or the balance sheet
amount 1S a reasonable approximation of fair value {debtors crecitars, cash at bank and bank overdrafts. accruals and
prepayments)

The fair values of the hstec investments are cerived from the closing price or last traded prize at which the securit.es are
cuoted on the London Stock Exchange and other recognised exchanges

The fair value of contracts for difference are based on the underiy.ng listed investment value as set out above and the
amount due from or 1o the counterparty unde- the contract 1s recorded as an asse: or sability acco dingly, which s
cisclosed in Note 13 for the current year,

The fair vaiues of the properties are denved from a1 open ma-ketl [Red Book) valuation of the propert-es on the Balance
Sheet date by an independent firm of valuers [Knight Frank}.

There was one unaucted investment at the Balance Sheet date, Atrato, with a total value of £2,573,000 (2022 Atrato,
£2,341,000

in the Parent Company accounts there are investments of £36,336,000 (2022 £35,297,000) in unhsted subsidiaries which
are classified as leve: 3.

The amounts of change i far value for investments including net returns on CF s recognised in the consolicatec profit
or loss for the year was a loss of £5924,086,000 (2022: £265,322,0C0 gan)

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures

The Group's cap'ta management objectives are

- toensurethat 't will be eble to continue as a going concern, angd

« to maximise the tota! return to its equity shareholders through an appropriate halance of equity capital and debt.

The equity cap'ta: of the Group a1 31 March 2023 consisted of called up share capital, share premium, capita redemption
anc revanue reserves tota'ling £968,346,000 {2022 £1,562,739,000). The Group coes not regard the ioan notes and loans
2s permanent capital.

The loan notes agreement reguires compl-ance with a set of financial covenants, ncluding:
- Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Va ue,
+ the Adjusted Totai Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minimum of 200% of Tota. Borrowings; and

- the Adjusted NAV shal' not be ess than £260,000,0600.

12 Debtors

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
£000 £'000 £'000

Amounts falling due within one year:
Securities and properties sold for

future settlement 2,739 2,739 33,138 33,138

Foreign exchange forward contracts

for settlement - - 2,736 2,736

Tax recoverable 3,857 3,857 3,344 2,879

Prepayments and accrued income? 6,146 6,146 5168 5168

Arnounts receivable in respect of

Contracts for Difference 5,598 5,598 7657 7 657

CFD margin cash 45,099 45,099 45,133 45133

Other debtors ) 1,848 1,854 497 497
65,287 65,293 97.673 97208

Non-current assets
Deferred taxation asset 903 903 903 Q03

Inzludes armounts nrespect of ont free perniods
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

13 Current and non-current {iabilities

Group Company
2022 2022
£°000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year. ‘
Bank loans and overdrafts 10,000 10,000 35,000 35,000 ‘
Securities and properties purchased
for future settlement 8,536 8,536 5,364 5364
Amounts due tc subsidiaries - 36,336 - 35869
Amounts payable inrespect of
Contracts for Difference 936 936 - - ‘
Tax payabie 702 700 - -
Accruals and deferred income 2,953 2,925 25523 25,523
Foreign exchange forward contracts
far settiement 386 386 - -
QOther creditors 141 131 222 182
23,654 59,950 66,109 701,939
Non-current habilities:
1.92% kuro Loan Notes 2026 43,933 43933 427253 42253
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2031 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
58,933 58,933 57253 57,253

Loan Notes
Onthe 10th mebruary 2016, tne Company issuec 1 62% Unsecurec Zurc 50,008,000 Loan Notes and 3 58% iinsecured
GBP 15000,000 Loan Notes which are due to be redeemed a: par cnthe 10th February 2026 and 1070 =ebruary 2033
respeciive y

(9]
&

Tne fair value of the 1 92 Zure Loan Notes was £43,279,000 (2022 £42 340 003; 2nc the 3 59% GBP Loan Notes was

£14,338,000 12022 £14,873.003) at 31 March 2023

using the IFRS 13 ‘&’ va ue hierarchy the Loan Notes are deemec 1o be categonser wittin Leve! 2
Thelean notes ggreemen: -equsres compance with a set of financal covenants, inciud ng

* Total Borow ngs shall not exceed 337, of Ad ustec Net Asset value,

s the Acjusted Tota Assels shalatal @ mesbeecuvalent toa memimum of 208+ of Tetar Borrow -1gs, and
< the Ac'usted \NAY shall not be less than £260,00C 0CC

The Compeany eqc Greup complied with tne terms of the oan notes agreement througiout The year

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities

et ls!
JOUi2G27
P £35000000

[alatolial e

1302000001 a1 31 Maan 2223 AT Y tAscn 2023 £ 000000 «

[aliaTats
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13 Current and non-current liabilities
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Long term Short term
debt debt

Group and Company £'000 £000
Opening liabitities from financing activities at 31 March 2022 57,253 35,000 92,253
Cash flows.
Repayment of bank loans - (25,000) (25,000)
Non cash-flows:
Movement on foreign exchange 1,680 , - 1680
Clesing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2023 58,933 i 10,000 _ 68,933

14 Called up share capital

Ordinary share capital
The baance ¢ assried as ord nary share capital ncludes the nominal value proceeds on the issue of the Ordinary equity
share capita! comprising ordinary shares of 25p

Issued, allotted
Number and fully paid £'060

Ordinary shares of 25p
ALT Aprii 2022 317350980 79338
At 37 March 2023

The voling nghts are asclosed in the Report of the Directors on page 49
During the vear, the Company made no marke* purchases for cancellation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (2622: none)

Snce 31 March 2023 no Grdinary shares have been purchased and cancellec.

15 Share premium account and capital redemption reserve

Share premium account

Tre balance classif ed as share premium includes the premium above nominai value from the proceeds on issue of the
equ-ty share capita comprising Grdinary shares of 250,

Capital redemption reserve

The capitzl redempton reserve 1s used to record the amount equivalent (o the nomina: velue of purchases of the
Company's own shares in order to maintain the Company s capital

16 Retained earnings

Company Group Company

2023 2022 2022

£'000 £'000 £000

Investment holding {losses) / gains (99,771) (81,449) 412,934 431,260
Realised capital reserves ) 828,859 802,597 918,057 891,806
Total capital reserves 729,088 721,148 1,330,991 1,323,066
Revenue reserve ) ) B 72,787 ) 80,727 65277 73,202
Total retained earnings 801,875 801,875 1,396,268 1,396,268

The reslised capital reserves are d'strbutable by way of a dividend 1o chareholders or ut ised for the repurchase of share
capita, net of any unrealisec losses on investments hela. The revenue reserve represents accumulated revenue profits
from which annua’ dividends are paio
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Notes to the financial statements

continued
17 Dividends
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£000 £000
Amounts recognised as distributions 1o equity holders in the year:
Final dividend for the year ended 371 March 2022 of 9 20p
(2027:9.00p)} per share 29,196 28,562
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of 5.65p
(20225 30p) per share 17,931 16,819
o 47,127 45387
Amounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders
n the year
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 0of 3 85p
{(2022: 9 20p) per share 31,259 29196

The “inz aiv cend has not been inciuded as 2 abi' 1y 1 these financ g statements inaccordance with ‘A5 10 "Events
afier the reportng period’

Set out beiow s thetota' ¢ v cendto be pa.d nrespect of the year Tnisisthe basis g0 wh:ch the requirements of s 1132
cfthe Corporation Tax Act 2010 are consdered

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£'000 £000

Imtenim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of 5.65p
(2022, 5.30p) per share 17,931 16,819
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023

of 8 85p (2022: 9.20p) per share 31,259 29196

49,190 46,015

18 Company statement of comprehensive income
As permitted by Sect:on 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company Nas not presented its own Statement of
Comprenensive Income ~he vet 1ogs after taxation of the Company dea twth 1 11e zccounts of tne Croup was
£547 26600012022 £281.687 000 prof1)

19 Net asset value per ordinary share
Net asset vaue per Ordinary share s hased on the net assers attwibutable 0 Ordinary shares of £%68.246.000 /2027
E1.562.732000 and on 317 350,980 (2022 317.250980) Crdina y snares N ssue at ine vear end

20 Commitments and contingent liabilities

T atals] o

AT31 Marcn 2222 e Greup had cap e commutiments of £30 00012022 74000 but nc oot ngent abetes 2027 A,

100 TR Procerty Irvestrert Trust




21 Subsidiaries

The Croup has tne followmng pr ncipa: subsidianes, al- of which are registered and operating in Scotland, Eng:and and

VWales:
Name
New England Properties Limited

The Coilonnades Limited
Showart Limited

Trust Union Properties Residential Developments Limited

The Property Investment Trust Ltd

The Real Estate Investment Trust Limiterd

The Terra Property investment Trust Limited
Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Five) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Six) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Nine) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Ten) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eleven) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Twelve) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Thirteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Fourteen) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen} Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Number Eighteen) Limited
Bayswater) Limited

Cardiff) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Theale) Limited

Trust Union Propertie

ww

Trust Union Propertie

{
(
(
(
{
(
(
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteen} Limited
{
(
(
(
{
Trust Uniopn Properties (Number Twenty-Two) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limited
Skillion Finance Limited
Trust Union Finance (1991) Plc
FGH Developments Limited
FGH Developments (Aberdeen) Limited
FGH (Newcastle) Limited
NEP (1994) Limited
New England Developments Limited
New England Investments Limited
New England Retail Properties Limited
New England (Southern) Limited
Sapce One Limited
Trust Union Properties Limited
Trust Union Finance Limited
TR Property Finance Limited
Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited

Anrual Renort & Accounts 20232

Reg. Number

788895
2826672
2500726
2365875
2415846
247A015
2415843
2416017
2415839
2416018
2415836
2416019
2415833
2416021
2415830
2476022
2415818
24716024
2476026
2470027
2475768
2476030
2415772
2476031
2415765
2476036
2420758
2663561
1481476
SC68799
1466619
977487
1385909
26713905
1447221
1787371
803940
2134624
1233998
24715941
2420097

Principal Activities

NMon-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Neon-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading cempany
Non-trading company

Property investment
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Investment financing
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
MNon-trading comparny
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

Investment holding and finance company

Investment halding and finance company

Non-trading company

-
[
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

21 Subsidiaries
ine Company has provided 2 guarantee for each of tese subs cizries im order for thiem o take the exemption from ‘e
reauirement of an aud't. 1 "ne with the ~equirements of S 4794 o the Companies Act 2006

All the subsidiaries are futly owned and ail tne noid'ngs are ora nary snares.

At companes have the regisiered off ce of Exchange House, Primrose Street. London, ECZA 2MNY w th the exceplion of
FGH Develepments (Aberdeen; _imited whichis reg stered 1o 50 Lothian Road, Fest val Square, Edinburgh EH3 2BY

22 Related party transactions disciosures

3alances anc transact.ons between the Company and '1s subs diar es, which a-e relalec parties, have been e, minated on
consolldation The balances are nterest free, unsecured and repayable on demand

2023 2022
£000 £'000

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

The Colonnades Limited 23,101 22619
TR Property Finance Limited 13,255 13270
New England Properties Limited (20 20

36,336 35869

Remuneration of key management personnel

e remuneration of the Drrectors, who are the key manzgement personne o 1ne Company for eacn of the velevant
categores specifed in tAS 24 Relatec Party Disclosuyres is prov.dea in the aug tec part of the Directors Remuneraton
Report on pages 63 and 65

Directors’ transactions

Directors' transactions 'n the Company's snares are consicered 10 be a resated party I'ansact on due 10 11e nature of ther
rcle as Jirectors

Movements in D rectos shareho dings are ¢ soosed within the Direciors Remuneration Repo i ¢ page 65

23 Subsequent events
There a-e o events that have oocurrer subsequent to the f nanc al vear enc 1o ~opor:

n4 TR =ropert; Im. estrert Tryst
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 Alternative Performance Measures

Alternative Performance Measures are numerical
measures of the Company's carrent or nistorical
perfarmarce. firancial position or cash f.ows, otaer
thar the financial measures defined or specified in the
Francal Statements

Tne measures defined be ow are considered to be
Alternative Performance Measures Tney are vewed as
part:icllarly re evant and are frequent'y guoted for closed
ended investiment companies.

Total Return

Trie NAV Tota. Return is caiculated by remvesting tne
dividends in the assets of the Caompany from the relevart
ex-dividend date. Dividends are deemed to be reinvested
on the ex-div denid date as this is the protocol used

by the Company’s beachmark and otner indices Tne
Share Price Tolal Return is ca culated by re-vesting the
d'viderds in the shares of the Cormpany from the relevant
ex-dividend date

Yeartoc
31 March

2023

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2022 {pence) 492 43 456.5
NAV/share price per share at

371 March 2023 {pence) 30513 279.0
Change in year {38.0%) (38.9%)
Impact of dividends reinvested  2.5% 2.6%
Total Return for the year (35.5%) (36 3%}

Year to
31 March

2022

NAV/share price per share at

371 March 20217 {pence) 417 7 392.50
NAV/share price per share at

371 March 2022 {pence) 49243 456.50
Change in year 17 8% 16 3%
Impact of dividends reinvestec 36% 36%
Total Return for the year ) 21.4% 19.9%

e
(a2}

Ongoing Charges

Tne Ongoing Charges ratio has been calculated 0
accordance wiin the guidance issued by the AIC as the
total of iInvestment managemert fees ard administratve
expenses expressed as a percentage of the average

Net Asset Values throaghout the year. Tne definit'or of
administrative expenses does ircl.de property related
experses, the Ongo ng Charges calcLlat on is showr
mclusive and exclusive of these experses to aliow
compar.sor of the direct administrat ve ard management
cnarges w'th the majonty of Irvestmert Trusts whicn do
not hold ary drect property inrvestments,

Excluding
Including  Excluding Performance
Year to Performance Performance Fees & Direct
31 March Fees Fees Property Costs
2023 £000 £000 £000
Management
Fee (note 5) 6,240 6,240 6,240
Other
Administrative
expenses
(note 6) 1,705 1,705 1,705
Property
Costs 714 714
Less: Non
recurring
Expenses B
- 8,659 8,659 7,945
Average Net
Assels 1,184 462 1,184 462 1,184,462
Ongoing
Charge 2023 0.73% 0.73% 067%

Excluding
Including tneluding Performance
Year tc Performance Performance Fees & Direct
31 March Fees Fees Property Costs
2022 £000 £000 £'300
Management
Fee {note 5) 31140 6,651 6,657
Other
Adrministrative
expenses
(note 6) 2220 2220 2,220
Property
Costs 332 332
Less: Non
recurring
expenses .
33.692 9203 8871
Average Net
Assets 1536825 1536825 1536825
Ongoing
Charge 2022 2 19% 0.60% 0.58%

TR Property ircestmert Trus:




Net Debt

Net debt s the totalva'ue of 1oan notes loars (including
notional exposure 10 CFDs and TRSs) less cash as a
propartion of net asset value,

The net gearing has been caiculated as follows:

Loannotes 58,933 57,253
Loans 10,000 35,000
CFD positions (notional exposure) 130906 144,642
Less: Cash (36,071} (32709
Less: Cash collaterat {included within

‘Other debtors’in Note 12] (45,099) (45133)

118,669 159,653
968,346 1,562,739
123%  10.2%

Egurty shareholders’ funds
Net gearing

The Cngoing Charges ratio provided ir the Company's
Key Information Docurrent is calculated in sine with
the PRIIPs regulations which is different to the AIC
methedology above

Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager
In rreeting tne Company's objective against a number
of Key Performance Indicators, wrich are considered to
be A terrative Performance Measures. Detalls of these
calculations are set cut above.

Compound Annual Dividend Growth

This is calcu.ated by taking the final dividend i the time
series divided by the initial dividend  'n tre period, raised
to tne power of 1 divided by the number of years: ‘nthe
series

5 year period.
R » 15500 ° | 4 g4
b 12.20p

Premium/(Discount)

The amount by whicn the market price of a share of an
nvestment trast company 1S higher or lower than the Net
Asset Value per share expressed as a percentage of the
NAV per share. If the share price is lower than the NAV per
share, the shares are trading at a discount and if the share
price I1s higner tnan the NAV per share the shares are
trading ata premum.

2023 2022

pence pence

Net Asset Value per share {(a) 30513 492.43
Share price per share (b} 279.00 456.50
Premium or (Discount) (c= (b-a)_/a__ {c) (8 6%) (7.3%)

Anndal Report & Accounts 2023

Ar average premium or discount is calculated by takirg
the sum of eact daily prermium and discount for tne
period under review, divided by the number of days in the
gven period,

2.0 Glossary of terms and
definitions AIFMD

The Alternative Fund Maragers Direct:ve 1s European
leg slatior which created a European wide framework
for regu ating the managers of “alterrative investment
funds" (AlIFs) It is designed to regulate any furd whick
1Is not a UCITS (Undertakings for Collective Investment
ir Transferable Secunties) fund ard which 18 managed
or marketed inthe EU

AIC

The Asscciation of Investrent Companies, the
representative body for closed-ended investment
companies,

Alternative Performance Measure

Afinancial measure of financial performance or financial
position other than a financal measure defined ar
specified in the accounting statements

Key Information Document

Under the PRIIPs Regulations a short, corsdmer friendiy
Key Information Documertis required setting out the
key features, risks, rewards and costs of the PRIIP and
1sintended to assist investers to better understand the
Trust and make compar.sons between Trusts

The document includes estimates of mvestment
performance under a number of scenanos Tnese
calcdlations are prescribed by the regulation and are
based purely on recent hustorical data. It s important
for investors to note that there 1s no judgement apphied
and these do not in any way reflect the Board or
Manager's views

Key Performance Indicator ('KPI')

A KPl s a quantifiable measure that evaluates now
successful the trust 1s N meeting 1ts objectives The
Company's KPIs are discussed on pages 35 and 36.

MIFID

Tre Markets in Finarcial Instruments Directive 1s the EU
legislation that regu ates firms who prov'de services 1o
clients I'nked to “financia: irstruments” (snares, bonds,
unite in collective investmert schemes and derivatives)
and the verues where those instruments are traded.

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
The value of total assets less liabilibes (including
boriowings) divided by the number of shares in issue.
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure
continued

3.0 Alternative investment fund managers
directive (AIFMD')

Inaccordance with the AIFMD. inforrrat'cn in relation
to the Company's everage and remunerat-on of the
Company's AIFM, Columbia Threadneedle investmert
Business Limited, 1s required to be made availlable to
investors. Detailed regu'atory disclosures including
those on the AIFM's remuneration po 1cy are avallabie or
the Columbia Trireadneedle website or from Columbia
Trreadneedle onreqaest The numerical remuneratior
disclosures inrelatior 1o the AIFM's first relevant
accounting periocd wil be made avallable ‘1 due course,

Leverage

Under the AIFM Directive 1t is necessary for AlFs
to d.sclose therr leverage in accordance with
prescribed calcaations

Although leverage is often used as anotner term for
gearing, under the AIFMD leverage 's specificaty defired.
Twa types of leverage calculatiors are defired, tne gress
and commitment methods Trese methods summar.ly
express leverage as a ratio of tre exposure of the AIF
againstits net asset va pe Exposure typica ly inciudes
debt, the value of ary physical properties subject to
rmortgage, non-sterirg currency, equity of CJrmrency
hedging at absolute notional vaites (ever: those neld
purely for risk reduction purposes, such as forward
foreign excnange coriracts held for carrency hedg ng)
and denvative exposare [converted into the equ va ent
Jnderlyrg pasitions). The comrrtment method nets

off derivative instramrerts wi e tre gross metnod
aggregates them

The tabie be.ow sets out tre current maximu permnitted
imit ard the actaa’ evel of everage for the Compary as
at 31 Marcn 2023

Gross Commitment

Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted hmit 200% 200%
Actual 138% 130%

Tne everage '™ ts are set by the AIFNV ard approved
bytre Boarda~dare rmice w1t the imits setout 1tne
Company's Art-c es of Assoc ation

Tois smouid not be confused w t* 12 gear ng set out

o ire Francia Higooights we on s calc. ated uader
tretradtoral metrod set oot by the Assoc ator of
[=vestrrert Comparies Tre AIFLA s also req. red 1o
comp yw tht~e gear ~g para—eters set by tne Board -~
relatin” 1o borrovings

TR Property Iryestren:
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

This Notice is important and requires your
immediate attention

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take
you should seek your own advice from a stockbroker,
solicitor, accountant or other independent professional
adviser who is authorised under the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 if you are resident in the

United Kingdem or, if not, from another appropriately
authorised independent financial adviser.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your
shares, please pass this document, together with
the accompanying documents, to the purchaser or
transferee, or to the person who arranged the sale
or transfer so they can pass these documents to the
person who now holds the shares.

Notice 15 nereby g ven that the Arnua General Meeting
of TR Property Investment Trust p.c (the 'Company’) wil
be heid at tre Royal Automob le Club, 89,97 Pal’ Mail,
Londaon SW1Y 5HS on Thursday 20 Juiy 2023 at 2 30 pn
for toe purpose of trarsactirg the fo lowing busmess

Teconsider and, f thought fit, pass tne followng
Resclutions, of wh ch Resolutions 11o 12 wil be
proposed as Ordirary Resolutions and Resolutions 13
and 14 sha'l be proposed as Special Resclations

1 Toreceive tne Report of the Directors ard tne
Audited Accounts for tne year ended 37 Marcn 2023

2 Toapprove the Directors’ Rerrunaratior Policy
3 Toapprove the Directors’ Remuneration Report
{excloding the Directors’ Remuneraticn Pa cy) for

the year ended 31 March 2023

4 Todecareafina dwvdendof 9 85p per Crd nary
share,

5 Tore-eiect Kate Boisover as a D rector

6  Tore-elect Sara~ cane Corts agabirector

|

Toreelect T G- barks asa Drector

8 Tore-e'ectBusoa Sodende as a Drecter

S Toreeect Andrew Vaoghar as a Director

10 Tore-appomrt KPMG LLP (tne Avditor as &.d tor

of tre Compary toc roid office Lty trecore uson of

tne next Ar- gl Genera Meetimgof tre Corpary

17 Toauthcnse tne Directars to deter~ e the
renJneratgn of the ALditcr

Special business

Ordinary resolution

12 THAT i~ subst twtior for all such existing adthorities,
the Directors be gerera.ly and unconditiona ly
aJdtronised pursuant to and 'n accordance wth
Sectio~ 551 of t1e Comparies Act 2006 (the ‘act’)
to exercise a.l tne power s of the Compary to allot
slrares inthe Company ard to grant nghts to
subscribe for, or to convert any secunty into, shares
e Company up to a nominal value of £26,181.455
ibemng approximately 33% of the total 1ssLed share
capita! of the Compary as at the latest practicable
date pricr to pub cation of this Notice) provided tat
this author ty snail expire al the conclusion of the
Anrual General Meeting of the Company n 2024
(or, if earlier, at the close of business or 19 October
2024), save that the Company shall be entitled to
make offers or agreemerts before the expiry of this
authonty which wou d or mught require shares to
be a lotted or rights tc be granted after such expiry
anrd the Directors shall be enttled to aliot shares
ard grant nghts pursuant to any such cffers or
agreeme~ts as if this auvthorty bad not exp red

Special resolutions

13 THAT, ir sthstititon for all such exist ~g authorties
and sJbject to the passirg of Rescluticn 12 set
out above, the Directors be empowered pursuant
to Sect'on 570 and Section 573 of the Actto a ot
equity securities (as defined in Sect on 560 of tre
Act) for casn pursuant to the author ty conferred by
Resoluton 12 above and/or to sell shares held by the
Company as treasary shares for cask as f Secton
561 of the Act did ot app y te any s.cn allotment or
sa:e, provided that this power snali be i ited

fa) totheaotment of eqoity secunt'es and sale
of treasury shares for cash 1 conrectior wth
an offer of, arinvtat’on to apply far equity
sec.rities

{1 tosnarewciders ir proport oo (as nearly
as may be pract cabejto tnerexist ng
~cidings and

() 1o noders of clner equ ty secartes, as
required by tne rights of t-cse secortes o
as tne Board otherw se corsiders necessary

a~d sot-at the Board may :r-pose a~y imts or
restrict:.o~s ard ~ake a~y arra~gererts wh ¢t
cos derg cecessary or approprate to deal w th
treas.ry stares fract'cra ert tierrerts record
dates 'ega: reg. atory or pract ca probems -~ or
onder the aws cf ary terrtcry or ary otfer matter,

et
amG
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{b} 'ntne case of the authority granted under
Resolut:on 12 ard/or in the case of any sale
of treasury snares for cash. to the aligtrrent
{otherwise than under paragraph {1) above)
of equity securities or sale of treasury shares
up to a norminal amount of £3.966 887 (being
approximately 5% of the totai issued share
capita: of the Company as at the :atest
practicable date prnior to publication of the notice
of meetirg),

he power given by this resolution sbaxi expire upon
the expiry of the authorty conferred by Resolution 12
above, save that the Company shail be entitled to
make offers or agreements befare expiry of such
power which woutd or might require equity securities
to be ailgtted after such expiry and tne Directors

sha'l be entitied to atlot equity secunities pursuant

10 any such offer or agreement as if the power
conferred hereby had not expired

14 THAT the Company be and ‘s hereby generally and
unconditionaliy authorised in accordance with
Section 701 of the Act to make one or more market
pJrchases (within the meaning of Section 693(4) of
the Act) of Crdinary shares of 25p each in the capital
of the Company on such terms and in such manner
as the Directors may from time to time determine
provided that:

{a) the maximum namber of Ordinary shares hereby
authorised to be purchased shall be 14 .99% of
the Company's Ordinary shares in :ssue at the
date of the Annual Gereral Meeting {equivalent
047,570,811 Ordinary shares of 25p each at
30 May 2023, tre latest practicable date prior to
publication of th.s Notice):

{b} the maximum price {exclusive of expenses)
which may be paid for any such share shall not
be more than the higher of:

{1} 105% of the average of the middle market
quotat-ons for an Ordinary snare as taken
from the London Stock Exchange Datly
Cficial List for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which
the Company agrees tc buy the shares
concernad; and

(i) the mgher of tne price of tne last
independert trade and the highest cLrrent
independert bid for ar Ordinary share in the
Company on tne trading venue where the
purchase is carred odt at the re evant time,
and

Annua Report & Azcounts 2023

{c} the mirimum price {exclusive of experses) wnich
may be pa.d for an Ordinary share shail be 25p,
being the nominai value per Ordinary share,

tne authonty nereby corferred shal. expire at

tne corclusion of the Annual General Meeting of
tne Company in 2024 {(or, f earler, at the close

of business on 19 October 2024), save that the
Company snail be ent tied ta enter into a contract
to purchase Ordinary sthares wn ch wil or may, be
completed or executed who'ly or partiy atler the
power expires and the Company may purchase
Ordinary snares pursuant to such contract as if the
power conferred hereby had not expired.

) Lattan

gy Order of the Board
Forardo- benafof
Courbia Trreadrecdle
Irvestrert Busimess Limten
Carrpary Secretary

12 ..me 2023

Registered Gffice

Cormpany reg stered ir England and Wales
Company number: 84492

13 Woodstock Street

Lordon W1C 2AG
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Notice of Annhual General Meeting
continued

Notes

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM are asked to
register their intention as soon as practicable by email
tc the following dedicated address:
trpitagm@columbiathreadneedle.com.

Shareho ders who are not able or do not wish to attend
the meeting In person wi | be abie to watch a live webcast
of tre meetng. This wi Include the formal busmess of
t~e meeting the Maragers presentat:on and guestions
and answers Tne webcast wil- nct enab e snareholders to
partc pate in the meeting or to vote However, shareholders
will be mvited to submit questiors trrough our website,

by 12 00 noon o1 Tuesday 18 July 2023 Questions

may be sent to the following email address: trptagmid
colembiathreadreedle com Questions of a very simaar
nature may be grouped together to ensure the orderly
rarning of t1e AGM.,

T Amemberentit ed 1o attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the above Notice 1s ertitled to appamt one
or maore proxies 1o exercise all or any of the nghts of the
member to attend, speak and vote n hus or 1er p.ace

Srareholders are strongly encouraged to sabmit their
proxy vote in advance of the meeting and to appoint
the Cnarran of the meeting as the r proxy, rather than
any other named perso™ who rray not be permitted to
attend the AGM r the evert of restrictions or imits on
attendance A proxy need rot be a sharerolder of the
Compary Toappoint more thar one proxy, the proxy
form shoLld bhe photocopied and t1e rame of the proxy
to be appoirted indicated on each proxy form together
with the rumber of shares that such proxy 1s appoirted
nrespect of Complet o ard sabmission of a proxy
Instructior wilt rot prec-ude a me'Tber from attending
andvotng in person at the AGM (sLbject to amy
restrcticrs on physica' attendance)

To be valid any proxy form or otner instrurment

apporit ng a proxy Must be returned by post. by courer
of by Fardto the Company's Reg:strars, Covputershare
Irvestor Serv ces FLC The Paviors, Bridgwater Road,
Bristo BEAG 67V or a ternat vely, by gomg tc www
eproxyappo ttrent o™ and foi awirg the rstroctors
provided A prox es mLst be appo nted by no ater tnan
48 hours heforetret me of the AGI 17 the case of
jont ~oiders wrere rore thar one of tre Jort rc ders
pUrports to appomt a proxy, o7y the appomtment
s.bmitted by tre most senior baider v be accepted
semionty s determined by tre order . wr ch tre names
of the jo~t no ders appear 1~ the Comipary s Register of
ke bers ~respect of thejot ~c drg{t~e frst ~ar-ec
be ng deeed tre oSt 887 o)

Ir order i be abe to atterd and vote at tre AGM or
gy adicorred meetgia~d a so for tne purpose of
Zacoiatng hew TNy voles 8 person may cast), a

™

person mMust have nis or her name entered on the
Compary's Register of Members by 2 30 pmon 18
July 2023 {or 6.00 pr on the date two days before
any adjourned meeting). Charges to entries on

t1e Reqister of Members after tn's trme shali be
disregarded n determining the nghts of ary person to
attend or vote at the meetirg

Voting wel be corducted or a poll at the meeting. G-
a poll vote every srareholder veli through their prosy
have orevote for every Ordnary share of which e or
she s the holder

Shareholders snoud note that it 's possib e that,
pursuart to requests made by sharenolders of the
Company under Section 527 of the Act. the Compary
may be required to publisn on a website a staterent
setting oLt ary matter relating to. () the audit of the
Corparys accounts [ nc uding tre Aud1or's Report
and the conduct of the aud-tl tat are to be laid before
the AGM; ar (19 any crcamstance connected with

ar auditor of the Company ceasirg to nod office
since the previols meetirg at which annua’ accounts
and reports were aid n accordance with Section

437 of the Act The Company may notrequire the
shareno ders requesting ary such website publicatior
ta pay I1s expenses in comp ying with Sections 527 or
528 of tre of the Act Wnere the Company IS reguired
1o place a statement an a webste under Sect.or

527 of the Act it must forward the statement to

the Compary's auditor rot later thar the tirme when

‘t makes the statement avanab'e on tne websie

The bus.~ess wihich may be dea t witr at the AGM
includes any statement that the Compary has beer
reguired urder Sectior 527 of the Acttc pub shiona
website

Any corporation which s a member of the Compary
can appo nt one or Mare corporate represertatives
who may exerc’se o its behatfa of tspowersasa
merber provided that they do nct do so - relator to
tne same shares

Trengrtto appont a proxy does ot app'y 1o persors
whose s~ares are ned or their benaif by anotner
persar a~d who bave beer mominated te rece ve
cormurcat or fromtre Corpany »accordarce
w1 Sectior 146 of the Act [(Nornated Persers
Nonated Persons may have a rgrrt urder ar
agreeme~tw it t~eregistered snareno der wirc ~o ds
sharesor trerbeha'f to be appointed (or to Fave
scmecne e se appo ntedias aproxy A tertatvery f
Ao nated perso~s da 1ot nave suck ang~t ordo
mOt v 8T 0 exercise T tney rmay Nave a rght under
sLen anagreerent to grve mstructionstc tne perso™
rod rgire shares asto te exercse of vor~g nghts

TERroceriy tresTrert Trust




6 CREST members who wish to appcir-t a proxy
of proxies thiough tne CREST eiectronic proxy
appoirtment service may do so for the AGM te
be heid or 20 July 2023 and any adjourmment(s)
thereof by using the procedures described Ir the
CREST Manua CREST persona: members or otner
CREST sponsored members, and thgse CREST
members who have appointed a voting service
provider should refer to their CREST sponsors or
voting service providen (s), who wili be able to take
the appropriate action on their behalf Inorder fora
proxy appointment or irstruction made by means of
CREST te be vaid, the appropriate CREST message
(a 'CREST Proxy Instruction’) must be properly
adthenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK &
Ire.and Limited's specificat ons and must contain
the information required for such instructiors, as
described nthe CREST Manual The message must
be transmitted so as to be received by the Company's
agent, Computersnare Investor Services PLC {CREST
Participant 1D: 3RALG), no later than 48 hours before
the time appointed for the meeting For this purpose,
the time of receipt wili be taken 1o be the time (as
determined by the time stamp applied fo the message
by the CREST Appucatior Host) from which the
Company's agentis abie to retrieve the message by
engury 10 CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST

CREST members and, where applicabie, their
CREST sponsor or voting service prov der should
note that Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited does not
make avanab:e special procedures N CREST forany
particular messages

Normal system tmings and limitatiors will therefore
app'y in relation to the 1nput of CREST Proxy
Instructions It s the responsibility of the CREST
member concerned to take (or, If the CREST member
18 a CREST persona member or sponsored member
or has appuinted & voting service provider to procure
that h's or her CREST sporsor or voting service
provider takes) such action as shall be necessary

to ensare that a message is transmitted by mears
of the CREST systerr by ary particular time. In this
connection, CREST members and, where applcab g,
their CREST sponsor or vating service provider

are referred in particu ar to those sections of the
CREST Manual concerring practical imitations of
the CREST systerr. and timings. The Company may
treat as invalid a CREST Proxy instruction in the
crreurnstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Urcertficated Securities Regulations 2001

7 Anymember attending the meeting (subject ta any
restrictions . n place at the time of the meeting) has
the right to ask questions. The Company must cause
to be answered any such gquestion relating to the

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

business being dea't with at tne meeting but no such
answer need be gven f ()10 do sowoud interfere
unduly with the preparation for the meeting or mve've
the disclosare of corfidential informatior: (b} tne
answer has already been grven on a website in the form
of ananswertoa question, or (c) it 15 undesrable In

the interests of the Company or the geod order of the
rreeting that the question be answered. Questions of a
very similar rature may be grouped together to ensure
the orderty running of the AGM

lUnacceptable benaviaur on the part of any sharehoider
attending the AGM will 1ot be tolerated and the
Cha'rman has the right to dea’ with such behaviour as
appropriate,

Under sectior 338 and section 3284 of the Act,
members meeting the threshold reguirements in those
sections have the right to require tne Company (i) to
give, to members of tne Companry entitled to receive
notice of the meeting, notice of a resolution which

may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the meeting and/or (i) to mclude ir the business to
be dealt with al the meeting any matter (otner than a
propcsed resolution) which may be properly included ‘n
the business. A resolution may properly be moved or a
matter may properly be included 'n the business unless
(a} (in the case of a resolution only) it would, if passed,
be ineffective (whether by reason of inconsistency
with any enactment or the company’s constitution or
otherwise), (b) it 1s defarratory of any person, or {c) it

is frivolous or vexatious Such arequest may be in
hard copy form or .n electronic form, must dentify the
resolutior of which notice is to be given or the matter
to be included in the business, must be authonsed by
the person or persons Making 1t, must be received by
the company not later than six clear weeks before the
meeting, ard {in the case of a matter to be included
Inthe business only} must be accompanied by a
statement setting out tne grourds for the request.

As at 30 May 2023 (being the :atest practicable day prior
to publication of this Notice), the 1ssued share capita

of the Company was 317,350,980 Ordinary shares of
25p each ard no ordinary shares were held in treasury
Therefore, tne total number of voting rights inthe
Company at 30 May 2023 was 317,350,980

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Management Engagement Committee, tne Nomination
Committee and the Directors’ Letters of Appointment
wili he available for imspection for at least 15 minutes
prior to and during t1e Company's AGM

You may not Jdse any electronic address provided
either in this Notice or any related documients 1o
commurucate for any purposes other than those
expressly stated.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

13 The Company may process personal data of attendees
at the Anrual General Meeting This may nciude
webcasts, photos, recording and audio and video lirks
as well as otner fonrs of personal data The Corrpary
shall process such personal data in accordance wih s
privacy poscy, which car fognd at www trproperty. comy
lega.

TF Sroperty Investmert Trust




Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resolutions 1, 2, 3 and 4: Accounts,
Directors’ remuneration policy, Directors’
remuneration report and dividend

These are the resclutiors which deal with the
presentation of the audited accounts, the approval
of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy, the approval
of the Directors’ Remuneration Repert and the
declaration of the final d vidend

The vote to approve the Remuneration Policy must
be put to sharehoiders every three years Tne vole
to approve the Remunerat'on Report is advisory
only and wll not require the Company to alter ary
arrangements deta‘ied in the report shouid the
resolution rot be passed.

The Board 1s proposing a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2023 of 9 85p per Ordinary share.

if approved at the AGM, the Company witl pay the
dividerd on 1 August 2023 1o those sharehaiders on
the Company's Register of Members at the ¢lose

of business on 30 Jure 2023

Resolutions 5 to 9: Re-election of
Directors

These resolutions deal with tne re-election of Kate
Bolsaover, Sarah-gane Curtis, Tim Gil'lbanks, Busola
Sodeinde and Andrew Vaughan. In accordance with
the UK Corperate Governance Code all Directors
retre on an annual basis and have confirmed that
they will offer themselves for re-election, witn the
exception of David Watscn who will retire at the
conclusion of the AGM.

A performance evaluation has been completed and
the Board has determined that each of the Directors
continues to be effective and dermcnstrates therr
commitment ic their role

Trer biographical details, which are set out on pages
44 and 45 demonstrate that the Beard ras the
appropnate balance of skil's, experience,
independence ard knowliedge to lead the Company
According'y, the Board unammously recommends
their re-election,

Resolutions 10 and 11: Auditor

These dea! with the reappointment of the Auditor,
KPMG LLF and tre authorisat o for the Directors to
deterrine ther remureration

AnnuatReport & Accounts 2023

Resolution 12: Allotment of share capital

The Board corsiders it appropriate that an antharity
be granted to ai:ot shares inthe capital of the
Company up to a maximurm nominal amount of
£26,181,445 15 stated in the resolution {representing
approximately one trird of the Company's issued
share capital as at 30 May 2023, being the latest
practical date prior to publication of thig Notice of
the meeting) As at 30 May Z023 the Company does
1ot hold any shares in treasury.

The Directors have no present irtention of exercising
this authority ard would only expect to use the
authority if shares could be issued at, or at a
premium to, the Net Asset Value per share.

This authority wili exp:re at the earlier of the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held in 2024 and close of business
an 19 Cetober 2024,

Resolution 13; Disapplication of statutory
pre-emption rights

Thus Resolution wouid give the Directors the
authiority to aliot shares (cor sell any shares wh:ch

the Company elects to hold in treasury) for cash
without first offering them to ex'sting shareholders in
proportion to their existing sharenaldings.

Tris authority would be mited to allotmerts

or sa'es in connection with pre-emptive offers

and offers to holders of ather equity securit’es if
required by the rights of those shares or as the
board otherwise considers necessary, or otherwise
up to an aggregate nomina amonnt of £3 966,887,
This aggregate rominal amount represents 5% of
the total issued share capital of the Compary as

at 30 May 2023, the latest practicable date prior

to publication of this Notice If the powers sougnt
by Resolution 13 are used 11 relation to a nor-pre-
emptive offer, the Directors confirm their intention
to follow the sharehoider protections in paragrapn T
of Part 2B of the Pre-emption Group's Statement of
Principles published in Noverber 202Z2.

This authority will expire at the eariier ¢f the
conclusion of the Annual Gerera Meeting of the
Companry to be held ir 2024 and close of business
on 19 Octeber 2024

11
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Resolution 14: Authority to make market
purchases of the Company’s Ordinary
shares

At the AGM held in 2022 a specia. reso'ution was
passed which gave the Directors authonty, unti the
conclusion of the AGM in 2023 to make market
purcnases of the Company's cwn issued shares up to
a maximuin of 14.99% of the .ssued share capital

The Board 1s proposing tnat they should be given
renewed authorty to parchase the Campany’s
Crdinary shares inthe market It believes that to make
such purchases ir the market at appropriate t mes and
prices is a suitable method of ernarcing shareroder
value The Company wouid, within gu'deines set

frorn time to tme by the Board, make either a sing'e
purchase or a seres of purcnases, when market
corditiors are suitable, w th tre aimr of maximis'ng the
benefits to sharenolders

Whnere purchases are made at prices below the
prevailing Net Asset Value per share this wi'l ennance
the Net Asset Value for the remain ng sharenolders
Trerefore purchases wou'd orly be made at prices
below Net Asset Va Le Tre Board considers that it
wil be most advantagecus to smareholders for the
Company to be ab'e to make such pJrchases as and
when it cons ders the timing to be favourable a~d
tnerefore does not propose to set a imetable for
making any such purcnases

The Companies (Acquisitor. of Own Srares) (Treasury
Shares) Regulatiors 2003 enable companies nthie
Urited Kingdom to no din treasury any of trer awn
shareg they rave purcrased with a v.ew 1o possble
resale at a future date, rather than canceliing trem

I the Campany does re-puichase ary of 1is siares,
tme Directors do net currently interd to hold any of

the sharesre-purcnased in treasury. The shares so
re-purcnasedw  contrde to be carceed

Tre L'st ~g Rules cf the F manc.al Conduct Autnor.ty
CY i ine Maxirt o prce (exc ws.ve of expenses) wrick
~ay be padforarysuchshare Itsta:~0ot be rore
tran the = grer of

f 10%%: of tre average of t~e mudd e market
quctat ons for an Ord~ary stare as take from
the London Stock Excmarge Daiy Cfficia L st for
t-e five bus ness days irmediate'y precedmg tre
date on wh ch the Compary agrees 1o boy sares
concer-ed ard

r trehgrerof tie prce of the asti~deperdert
trade a~d the »igrest current ndepe-dertbd for
a- Crd'mary smare ~tre Company o thettad ng
JerLewhneretre porcrase s caired oot

The ririmum price to he paid wit. be 25p per
Ordinary share (being the romiral va'ue) The Listing
RLles aisc 1Mt a ! sted company to parchases of
gnares representing up to 15% of 1ts 1ssued share
capta inthemarket pursuant to a general author.ty
suGn as this For tis reason, the Compary 1s imting
its autnonty o Take such purchases to 14 99% of
tre Comparys Ordirary shares in1ssue at the date
of the AGM: t1-s15 eguivalentto 47.57C,611 Ord nary
shares of 25p each (no™inai value £11,892 727)

at 30 May 2023, the iatest pract.cable date prior to
pubnication this Not.ce The acthority wi I last anti!
the conclusion of the A~nual Gerera Meeting of the
Compary tobe heid ir 2024 or, \f earler, at the ¢ ose
of busiress on 19 October 2024

Recommendation

The Board bel eves tnat the reso'ut'ors contaned
M tis Not ce of Annua General Meeting are ir the
bestrterests of tne Company and sharenoders as
a whaole and recommends that yo. vote in favour
of ther as your Directors intend to da nrespect of
thew owr beneficia snarela'dings

TF Proverty Investrent Trust
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Directors and other information

Directors

O Watsor (Charman?
K Solsover

S-J Curtis

T CGlllkarks

8 Soceinde
AVaughan

Registered office
13 Wocdstock Street
London W1C 2AG

Registered number
Registered as ar investment company in
England and Wales No 84492

AlIFM and Company Secretary
Columbia Threadneedie Investment
Business Limited

Exchange House

2rmrose Street

Lonoor FC24 2NY

Piease contact Jonathan Latier for
Compary Secretar a.and adm i srative
matters

Portfolio Manager

Thames River Caprzl LLP autronsed
araregdlated oy the Financ &' Concust
AUthorty

13 Woodstock Street

London W1C 2405

Te epbore 02035308375

Fund Manager
M A Phayre-Madge MRICS

Finance Manager and
Investor Relations

S LEmGT AT

Deputy Fund Manager
~ Lhonneur

Direct Property Manager
5P Zay MRICS

a. C
The Association of
Investment Companies

e

Registrar

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pzviions, Bridgwater Roac

Bristol BS99 672

Teleghone 0370707 1355

Shareholders who hold their shares 'n
certficated form can check their holdings
vtk the Registrar, Comrputershare Investor
Services PLC via wwwinvestorcentre co uk
Please note that to gain access to your detall's
on the Computershare site you wi. reedthe
holder reference nurber stateg onthetop eft
hand comer of your share certficate

Auditor

WEMG LS

15 Carada Sguare
Lonaon ET4 SGL

Stockbrokers

Ranmdre Gordon (UK Limited
One New Change

I onacn ECAM SAF

SufelN colaus Furocpe Lim zed
150 Cheapside
Londen EC2V 6E™

Solicitors
Slaughter and May
One Sunhill Row
Londen ECTV 8YV

Depositary, custodian and fund
administrator

3N= Paribas Securties Seryv ces
10 Hareviood Avenue

London N1 644

Website

Wl TTRRGDErty Som
Tax advisers

Srize vaterhouseCoopers LLZ
Certra Sausare South Grobard Street

Nevczstue unor TyrenET 342

TR Property Irwestrent Trust



General Shareholder information

Announcement of results
The naf year results are announced nlate November.

The full year resdits are annoanced in eary June

Annual general meeting
Tne AGM is held in London in July

Dividend payment dates
Dvidends are usually paid on the Ordirary shares
gs folows:

Interim: January
Fial August

Dividend payments

Dividends car be paid to sharensiders by means of
BACS (Bankers' Automated Clearirg Services): mandate
forms for this purpose are avarable from the Registrar
Alternatively, sharehoiders can write to the Registrar
{the address is given or page 114 of this report) to give
their instructions: these must irclude the bark account
number the bank account tit e and the sort code of the
bank to which paymernts are te be made

Dividend re-investment plan (‘DRIP’)

TR Praperty Investrment Trust ple offers shareholders the
opporturity 1o purchase further shares in the Comipanry
through the DRIP Piease note that fallowing Brexit
sharenclders in the European Economic Area {EEA)

are no longer able 1 participate in the DRIP. DRIP forms
may be obtained from Compuatershare Investor Services
PLC through their secLre webs'te www investorcentre
co.ok oron 0370707 1694 Charges apply; deaiing
commission of G 75% (subject 10 @ minimum of £2 50)
Government stamp duty of 0 5% alsc appies

Share price listings

The estrmated Net Asset Vaiue and market price of the
Company's Grdinary shares, as well as the discounty
premium, are publisbed dally in The Firancial Times
They can also be found on the Company's website at
wiww. irproperty.com

Share price information
ISIN GBCOD9064097

SEDDL 0906409

Bloo™berg

TRY LN Reuters

TRY.L

Datastream TRY

Annua Report & Accounts 2022

Benchmark

Detars of tne benchmark are qiven in the Strateg.c
Report on page 22 of this Annual Report and Accounts
The benchmark imdex 1s published daily ard can

be found an Bloomberg,

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Net Total
Returr Index in sterling
Bloomberg TRORAG Index

Disability Act

Coples of this Report and Accounts and cotber
documents 1ssued by the Cormpary are avallable from
the Company Secretary. If needed, coples can be made
avaiiable in a variety of formats, including Braile, aud'o
tape or larger type as appropriate.

You can contact the Registrar, Computershare investor
Services PLC, whick has instaled textphones to allow
speech and hearing impaired peopie who have their own
textpnore to contact them directly, without the need
for anirtermed ate operator, by dialling 0870 702 0005
Specially trained operators are avaitable during nermal
busiress hours to answer queries via this service
Aternatively, if you prefer to go through a typetalk’
operalor (provided by the Royar National Institute for
Deaf People) you should d'al 18001 followed by the
rurmrber you wish to dial.
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General Shareholder information
continued

Nominee share code

Where notification has been provided in advarce,
tne Company wi'l arrange for copies of shareholder
commurications 1o be provided to tne operators of
norminee accolnts Nominee investors may attend
gereral meetngs and speak at meetings when
nvited to do so by the Cha rman.

CGT hase cost

Taxation of capital gains for shareholders who
formerly held Sigma shares

Upon a disposal of all or part of a sharenolder's
hoidirg of Grdinary shares, the impact on the
shareholder's capital gairs tax base cost of the
conversion 1o Sig-mia shares in 2607 ard the
redesignat'on to Ord nary snares ir 2012 should
be considered

Ir respect of the corversion to Sgma i 2007,
agreemert was reached with HM Revernue &
Custarrs (HMRC') 1o base the apport onment of
the capital gains tax base cost on the proportion
of Ordinary shares that were converted by a
sharenclder 1mto Sigma skhares or 25 July 2007,

Therefore 1f an Ord nary sharenolder converted 20%
of therr ex'st'ng Crd nary shares inte Sigma shares
on 25 July 2607, the capital ga'ns tax base cost of
tne new S'gma shares acquired woud d be equa! to
2C% of the orgnal capital gairs tax hase cost of
tne Ordinary shares that tney neld pre-convers’or
Te base cost of the'rrema’ning nold’ ng of Ordinary
shares wouid then be 80% of the or airal capital
gans tax base cost of teir Ordary shares held
pre-corversior

As part of the re-des gnaton of the Sigma snares
into Ordinary shares in December 2012, a furtrer
snaretolder's agreemert was reacned with HMRC
that a shareroiders capital garrs tax base cost 7
their new Ordinary srares skou d he equivatent

tc tner capital ga rs base costintre pre-ex stirg
Sgrashares ! e teercaptal gairs base cost Lrder
trhe ex strgagreerert .f appl cabe;

If In doubt as 1o the comsequerces of tn s agree~e~t
wit™ HMRC sharerciders shoo d consult w it trer
owr professora advisors

TP Property Investren: Tras:



Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

Market purchases

Tre Company's shares are listed and traded on the
Londor Stock Exchange Investors may purchase
snares trough their stockbroker, bark or other financiat
intermediary

Holding shares in certificated form

Investoars May hold the:r investmertin cert ficated forr
Ourregistrars, Computershare operate a dealing service
which erables investors to buy and sell shares guickly
and casily on ine without a broker ¢r the nesd Lw open a
trading account. Alternatively the Investor Centre allows
investors to manage portfolios guickly and securely,
update detaiis and view balances w.thoul anrua;
charges turther deta:'s are avallable by contacting
Compuatershare on 0370 707 1355 or visit

WWwW. rvestoreentre co uk

Tne Company offers snareholders the opportunity

to purchase further shares in the company throLgh
the Drvidend Re-investmenrt Plan (DRIPY) through the
registrar, Computershare Sharehoiders can obtain
further information or the DRIP through their secure
website www investorcentre co.uk, or by phoning 0370
707 1694 Charges do apply Please ncte that to gam
access to your details or register for the DRIP on the
Computershare site you will need the holder reference
number stated on the top left hand correr of your share
cert ficate.

Saving schemes, ISAs and other plans

A number of banks and wealth management
organisations provide Savings Schemes and 1ISAs
through which UK ciierts can invest in the Company

IS4 and savings scheme praviders do charge dealing
and other fees for operating the accounts, and mvestors
should read the Terms and Conditions provided by these
comrpanies and ensure tnat the charges best suit their
planred mvestment profile Most schemes carry annual
charges but these vary betweer provider ard product
Where dea ng charges apply, In some cages these are
applied as a percentage of funds invested and others as
a flat charge. Tne opt mum way (o hoid the shares wi'l be
d'fferent for each investor depending upor the frequency
and size of Investments to be made

Details are giver below of two prov'ders offer ng
shares 11 the Company, but there are many other aptiors

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Interactive investor ('ii'}

Irteractive investor provide and administer a range of
self-select nvestment p'ans, including tax-advantaged
ISAs and SIPPs (Self-Invested Personai Pension), and
Trading Accourts. For more information, interactive
investor can be contacted on 0345 607 6001, or by
VISITING WwWw.i CO LK/

Interactve investor offer investors in the Cempany and
other investment trusts a free online shareholder voting
and informatior service that enables investars Lo tece ve
shiareholder communications and, It they wish, to vote on
the shareholdings held ir their account

The Company s also on the interactive super 60 rated list.

Columbia Threadneedle Management Limited ('CT")
Columbia Tnreadneedie offer a number of savings

plans for adults and childrer, from general irvestment
accodnts 1o a range of investment I1ISAs and a Child
Trust Fund Each product gves you the ability to

invest in arange of nvestment trust companies For
more information see inside the back cover. Columbia
Threadneedle can be contacted on 0800 136 420, or visit
ct'nvest.co dk.

Please remember that the value of your investments and
any income from therm may go down as wellas up Past
performance s not a gude to future performance. You
may not get back the amolnt that you invest If you arein
any dodbt as to the sutability of a plan or any investment
avallable wilthin a plan, please take professionat advice

Saving Schemes and I1SAs transferred from Alliance
Trust Savings (ATS') BNP Paribas

Following the acquisition of Alliance Trust Savings by
nteract ve investor, ATS self-directed accounts were
transferred to the interactive investor platform on
14tk October 2018,

In 2012 BNP Paribas closed down the part of the’r
business that operated Savings Schemes and ISAs.
Investors were given the choice of transferning their
schemes to All'ance Trust Savings (ATS) ortoa
provider of their own choice, or 1o close their accounts
and sell the haldings.

If investors did not respond to the letters from BNP
Paribas, their accounts were transferred to ATS

Following the acqu:sition of Alliance Trust Savings by
interactive investor, ATS self-directed accounts were
transferred to the interactive mvestor platform on

14 October 2019

MIIAIDAN

1iodal mbarens

SIUILLIZIRLS IB1aUeL Y BDUBUIBADO

2INSOIDSIN (1A 1Y DUe AIBSSOIY

2
2
o
m
=]
e
P
2
=




Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc
continued

Share fraud and boiler room scams

Sharerolders in a number of Investmient Trusts nave
beer approached as part of a share fraud where trey
are imformed of an opportunity to se.l ther shares as tre
company is subject to a takeover bid, Thrs is rot true and
‘s an attempt ta defraud shareholders. Tae share fraud
also seeks paymert of a ‘comrmisson by shareholders
to the partes carry~g cut e fraud

Shareholders shou'd remain aiert 1o tr s type of scam
and treat witn suspic.or any contact by telephone
offermg ar attractive investrmert opportun+ty, suct

as a premium price for your shares, or an attempt to
convince you that payment is required in order to re'ease
a settier~ent for your shares. Tnese frauds may also
offer to sel’ your shares ir conrpar es wnich have little of
" value or may offer you bonus shares. These so calied
‘boller toom’ scams car a so nvclve an attermpt 1o obtan
your pelsoral and/or banking mformation with which 1o
comm tidentity fra.d

The calier may be friendly and reassunng or tney imay
take a mare argent tore, ercoLraging you to act guick'y
otherwise you could 0se morey of Miss out o1 a deal

If you have beer contacted by ar unautnorsed firmr
regarding your shares the FCA would ke to bear
from ya. You car report ar anauti-or sed firmusing
tre FCA relpine on 080G 111 6768 or by vist~g therr
webs te, which alsa nas cotrer Lseful informat on,

at www feca org.uk

tf yau recewve any Lnsol cited wvestmrent advice
make sure vod get the carrect name of the person
ard organ sat o if tre calls persist. mang up Ifyou
dea. with a~ unauthorsed firr, you wi | 1ot be eligible
1o rece ve payment under the Franc al Serv ¢es
Compengalion Scher e

Piease be advsed that tne Board or tre Ma~ager weuld
never rake 11730 icted te ephore cal s of such a matule
to srareho ders

-
[
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How to invest

One of the most convenient ways to invest in TR Property Investment Trust plc is through
one of the savings plans run by Columbia Threadneedle Investments.

CT Individual Savings Account

You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investrnent of up to £20,000 for the current tax
year with a lump sum from £100 or regular savings from £25
a month. You can also transfer any existing 15As to us whilst
maintaining the tax benefits.

CT Junior Individual Savings Account (JISA)*

A tax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from £100 lump sum or
£25amonth. JISAs or CTFs with other providers can be
transferred to Cclumbia Threadneedle.

CT Lifetime Individual Savings Account (LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could heip towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in {ater life. Invest
up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive a 25%
Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest with a lump
sum from £100 ar regular savings from £25 a month.

CT Child Trust Fund (CTF)*

If your child already has a CTF you can invest up t¢ £8,000
per birthday year, frem £100 lump sum or £25 a month.
CTFs with other providers can be transferred to Columbia
Threadneedle.

CT General Investment Account (GIA)

This is a flexible way to invest in our range of Investment
Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and
investments can be made from £100 lump sum or

£25a month.

CT Junior Investment Account (JIA)

This is a flexible way tc save for a child in cur range of
Investment Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and
the plan can easily be set up under bare trust (where the chilg is
noted as the beneficial owner} or kept in your name if you wish
to retain control over the investment. investments can be made
froma £100 lump sum or £25 a month per account. You can
also make additicnal lump sum top-ups at any time from £100
per account.

Charges
Annual managerrent charges and other charges apply according 1o the
type of plan.
Annual account charge
fel+HAT
LAO+VAT
© E25+VAT
You can pay the anrual charge frem your account or by cirect debni
(in additior 10 any annual subscription limits}.

Dealing charges
£12 per fund {reduced to £ for deals placed through the online
Columb:a Threadneedle Investor Portal) for 1SA/ GIALISAS A

ard JSA. There are no dealing charges ona CTR,

Dealing charges apply wher shares are bought or sold put not
on the reinvestment of dividercs or the investment of monthly
direct detits. Government stamp duty of 0.5% also apples on
the purchase of shares (where applicable).

The value of investments can go down as well as up and you

may not get back your criginal investment. Tax benefits depend
on your individual circumstances and tax allowances and rules
may change. Please ensure you have read the full Terms and
Conditions, Privacy Paolicy and relevant Key Features documents
hefore investing. For regu.atory purposes, please ensure you have
read the Pre-sawes Cost & Charges a'sclosure related to the product
you are applying for, and the relevant Kev Information Documents
[KIDs) for the Investmen trusts you want 1o invest into.

How to invest

To open 2 new Columbia Threaaneedle investments plan apply
online a1 etinvest.co.uk

Onl'ne applications are not available f you are transferring

an existing plar with another provider 1o Columpia Threadneedle
Investments or fyou are apprving for a new plarn in more than one
name but paper applications are available at ctmvest.co uk/
documents or by cortacting Columbia Threadneecle Investments.
New customers

Calt 0800136420* - -1 - " Tl o
invest@columbiathreadneedie.com

£mail.

Existing plan holders

Call 0345600 3030* © .. R
Ernail: investorenquires@coumb-athreadneedle.com

Bypost  Columbia Threadneedle Management Limited, 7~ 7 -

investor enquiries@columbiathreadneedle.com

Yaucan ase nves: i e Comparsy thiough onl ne aea ng p atforms for prvate nvesions that offer share deal ng and S4s Compan os s ude Barclays

Stockbrokers, EQi, Hakifax, Hargreaves Lansdown, HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lioyds Bank, The Share Centre

* The CTF and JiSA accounts are opened in the ch ld's name and they have access 10 the money at age 18
** Calis may he recorded or monitored for tra ning and guality purposes

Tofindout e v s etinvest.co.uk
0345600 3030, ¢ O0am - 5 00pr, weekdavs, ca simay be recordec oneson wored for ttan ng andd gqua Ty purposes

of the Coumibig and [hreaddneecle grous of compan es T naro al promior ons are ssued for markeong and

nifceea onnurposes by Co urib a Threadneedie Mavagemien® Lnmser, author sed andregu atecd mthe UK by

e e s o e | 4 COLUMBIA
she b nanma Condue: 2auzhorey F96600 06 220 LUK * THREADNEEDLE
&rndal Report & Accounts 2023 el
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